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STRATEGIC REPORT

SIZEABLE MARKETS ADDRESSED
BY SPACE

SIZE OF THE OPPORTUNITY

The space industry has evolved beyond the confines of traditionally being classified within
‘aerospace and defence’, with the utilisation of space data in large, well-established terrestrial
markets. Telecommunications, navigation and transportation represent the most significant
opportunities, after defence, in the near term, and have become increasingly reliant on
space-based assets to drive business.

With climate change taking centre stage among global priorities, earth observation data has played a crucial role
in monitoring the planet. With meteorology heavily reliant on space technology for weather forecasting, space data
has also helped us better monitor deforestation and the health of oceans and ecosystems. Satellites equipped
with multispectral and hyperspectral imaging sensors can detect and map mineral deposits, oil reserves and
vegetation health.

As the applications of space data remain diverse, acommon factor among all of themis that SpaceTech has brought
awelcome move of modernisation to traditionally large markets stow to innovate. From a venture perspective, large
markets such as telecommunications and navigation remain ripe for disruption by new technologies.

The global space economy is valued at $386bn, with 72% of this attributed to the satellite industry and its
downstream applications. This sub-sector is well-represented across SSIT's portfolio with 57% of companies
operating within satellite services.

4 ' )
$386BN GLOBAL SPACE ECONOMY SSIT PORTFOLIO BY FAIR VALUE
15%
AN
[
28% _30% 0% __
9% —
1% —
4%
19% ~
57%
~
37%
B Satellite Services {Telecommunications, Remote Sensing)
W Ground Equipment
B Satellite Manufacturing
B Launch
B Non-satellite Industry (Government Space Budgets, Commercial Human Spaceflight)
Source: 2022 State of the Satellite Industry Report, BryceTech, SIA Source: Seraphim Space analysis
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SIZEABLE MARKETS ADDRESSED BY SPACE

(continued)

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

Seraphim Space tracks global venture capital activity within the SpaceTech market. Collating
information drawn from both public and private sources on individual transactions, Seraphim
Space publishes a quarterly SpaceTech venture capital index (the 'Seraphim Space Index)
that provides insights into the latest trends in the SpaceTech investment market. The charts below
are drawn from this index.

+ SpaceTech venture capital investment for the 12 months ending June 2023 totalled $4.5bn, down from $9.2bn the
previous year. However, this decline is primarily attributable to unusually large funding rounds in CY21 and CY22
such as those by SpaceX™ and Sierra Space'?. Excluding these, investment activity was down less than one third
compared to the previous period.

- The sector has shown strong signs of recovery in the first half of CY23, where there was a 57% increase in
investment compared to the second half of CY22.

- The overall number of deals in the sector has increased this year, underlining a robust early stage investment
environment. Early stage investments reached an all-time high, with 257 deals in Q2 CY23, showing that investor
interest remains strong at Seed and Series A.

- The number of late stage investments also saw a notable uptick in H1 CY23, particularly in Series C deals in Q2
CY23, reinforcing growing investor confidence in established SpaceTech companies.
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M SpaceX raised $1.16bnin Q2 CY21, $1.72bnin Q2 CY22 and $750min Q1 CY23.
2 Sierra Space raised $1.4bnin Q4 CY21.
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SIZEABLE MARKETS ADDRESSED BY SPACE

{continued)
s - A -
TRAILING 12 MONTHS SPACETECH INVESTMENT ACTIVITY INDEX
450 | e ndex TTM $bn, Rebased * The Sf—:‘raphlm Spacg 'Index serves
700| == index TTM no. of Deals, Rebased as an investment activity barometer,
] indexing global SpaceTech VC deals
350 against Q1 CY18. _
300 - Investment activity peaked at an index
250 | value of 417 in Q2 CY21 and remained
S strong through Q3 CY22, declining
200 to 178 in Q2 CY23 due to less growth
150 | investing.
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affecting  SpaceTech, underlying
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= § § § S § § § § § § heights with 301 deals in Q2 CY23,
indicating robust sector health.
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SPACETECH ANNUAL CUMULATIVE INVESTMENT TRACKER ($BN INVESTED]

+ H1CY23showedaSpaceTechinvestment

rebound, marked by a resurgence in
growth deals absentin H2 CY22.

- Notable funding rounds included

SpaceX's $750m, Astranis’ $200m,
and Isar Aerospace's $165m, signaling
renewed investor interest.

- Despite being down due to weak H2

CY22, trailing 12 months' data shows
early signs of recovery.

- EventhoughH1CY23investmentlagged

behind CY21 and CY22, it still outpaced
all previous years, confirming enduring
market strength.
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{continued)

4 ]
TRAILING 12 MONTHS SPACETECH INVESTMENT BY SUB-SECTOR! ($BN)

* From CY17 to CY22, the Platform

segment led in venture capital

ey investment, primarily funding

next-gen communications and
earth-sensing networks.

* Investment is now more
diversified across the SpaceTech
ecosystem, with rising interest
in newly emerging sectors like
Beyond Earth.
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020Y18| Q2CY19 | Q2CY20 l Q2CY21 | Q2CY22 | Q2CY23

e i S s

B Beyond Earth 3 Product D Analyse a Downlink
O Platform 8 Launch D Build

Source: Seraphim Space Index
M Seraphim Space’s taxonomy to describe the SpaceTech sector:
Build - satellite construction| manufacturingf components.
Launch - rockets.
Platform - constellations of satellites in space.
Downlink - data from space to earth in a cyber secure manner.
Analyse - Al applied to large datasets from space.
Product - Space datasets fused with terrestrial data targeted at a vertical such as construction, agriculture, oiland gas.
Beyond Earth - activity in space.
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NUMBER OF SPACETECH DEALS BY REGION ['IZ MONTHS ENDED Q2 CY]
Oo2cY23 + Europe surpassed the US in Q1
RoW é 0a2cv22 CY23 investment, marking an
[ gaz2cyn early recovery in the region.
] 0azcv20 - The US regained its lead in Q2
Asia J—————‘ CY23, but Europe still saw a 60%
| surge in deal numbers year-over-
) year.
Europe 1——J - Asian investment also showed
[ ) robust growth, increasing by
) 79% over the prior year.
North | ] i
America | ) ’
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{continued)

SPACETECH VC ACTIVITY COMPARED TO GENERAL TECHNOLOGY VC ACTIVITY
: Compared to the broader technology venture capital landscape, SpaceTech has shown superior performance
when indexed against Q1 CY18.

- Despite a 50% drop in investment from CY22 peaks, SpaceTech investment is still over twice its Q1 CY18 levels,
whereas general technology VC investment is at 1.25x.

+ SpaceTech has demonstrated greater resilience amid macroeconomic uncertainty, contrasting with broader
technology VC trends.

+ The sector’'s resilience is evident in its growing deal activity, in stark contrast to five quarters of decline in
generaltechnology.

TRAILING 12 MONTHS SPACETECH VS. GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY VENTURE CAPITAL\
450 |
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e SpaceTechindex ($bn) === SpaceTech Index (no. of Deals) .
Source: Seraphim Space Index; Pitchbook; Crunchbase
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(continued)
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CHAIR'S STATEMENT

¢ SSIT addresses two of the biggest threats we collectively face over this decade: firstly,

geopolitical tensions and the ever-present potential for escalation of war and, secondly,
the growing symptoms of climate change, including increasing instances and severity of
wildfires, flooding and hurricanes. Our portfolio companies are delivering innovative ways
to gather unique datasets about our planet in high resolution from space and then applying
Al to create insightful solutions. The portfolio is largely well-capitalised following robust
fundraising activity, with a total of 11 companies successfully closing funding rounds, the
majority led by external investors and priced higher than previous rounds. This positive
activity demonstrates the continued strength of the SSIT portfolio and the increasing
market recognition of its potential.

In July 2023, the Board commenced a share repurchase programme which has resulted
in a share price recovery to a discount level comparable to our broader peer group. We
have confidence that underlying portfolio performance will instil confidence in investor

sentiment going forward. ’

Will Whitehorn
Chair

I am pleased to present the Annual Report of
Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC for the year
ended 30 June 2023.

| would like to thank all shareholders for their
continued support during the challenging
macroeconomic climate of 2022/ 23.

PROGRESS IN THE YEAR

£4.9m was invested in six new portfolio companies
during the year, two of which were sourced through
accelerator programmes managed by an affiliate of
the Investment Manager. In addition, a further £12.2m
was deployed as follow-on investments in eight existing
portfolio companies during the year.

Highlights include the following:

- World firsts: Several portfolio companies achieved
major milestones showcasing new capabilities that set
the path for the space sector’s future:

- AST SpaceMobile (NASDAQ: ASTS) successfully
demonstrated its ability to deliver space-based
cellular communications at 4G speeds direct
to unmodified smartphones, marking a major
development in the convergence of space-based and
terrestrial connectivity.

Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC

- SatVu (formerly Satellite Vu) successfully launched
‘HOTSAT 7' its first smallsat capable of measuring
the thermal footprint of any building on the planet.
This marked an important step in space's critical role
in helping the world achieve Net Zero.

- Tomorrow.io successfully launched its first two
miniaturised radar satellites for collecting real time
precipitation data to turbo charge global weather
forecasting capabilities.

- Xona was the first private company ever to launch
a GPS satellite which demonstrated its ability to
provide centimetre-level user positioning with its
proprietary satellite hardware and software stack.

- Traction: Buoyed by a spike in demand by

governments for commercial space capabilities to
enhance global security and combat climate change,
several portfolio companies witnessed record
contract wins:

- ICEYFE's deal with Bayanat to provide five of its SAR
satellites to the United Arab Emirates.

- D-Orbit closing muiti-million Euro contracts with
the European and Italian Space Agencies.
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CHAIR'S STATEMENT

(continued)

- New additions, new horizons: The six new
companiesinvestedin during the year have reinforced
the Company's focus on the intersection of space
technology and climate change, alongside first forays
into the opportunities presented by space to the life
sciences sector.

At the year-end, the Company's portfolio consisted of
30 active SpaceTech companies with an aggregate fair
value of £187.4m and its cash reserves were £35.3m.

The war on Ukraine and the global macroenvironment
have had a significant impact on global capital markets.
As a consequence, the Company continued to
implement its decision to reserve cash by deliberately
slowing the pace of deployment in order to follow its
rights in key existing portfolio companies whilst also
continuing to actively seek to invest smaller ticket sizes
in new target companies. As outlined in the Investment
Manager's Report, overall, the portfolio continues to be
well-capitalised, with a significant number of portfolio
companies completing funding rounds during the year.

NAV

A reduction in the fair value of the portfolio caused the
NAV per share to decrease by 7.1% over the year, from
99.97p t0 92.90p at 30 June 2023.

The private companies in the portfolio which accounted
for 871% by number and 97.4% by fair value of the
portfolio (2022: 88.5% by number, 90.0% by fair value),
represented £182.6 million of NAV (2022: £167.5 million)

and continued to be relatively stable in aggregate over
the year, despite the challenging macroeconomic
environment. 11 completed funding rounds during
the year, only one of which was priced at a lower
price than the previous round. The fair value of the
private companies in the portfolio was 119.2% of cost
(2022:122.9%) or 122.5% excluding FX impact (2022:
17.1%). A combination of underperformance against
expectations, limited cash runways and lower priced
funding rounds led to write downs of PlanetWatchers,
ALL.SPACE, Altitude Angel, Edgybees, Xona Space
Systems and LeolLabs, which was more than offset
by mark-ups of SatVu, D-Orbit, ICEYE, Astroscale and
HawkEye 360 in the main portfolio and also two early
stage companies. The Investment Manager's Report
includes a more detailed review of the performance of
portfolio companies.

The listed element of the portfolio (13.0% in fair value vs.
cost (2022: 44.7%)) continued to experience reducing
share prices. We continue to believe that this is distinct
from the performance of the private portfolio, and
continues to be in line with other companies which went
public via mergers with special purpose acquisition
companies (‘SPACs’) as explained on page 38,
precipitated by rising interest rates, global energy prices,
high inflation and the war on Ukraine, as well as being
driven by fundraises at two of the companies which put
pressure on their share prices.

Continued strengthening of Sterling against the US
Dollar over the year, resulting in £6.8m in FX loss in the
year (2022: £16.8m gain).

Annual Report and Financial Statements 17 ’
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- CHAIR'S STATEMENT

(continued)

SHARE PRICE

The Company's share price continued to fall over the
year driven by significant volatility experienced by global
stock markets in 2022/ 23. In particular, the heavy falls
suffered by growth and smaller technology stocks and
alternative investment vehicles, which continue to be
depressed, has also impacted the broader peer group.
The NAV per share has remained more resilient, in line
with performance of the underlying private portfolio
companies which continue to develop their products

and services. At 30 June 2023, the share price was
27.0p, adecrease of 49.1% from 53.0p at 30 June 2022.

SSIT underperformed the peer group, particularly in
relation to its share price, over the period, although
the share price recovery since the year-end has led to
significant improvement, with SSIT outperforming its
peer group since early August 2023, as shown in the
chart below.

-
(£, TOTAL RETURN REBASED TO 100)

160
140
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SSIT NAV PER SHARE AND SHARE PRICE VS. AIC PEER GROUP

\
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= SSIT NAV Per Share
= AIC Peer Group NAV Per Share

Source: Datastream; Morningstar; Bloomberg

M AIC peer group is average of AIC Growth Capital peer group.
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= SSIT Share Price
=== AIC Peer Group Share Price

_J

The share price as at 30 June 2023 represented a
70.9% discount to NAV, a further decline from the
47.0% discount as at 30 June 2022, and an implied
84.2% discount to the fair value of the portfolio {[once
cash on balance sheet is discounted) (2022: 62.8%).
The Board continues to believe this does not refiect
the performance of the portfolio or how downside

Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC

protectionsinwell-capitalised companies are effectively
protecting shareholder value {see pages 25 to 27 of the
Investment Manager's Report for more detail). Post the
year-end, the share price decline continued, reaching a
low of 26.1p on 12 July 2023. The Company announced
ashare repurchase programme on 13 July 2023 and the
share price has improved to 39.5p on 13 October 2023.
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(continued)

SHARE PRICE IMPLIES A SIGNIFICANT DISCOUNT TO FAIR VALUE
2501 £929.4m 200 £187.4m
i -~
| 200] 160 |
Market cap Implied
| —] =70.9% — 84.2%
1 180 discount 120 | giscountto
to NAV Including I I II* fair value
) £35.3m —
100 £64.6m of cash 80
o £296m o | [£228m
0 NAV Discount Market | NetCurrent | Implied 0 Implied Portfolio
to NAV Capitalisation Assets Portfolio Portfolio Fair Value
Value Value
\§ _/
EARNINGS AND DIVIDEND BOARD

The Company made a revenue loss after tax of £4.5m
for the year, equal to-1.88p per share.

The Company is focused on achieving capital growth
over the long term. Given the nature of the Company’s
investments, we do not anticipate recommending to pay
adividend in the foreseeable future.

RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT

The Board is keen to demonstrate the Company's
commitment to responsible investing through objective
reporting metrics for ESG factors. The Investment
Manager continues to use its proprietary due diligence
tool in order to assess sustainability opportunities and
ESG risks associated with each potential investment, and
has been able to identify risks that have led it to turn down
opportunities inthe year, as well as to identify opportunities
that portfolio companies can take advantage of in order to
deliver positive ESG and sustainability impacts.

More detail on the Investment Manager’'s Responsible
Investment Policy and ESG metrics for the portfolio
starts on page 62. In addition, examples of some of the
ESG impact being delivered by the portfolio is included
in the case studies on pages 58 and 59.

From the Annual General Meeting which took place
on 13 November 2022, Angela Lane succeeded
Christina McComb as Chair of the Audit Committee and
Christina succeeded me as Chair of the Management
Engagement Committee.

AVAILABILITY OF ANNUAL REPORTS

In the interests of the environment and for ease of
access, Annual Reports are available on the Company’s
website and can be viewed and downloaded at
https:/linvestors.seraphim.vc|. Copies of Annual Reports
will only be available on request.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company will be held at 12.00 p.m. on
20 November 2023 at Seraphim Space’'s offices, 1 Fleet
Place, London, EC4M 7TWS (GPS postcode EC4M 7RA).
The AGMwillinclude a presentationfromthelnvestment
Manager (a video of the presentation will be added to the
website as soon as practicable after the AGM). Details
of the resolutions to be proposed at the AGM, together
with explanations, will be included in the notice of
meeting to be distributed to shareholders on 19 October
2023. As amatter of good practice, ali resolutions will be
conducted on a poll and the results will be announced to
the market as soon as possible after the AGM.

Annual Report and Financial Statements
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CHAIR'S STATEMENT

{continued)

The Directors and representatives of the Investment
Manager will be available at the AGM (either in person or
via video conference) to answer shareholder questions.
We dorecognise that some shareholders may be unable
to come to the AGM and, if you have any questions about
the Annual Report, the investment portfolio or any other
matter relevant to the Company, please write to us via
email at seraphimteam@ocorian.com or by post to
The Company Secretary, Seraphim Space Investment
Trust PLC, 5th Floor, 20 Fenchurch Street, London,
EC3M 3BY. If you are unable to attend the AGM, | urge
you to submit your proxy votes in good time for the
meeting, following the instructions on the proxy form.
If you vote against any of the resolutions, we would be
interested to hear from you so that we can understand
the reasons behind any objections.

EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR END

As mentioned under ‘Share Price' above, the Company
announced a share repurchase programme on 13 July
2023. The weighted average share price at which the
shares were brought back represents a discount of 51%
to the NAV per share at 30 June 2023. In the period to
13 October 2023, the Company bought back a total of
2,186,344 shares (0.9% of the sharesin issue on 12 July
2023) at an aggregate cost of £1.0m. The shares bought
back are being held in treasury. The closing share price
on 13 October 2023 was 39.5p, an increase of 51% from
the closing share price of 26.1p on 12 July 2023.

Since 30 June 2023, five further investments {two new
investments and three follow-on investments) have
been concluded for an aggregate cost of £4.1m, and
terms have been agreed on another potential addition to
the portfolio. A further additional potential investment is
in due diligence.

On 7 October 2023, conflict broke out between
Israel and Palestine. We are working with the Israeli
companies in the portfolio to support them as
necessary, but there has been limited impact to date.

OUTLOOK

The Board continues to believe that the SSIT portfolio
is well-positioned given the strong global tailwinds of
increased defence spending and an openness to adopt

™ Fair value weighted average (as defined in the Glossary on page 162)
year-on-year growth for the 12 months ended 30 June 2023 of the top
10 holdings, representing 86% of fair value (72% of NAV) as at 30 June
2023. Source: Portfolio company data.

Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC

solutions to address the climate and sustainability
agenda. The top 10 companies saw their bookings
increase by 199% on average!” over the year. Therefore,
these companies have solid contracted orders for the
years ahead, providing great confidence to investors.

Encouragingly, we have seen some well-known private
equity investors, such as KKR, Advent and BlackRock,
entering the sector to build their SpaceTech exposure
and indicating interest from new investor groups.
Given their broad mandate to invest across sectors,
their focus on space gives us confidence of increasing
growth aspirations for the domain. Furthermore, with
significant amounts of dry powder (capital which has
been committed to but not yet invested by investment
vehicles) sat in impact and climate funds from across-
the globe, we remain confident that there is a large and
growing pool of motivated capital to support the needs
of companies in the SSIT portfolio in the years ahead.

We have reserved cash to support portfolio
fundraisings as required in the year ahead, leaving
a modest sum for new investment until the market
improves and more capital can be raised. Experience
demonstrates that some of the best investments are
undertaken at the bottom of the economic cycle. The
SSIT deal flow pipeline is healthy and, given cash
constraints, we are focused on participating in only
the most exceptional opportunities, carefully selecting
those with a strong growth premise that offer the
highest returns for shareholders.

WILL WHITEHORN

Chair
16 October 2023
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INVESTMENT MANAGER'S REPORT

€ Ina challenging and volatile macroeconomic environment, our portfolio companies have

demonstrated resilience and leadership, resulting in strong revenue (+34%) and bookings
(+199%) growth. We've been heartened by the support from both existing co-shareholders and
new investors, reflecting a flight to quality during uncertaintimes. This year, 11 portfolio companies
successfully raised funding, with the majority led by new external investors, and we actively
participated in two-thirds of these rounds. Our portfolio's valuations have remained robust, with
afair value of £187.4m, experiencing a marginal 0.7% year-on-year increase. The structuring of
investments using a combination of preference shares and anti-dilution protection has made us
less susceptible to short-term fluctuations in enterprise value.

During the year, the Company invested £4.2m into two additions to the Company's main portfolio,
Taranis and Voyager. We also continued to support the portfolio companies in which we have
the highest conviction, investing £12.2m in eight companies, split between our main portfolio
(E10.7m) and early stage, non-material positions (£1.5m). The cash position within the portfolio
is robust with 20 months of cash runway on average in the private portfolio. Looking ahead we
remain focused on essential follow-on investments and smaller transactions, as we prioritise
cash preservation in the current economic climate. Overall, we remain committed to our strategy

and are confident in the performance outlook of our portfolio.’

Mark Boggett
CEO, Seraphim Space

OVERVIEW

We movedto a slower rate of deploymentin Q1 CY22 and
established a framework to preserve cash, support the
portfolio and continue to make limited new investments.
This strategy has played out in line with expectations,
and we have been encouraged by both the performance
of the underlying portfolio companies and the continued
appetite of co-shareholders and new investors to
support the capital needs of the portfolio companies. In
challenging times there is always a flight to quality, and
we can confidently assertthat many portfolio companies
have extended their leadership positions during this
more challenging and volatile macroeconomic period
and are delivering strong revenue and bookings growth,
as outlined on page 1, as they address strong demand for
their products and services. The value of the Company's
investments has been robust, with the portfolio fair
value at £187.4m, up 0.7% year-on-year. As explained
below, 11 portfolio companies raised funding, with
the majority of rounds led by new external investors.
SSIT participated in two-thirds of the rounds. Seven of

Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC

the rounds were made at higher valuations relative to
previous rounds, one was flat and one was lower, with the
remainder being unpriced convertible loan notes. This
positive investment activity demonstrates the continued
strength of the portfolio companies and the increasing
market recognition of their potential.

This also brings into sharp focus the underlying
investment structuring employed across the portfolio,
including liquidation preference and anti-dilution
clauses, which is an important part of our investment
toolset. This approach to structuring makes SSIT less
vulnerable to short-term negative fluctuations in the
enterprise value of a portfolio company. In the case of
liquidation preference, the last monies invested stand
first in line to get back the original subscription price
paid before any other prior round shareholders are paid.
Anti-dilution provides for additional shares to be issued
to rebalance the stake in a company in the event that
future rounds are undertaken at a lower share price.
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Portfolio valuation methodologies

As outlined in the charts below, 92.6% of the portfolio by fair value is valued using either available market price or
an enterprise value that has been recalibrated in the last three months.

BREAKDOWN OF FAIR VALUE OF
PORTFOLIO BY TIMING OF LAST
ENTERPRISE VALUE (EV) RECALIBRATION

26%

B EV Recalibration (<3 Months)
B EV Recalibration (212 Months)
B Full Provision

\-

BREAKDOWN OF NUMBER OF
PORTFOLIO COMPANIES BY TIMING OF
LAST EV RECALIBRATION

6.5%

B EV Recalibration (3-6 Months)
B Available Market Price

J

Downside protection

An important consideration in relation to valuation is
the structuring of individual investments. We routinely
seek to obtain downside protection measures
across the private companies within the portfolio via
preference shares, rather than common equity. All the
top 10 private companies in the portfolio are structured
via preference shares with weighted average anti-
dilution protection and/ or liquidation preference.

Preference shares sit above common equity in the
capital structure in the event of a liquidity event, but
below creditors such as banks. Preference shares
offer more defensive exposure to an asset with their
‘liquidation preference'. Liquidation preference provides
a prioritised return ahead of other previously issued
share classes, which means value can be preserved

even in scenarios where a business is sold at a far lower
valuation than that used to make the investment.

Anti-dilution rights retrospectively amend the price paid
or the number of shares owned where a subsequent
funding round is done at a lower valuation (a down
round). These measures can help mitigate dilution in the
event of a down round, but it rarely results in no dilution.
Additional shares are often issued at par to ensure
that the shareholdings of existing investors are at least
partially protected in a down round. We typically apply
weighted average dilution, which provides a proportion
of adjustment and less protection, but still a better
outcome than if no anti-dilution measures were applied
in the event of a down round.

Annual Report and Financial Statements
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Downside protection afforded by liquidation preferences means that, relative to the most recent valuation event
used to calculate fair value, valuations within the top 10 holdings would on average need to fall by more than 30.0%
before fair value would fall below cost {on a fair value weighted basis). The chart below shows how much the
enterprise value of each company in the top 10 private companies (on an anonymised basis} would need to fall in
order to return cost. In order to deliver cost, companies 9 and 10 need to see an increase in enterprise value, as their
enterprise values are currently below cost.

(lMPLIED CHANGE IN EV REQUIRED BEFORE FAIR VALUE WOULD FALL BELOW COST R
60%

40%

20%

0% l I ||
-20% - - - - e . - - e e - - - -
Average®reduction
- [+)
40% in EV required to
fall below

-60% cost=30.0%

-80%

100% | | | | | I | | |
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
™ Fair value weighted average (as defined in the Glossary on page 162} year-on-year growth for the 12 months ended 30 June 2023 of the top 10
holdings, representing 86% of fair value (72% of NAV) as at 30 June 2023.

\ J

As outlined in the chart below, applying sensitivities of a 10-50% reduction in the enterprise values of the top 10
holdings resuits in an implied NAV per share of 70p to 93p.

~
EV SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS OF THE TOP 18 HOLDINGS AS AT 3@ JUNE 2023

Applying a 50% reduction

in the enterprise value of
all of the top 10 holdings -
pryp implies a NAV per share ]
250 of ¢.70plshare 100 %
E o0l sr &
& 200 — 80 g
> __ | I—
‘Z’: 150 60 ‘g
3 ] ¢
= 100 40 >
<
E ___ =
50 20 ©
Q@
a
0 NAV 30-Jun-23 10% 25% 50% E

\ Y J
mm Implied NAV (Em) Sensitivities - reduction in all top 10 holding
\ — Implied NAV Per Share (pence) private company enterprise values )
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Preference shares
What are they?
Class of shares that rank senior to ordinary shares/common stock.

‘Liquidation preference’ provides for priority return ahead of other previously issued classes of shares.

How do they work?
Ranks junior to debt and, typically, future issues of preference shares, but senior to ordinary shares/ other
classes of existing shares.

At exit, holder receives amount - normally equivalent to 1x return - ahead of any other proceeds being
distributed to junior ranking shares.

Whatis their purpose?
Protect value of investment.
Provide downside protection by potentially delivering 1x return in low exit scenarios.

\ ) J
\
WORKED EXAMPLE: LIQUIDATION PREFERENCE PROTECTING 8@% EV REDUCTION
2
100% - Liquidation preference activated - - Pro rata share of proceeds worth
proceeds to as worth more than pro rata more than liquidation preference
18 holders of share of proceeds
preference
1.6 shares
14 More than Ix return
=
e 12 t
S
&
I 1
a
2 o8 N . l
= Areductionin enterprise .
value of upto 80% would ﬁntgrprlsi \:Ia Iu? of Less than Ix return
0.6 still deliver 1x returnon pusiness folowing
’ . investment round
investment
0.4
0.2
0 f T T T T ] T T T T T ] T T T T T T 1
0 25 50 75 100 125 150 175 200 225 250 275 300 325 350 375 400 425 450 475 500
Enterprise Value at Exit (Em)
\ _J

Assumptions: £50m invested at £200m valuation; New class of preference shares ranking senior to all other share
classes; Preference shares have Ix return non-participating liquidation preference.
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Enterprise value recalibrations

PROPORTION OF FAIR VALUE WHERE
EV WAS RECALIBRATED IN THE
3 MONTHS TO 30 JUNE 2023

TOP 10 PRIVATE COMPANIES’
EV CHANGE™ IN THE YEAR

Q2.6%

4.8%

NUMBER OF PORTFOLIO COMPANIES
THAT WERE EXISTING PORTFOLIO
COMPANIES AT THE START OF THE

YEAR AND RAISED A PRICED ROUND

INTHE YEAR

NUMBER OF PORTFOLIO COMPANIES
THAT WERE EXISTING PORTFOLIO

COMPANIES AT THE START OF THE YEAR

AND RAISED A PRICED ROUND POST

THE YEAR END

Q

4

The chart below shows, on an anonymised basis, the percentage change in the underlying EV of each of these
companies for the year ended 30 June 2023. Changes in EV relate to either new funding rounds or adjustments
from quarterly valuation recalibration exercises. It is worth noting that, as a result of the downside protections in
place, most particularly liquidation preferences, where there were reductions in underlying EV, these have not
necessarily translated directly into commensurate reductions in fair value. Therefore, while the underlying EV of
the private companies within the top 10 holdings has increased by 4.8%, the aggregate fair value has increased

more, 8.5% (both on a fair value weighted average basis).

-

80%

60%

40%

20%

TOP 1@ HOLDINGS UNDERLYING EV CHANGE 1 JULY 2022 TO 3@ JUNE 2023

-60%
-80%

Source: Seraphim Space analysis

\holdings, representing 86% of fair value (72% of NAV) as at 30 June 2023.

0% A c u - G H | J
-20% lliustration to show impact of
downside protection measures:
-40%

EVY: 4.8%
Fair value®: 8.5%

M Fair value weighted average (as defined in the Glossary on page 162) year-on-year change for the 12 months ended 30 June 2023 of the top 10

~

J
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The chart below shows the fair value changes for the top 10 holdin
below the axis are reductions in fair value. :

TOP 12 HOLDINGS' FAIR VALUE CHANGES 1JULY 2022 TO 3@ JUNE 2

50 |
40 |
30 |
20 |
" il &m
s ___ N
-10 N R ‘}‘oec‘%\ VS\Q’Q\ &6&(‘: o‘(o «®
P v\.;\@ 9\0(\0\ <0
\_ m Fair Value as at 30-Jun-22 wm Additions/(Disposals) @ Underlying Fair Value Change m FX Gain/(Loss)

As explained above, more recently we have seen an uptick in the number of new funding rounds being raised.
Portfolio companies representing more than 60% of the fair value of the portfolio were existing companies at the
start of the year and managed to raise a priced round during the year or post the year end. Of the nine priced funding
rounds completed during the year, seven were priced higher than the previous round, one was priced lower and one
was flat. We believe this indicates improvement in the market.

INVESTMENT ACTIVITY
Year ended 30 June 2023

In light of global markets and the continued share price discount restricting the ability to raise additional capital, we
slowed down the pace of investment significantly from the beginning of 2022. The chart below shows the number
of deals done in the year ended 30 June 2023 vs. the previous year. The number of follow-on investments remained
relatively constant. New investments and late stage (Series B+) deals were both lower than in the year ended
30 June 2022 as we focused on required follow-on investments and favoured smaller transactions due to the need
to preserve cash in the current environment.

(NUMBER OF INVESTMENTS A
25 25
20 20 }(_-{ 7ﬁ\
15 15 7 |
10 10
5 5
0 FY21j22 FY22/23 0 FY21j22 FY22/23
\ = New Investment Follow-on m Early Stage Late Stage J
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As a proportion of amount invested, follow-ons have significantly increased over the life of the Company.

PROPORTION OF AMOUNT INVESTED [EM)

e — e

i {
I J

100% I

80%

60%

40%

20%

0% H1 H2 H1 H2
FY21{22 FY21/22 FY22|23 FY22)23
L m New Investment &1 Follow-on j

New investments

During the year, the Company invested £4.2m into two additions to the Company'’s main portfolio: (Taranis and
Voyager) and funded the investment in Tomorrow.io which had closed at the end of the previous financial year.
In addition, there were four new investments into early stage portfolio companies for a total of £0.7m.

Taranis is an agriculture-focused Al company that uses earth observation data to optimise crop yields and increase
global food supply. Taranis is improving agricultural efficiency by providing insights to growers on field health.
Taranis uses satellite and drone imagery, in combination with its extensive library of crop heaithindicators, for early
detection of disease or nutrient deficiencies. These accurate and local assessments improve crop yields by better
tailoring the use of fertilisers and pesticides. In August 2022, the Company completed a $2.5m (£2.1m) investment
in Taranis' Series B investment round. Taranis received investment from numerous top Israeli venture and growth
investors. With this round, Taranis will build out its US sales capability, and gain early traction with its new carbon
monitoring product.

Voyager is a next generation Space Prime that is developing Starlab, a free flying space station. Starlab will provide
the facilities to host public and private astronauts, as well as forming the critical infrastructure required to support
research, development and manufacturing in space. The Company completed a $2.5m (£2.1m) investment into
Voyager's Series B investment round in July 2022. Voyager intends to use the funds raised to continue to finance
the development of Starlab and expand its capabilities through strategic M&A.

Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC
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NEW INVESTMENT CASE STUDY:

TOMORROW.IO

Investment thesis

Tomorrow.io is revolutionising weather forecasting by enabling companies across industries
to easily build, standardise and automate weather-related operating protocols. This is possible
through high-accuracy, hyperlocal short-term forecasts that are unrivalled within the industry.

Round
New investment: Convertible Loan Note Pre-Series E round.

37, tomorrow..

SSIT investment] round size
$5m/ $87m.

Co-investors

Activate Capital, Canaan Partners, Clearvision Ventures,
Pitango, Square Peg, Stonecourt Capital.

Problem

Billion Dollar industries, including aviation, logistics and
utilities are, adversely impacted by weather events. Traditional
weather forecasts are not sufficient totranslate into operational
decisions.

Solution

Tomorrow.io provides industry-specific actionable weather
insights via APIs/ platforms that are embedded into the
operational processes of its customers. Insights are based on
both proprietary weather models and satellite data.

Market

Global spend on weather was estimated to be $56bn in 2015,
Assuming growth has continued at the historic 8% CAGR, the
market would have been valued at roughly $104bnin 2022.

Latest news
+ Successfully closed $87m Series E round in June 2023.

- Launched its first two weather radar satellites in Q2 CY23 to
provide proprietary global precipitation data.

- Released new Unified Precipitation (UP) solution to provide
real-time and nowcast (0-6 hours) global precipitation with
unparalleled accuracy.

24 May 2017,

N\

M Global disparity in the supply of commercial weather and climate information services by Lucien Georgeson, Mark Maslin and Martyn Poessinouw,

J
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-

NEW INVESTMENT CASE STUDY:

VOYAGER

Investment thesis

The commercial and government ecosystem in low earth orbit is experiencing sustained growth
that will create sufficient demand for a new Space Prime akin to incumbent defence prime
contractors such as Lockheed Martin. The most agile and adaptable companies are expected
to be competitive given existing primes are hampered by engrained procedures and operations,
making them ill-suited for the prime contracts of tomorrow.

Round
New investment: Series B.

\
Vv VOYAGER

SPACE

SSIT investment] round size
$2.5m} $92m.

Co-investors
Walleye Capital, Senvest, Juniper, Scout.

Problem

Today, the only organisations capable of delivering cutting
edge space infrastructure, like space stations and CisLunar
missions are the existing base of large defence primes. These
organisations are notoriously slow moving, costly and regularly
subject to delays and cost overruns due to outdated working
practices. They are unsuited to the evolving and dynamic needs
of the in-space economy.

Solution

Voyager's lean, fast-moving organisation, with a strong
commercial mindset, will provide the next generation hardware
demanded by the evolving userbase of space. Voyager will be
best positioned to capitalise on the demand from a customer
base increasingly prioritising commercial considerations for
the businesses which they operate in space.

Market

With Voyager's Starlab space station, the business is well-
placed to address the approximately $4bn annual spend on the
International Space Station. Furthermore, new markets of in-
space manufacturing and R&D at maturity are expected to be
worth $5bn annually.

Latest news

- Acquired its T7th subsidiary, ZIN Technologies. ZIN
Technologies brings decades of experience in engineering,
design and integration of human-rated spaceflight systems.

- Announced its $80m Series B raise.

+ Announced a joint venture with Airbus to build and operate
the Starlab space station.

J
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Follow-on investments

The Company continuestoinvestinlinewiththe strategy
articulated at the time of its IPQ, seeking to increase the
level of support for those portfolio companies which
we have the greatest conviction in. During the year, the
Company invested £12.2m of additional funding in eight
companies (five in the main portfolio totalling £10.7m
and three early stage, non-material positions totalling
£1.5m). The main follow-ons are outlined below.

In August 2022, the Company completed a $3m
(£2.5m) follow-on investment in PlanetWatchers,
acting as co-lead alongside Creative Ventures as part
of PlanetWatchers' Series A investment round. With this
round, PlanetWatchersis looking to invest in automation
and fuelits commercial growth through expanded sales
efforts. PlanetWatchers uses synthetic aperture radar
data to tell the story of every field, helping crop insurers
and farmers to automate data capture and claims
validation.

In December 2022, the Company invested a further
€5m (£4.4m) alongside other shareholders in D-Orbit
to help consolidate its position as the market leader
within the in-space transportation market. D-Orbit is
the market leader in space logistics, providing last-mile
satellite delivery, space cloud computing and hosted
payload operations.

In March 2023, the Company completed a €1.0m
(£0.9m) follow-on investmentin QuadSAT as part of the
company's €6.3m Series A investment round led by 1Q
Capital. QuadSAT will utilise this funding to execute on
its increasingly strong commercial pipeline. QuadSAT
provides satellite operators, antenna manufacturers
and service providers with a flexible and cost-
efficient solution to test and validate the performance
of antennas. Its drones, equipped with specialised
instruments, collect data efficiently and accurately
without the need for manual labour.

In May 2023, the Company completed a £2.1m follow-
on investment in SatVu as part of the company's
£13m Series A2 round. Shortly after the closing of this
round, SatVu launched its first satellite (HOTSAT1). This
funding round will allow the business the runway to
start executing on over £100m of commercial interest
and provide meaningful headway to the launch of the
second satellite in its constellation. SatVu is deploying
a constellation of infrared sensing satellites. Using this
constellation, the business will be able to monitor the
temperature of any building on the planet in near real
time to determine valuable insights about economic
activity, energy efficiency and carbon footprint.
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FOLLOW-ON CASE STUDY:

SATVU

Investment thesis

Finding a way to pinpoint the worst energy-wasting buildings on a global scale is a pressing issue

if the world is to achieve Net Zero.

By measuring the thermal footprint of any building on the planet, SatVu's high resolution, high
revisit infrared satellite constellation holds the key to resolving this issue.

Round
£13m Series A2.

SSIT investment

Total : £6.7m (Seed, Series A and Series A2).
Series A2: £2.1m.

Co-investors
Molten Ventures, AO Proptech, Lockheed Martin, In-Q-Tel.

Problem

Infrared (IR) has a unique capability to 'see’ inside buildings/
objects. This holds vast potential for gathering intelligence for
defence, economic activity and energy efficiency applications.
Existing IR satellites are government-operated, cost hundreds
of millions of Dollars and lack the resolution or revisit required
for these applications.

34

Solution

SatVu is developing the world's first constellation of mid-wave
IR small satellites that represent a10-100x reductionin costand
weight versus existing government satellites.

Market
Defence, intelligence, industrial monitoring, climate.

Latest news
- First satellite launched by SpaceX on 12 June 2023.

« Closed £13m Series A2 round, extending cash runway until at
least September 2024.

- Gathered pipeline of 50+ pre-contracts with options to
purchase £100m+inimagery.

Seraphim Space investment Trust PLC
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FOLLOW-ON CASE STUDY:

D-ORBIT

Investment thesis

D-Orbitis the leader in the nascent ‘space taxi’ market offering last mile delivery services for
customers' satellites. Beyond its pioneering space taxi services, the company innovates with
high-margin ancillary offerings, including using its ION spacecraft for on-orbit cloud computing
and in-space logistics, carving a path to become a cornerstone in the new space economy.
Leveraging its unique capabilities and vision, D-Orbit is on track not only to dominate the space
taxi sector but also to explore lucrative avenues in space servicing and cloud infrastructure,
promising substantial growth and value.

/V Round
: / Convertible loan bridge round.

S-o==1Ir SSIT investment

Total: £10.7m.
Bridge round: €5m.

Co-investors
Large Ventures, Indaco, Neva.

Problem

Rideshare models, like SpaceX, are limitedinthe orbitsthey can
achieve. The rapidly growing smallsat market lacks reliable,
efficient means to deliver satellites to specific orbits.

Solution

D-Orbit's breakthrough IONs combine low-cost rideshare
with targeted, quick satellite delivery. After launch, IONs form
a '‘pseudo constellation’, adaptable for varied high-margin
applications and potential in-orbit services.

Market

Space logistics (€1bn+}, in-space computing (€3bn+).

Latest news
- Launched 11th successful mission.
- Delivered over a hundred payloads in total to orbit.

- Won €26m contract from ESA for IRIDE, an earth observation
programme. D-Orbit will design and build a synthetic aperture
radar satellite with an additional €24m option.

+ Won another 3 multi-million Euro contracts with ESA and AS!.

- Completed10-monthin-orbit cloud computing demonstration
with AWS,
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Disposals

In the year, the Company received £3.3m in proceeds from disposals. During a rally in November 2022, we took
the opportunity to sell down some of the Argqit holding at an average price of $8.48 per share in order to provide
some additional liquidity to support private portfolio companies. In addition, we sold one of the early stage portfolio
companies which had been fully written down back to its founder for a diminimis sum.

PORTFOLIO PERFORMANCE
Year ended 30 June 2023

Portfolio fair value change

4 . N\

FAIR VALUE (FV) PROGRESSION
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Portfolio cash runway

During the year, a number of the Company's investments completed funding rounds supported by new investors,
which provides strong external validation of the valuation progression of individual investments. 11 portfolio
companies that were in the portfolio at the start of the period raised 12 rounds. SSIT participated in the rounds of
seven of these portfolio companies.

The companies in the portfolio at the start of the year which raised rounds during the year largely experienced
positive valuations in those rounds as outlined below.
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17 PORTFOLIO COMPANIES CLOSED N EXISTING PORTFOLIO COMPANIES' [AS OF\
FUNDING ROUNDS Y22/ 23 START OF YEAR] ROUND PRICING FY22/ 23
2
6

B # Existing Companies Raising Internal Round
B # Existing Companies Raising External Round
D #New Companies Invested In

B/ # Companies Raising Up Rounds
B # Companies Raising Down Rounds
B # Companies Raising Flat Rounds

B # Companies Raising Unpriced Rounds

\ J

The average cash runway of the private portfolio from 30 June 2023M is 20 months. 87% of the fair value of the
private holdings has a cash runway to 30 June 2024 or beyond. The chart below shows the material holdings' cash
runways and their syndicates' strength and ability to support future capital needs of the businesses. Syndicate
strength is an area we assess prior to investment. We note that some of the larger holdings with 12 months’ or less
cash runway are in the advanced stages of closing significant additional capital before the end of 2023 which will
materially extend their cash runways. In addition, some of the larger holdings are now forecasting that they will
become cashflow positive without requiring additional funding.

\
(MATERIAL HOLDINGS(! CASH RUNWAY VS. STRENGTH OF SYNDICATE
Strong
Syndicate
N
Average cash runway of the private
portfolio =20 months
! O
Weak
Syndicate Key=Q) Fair value
0 4 8 12 16 20 24+
Cash Runway (Months)?
M Private holdings with fair value of more than 1%, bubble size represents fair value.
K'Z’ Runway {months from 30 June 2023} including post period-end raise. )

" Fair value weighted average (as defined in the Glossary on page 162} number of months of cash runway from 30 June 2023 for the private holdings
representing 97% of fair value, taking into account cash as at 30 June 2023 and any funding raised post period end. Source: Portfolio company data.
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Listed portfolio

Continued share price reductions of three of the listed portfolio companies {Arqit, Spire Global and AST
SpaceMobile) led to an aggregate fair value decrease of £9.1m (£8.0m excluding FX losses) over the year. In
aggregate, the listed portfolio represented just 2% of NAV and 3% of portfolic fair value at the end of the year
(fair value vs. cost: 13.0%, down from 44.7% at 30 June 2022). These listed companies continue to experience
depressed share prices, similar to that experienced by other companies which went public via mergers with special
purpose acquisition companies {'SPACs'), as shown on the chart below by the DeSPAC Index. We believe that the
greater reductions seen by the listed portfolio companies' share prices than that experienced by the DeSPAC Index
is likely driven by the fact that both Arqit and AST SpaceMobile were able to raise additional funding in the year
{albeit at a discount to their share prices which would have caused further downward pressure). Positively, there
appear to be some signs of improvement in the IPO market, with the venture capital-backed and private equity-
backed IPO indices both up at the year end and since.

' )
PRICE TOTAL RETURN SINCE 1 JULY 2022 [REBASED TO 100)
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J

On 18 November 2022, Nightingale listed on the Australian Stock Exchange raising AUD5m (ASX: NGL; fair value
vs. cost: n/ m). The Company had previously fully provided against this portfolio company, which had been acquired
for zero consideration from Seraphim Space LP as part of the Initial Portfolio, and the fair value was £0.1m as at
30 June 2023. Nightingale offers an autonomous drone perimeter security service designed to enhance physical
security at large, sensitive facilities, including critical infrastructure such as ports and nuclear power facilities
through to Fortune 500 companies.

Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC
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Private portfolio

The private portfolio, which comprises the main part of the Company's investments representing 97% of fair value
and 82% of NAV, continued to deliver robust performance, with its fair value closing the year at 119% vs. cost {123%
excluding FX losses), down from 122% on 30 June 2022 {117% excluding F X). These businesses continue to deliver
solid revenue and bookings growth driven by solid fundamentals in their core focus areas (especially global security
and climate change/ sustainability).

As explained above, a number of portfolio companies raised funding at flat or higher prices than their previous rounds.
This led to increasing underlying fair value for a number of the main portfolio companies, SatVu {fair value vs. cost:
218%), D-Orbit (fair value vs. cost: 183%)}, Astroscale (fair value vs. cost: 105%), QuadSAT (fair value vs. cost: 150%)
and Pixxel (fair value vs. cost: 153%j). In addition, the recalibration exercise and sustained strong performance led
us to mark up the value of ICEYE (fair value vs. cost: 115%). This was more than offset by the combined impact of
FX losses and portfolio companies which saw reducing fair value driven by reductions in enterprise values due to a
combination of underperformance against expectations, limited cash runways and lower priced rounds, including
PlanetWatchers (fair value vs. cost: 86%), ALL..SPACE (fair value vs. cost: 109%), Altitude Angel (fair value vs. cost:
167%), Edgybees (fair value vs. cost: 0%), Xona Space Systems (fair value vs. cost; 84%) and LeoLabs (fair value
vs. cost: 106%).

4 )
MATERIAL PRIVATE HOLDINGS FAIR VALUE VS. COST
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(continued)

Valuation policy

In respect of private company valuations, fair
value is established by using recognised valuation
methodologies, in accordance with the International
Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation ('IPEV’)
Guidelines. The Company has a valuation policy for
unquoted securities to provide an objective, consistent
and transparent basis for estimating their fair value in
accordance with IFRS as well as the IPEV Guidelines.
The unquoted securities valuation policy and the
associated valuation procedures are subject to review
on a regular basis, and updated as appropriate, in line
with industry best practice.

In summary, the Company determines fair value in
accordance with the IPEV Guidelines by focusing on
updatingthe enterprise value (either through there being
a new funding round or through a valuation calibration
exercise or adjustment for milestones) and then
applying the implied equity value (based on adjustments
for new debt, etc) to the company’s capital structure
{i.e. preference stack). In the event of commercial (or
technical) underperformance of a portfolio company,
a write down can then also be applied, typically in
increments of 25% to reduce fair value.
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All valuations are considered on a quarterly basis and
calibrated against the price of the last funding round.
However, given valuation volatility during 2022/ 23, to
ensure appropriate NAV reporting, the Board initiated a
process to recalibrate, across an increased number of
datapoints, the material portfolio companies (i) whose
last funding rounds took place more than 12 months
earlier or (iij which had experienced a significant
milestone event or material under-or over-performance
(each a ‘recalibration event'). This process entails
assessingthe enterprise value following the most recent
round against a composite of four elements: observable
market data (where possible), recent relevant private
investment transactions, public market valuations of
comparable companies and the company’s internal
metrics and performance. This exercise further
strengthens the valuation process with the goal of
preserving shareholder confidence in the NAV during
volatile market conditions and will be conducted when a
recalibration event occurs and every quarter thereafter
until a new priced funding round is completed.
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{continued)

PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY
Year ended 30 June 2023

4 I
Portfolio attribution
* £4.9min new investments (2022: £117.5m) and £12.2m of follow-ons in the year (2022: £32.5m).
- £3.3min proceeds from disposals in the year {2022: £0.0m).
- £2.0m realised loss from partial sale of Argit and the exit of one of the early stage portfolio companies.
- Reduction in unrealised fair value of £3.7m during the year (2022: £9.2m) and a £6.8m unrealised FX loss
(2022: £16.8m gain).
+ £187.4m fair value of portfolio at the end of year (2022: £186.1m).
- 576bps decrease in closing portfolio fair value vs. portfolio cost, including FX movements (2022: 429bps
increase).
\ J
(ATTRIBUTION ANALYSIS OF MOVEMENTS IN THE FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENTS [£M] )
250
12.2
— ]
4.9 hsE— ] 187.4
200 1861 I I {3.3) (2.0) (3.7) I
{6.8)
150
100
50
© Opening Additions Follow-on Proceeds Realised Unrealised Unrealised Closing
from Gain/{Loss) Fair Value FX
Disposals Gain/(Loss) | Gain/(Loss)
- J
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(continued)

NAV
- £16.9m decrease in NAV (7.1% decrease) over the year to £222.4m (30 June 2022: £239.3m).
- £35.3m liquid resources (15.9% of NAV} at 30 June 2023 (30 June 2022: £57.7m).

NAV BRIDGE (£M) '
300
250 239.3
I 0 0.3 2224
(10.5)
(20) (29) n.9)
200
150
100
50
0 , ] . ,
Opening Unrealised Realised Management | Expenses Performance Other Closing
NAV Portfolio Gain/{Loss) Fee Fee (Accrual/ NAV
Fair Value Reversal)
Gain
NAV Per 99.97p 92.90p
Share:

NAV decreased from £239.3m to £222.4m during the year. This decrease of £16.9m was primarily a result of a
portfolio fair value decrease (including FX movements) with a £6.8m FX loss across the portfolio and a £8.0m
reduction in the underlying fair value of listed companies in aggregate more than offsetting a £4.3m increase in the
underlying fair value of private companies. Please see pages 38 and 39 for details of the fair value movement over
the year.

Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC
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The other movements in the chart above consist of a
realised loss for the year (£2.0m) from the sale of some
of the Arqit holding and one of the early stage companies,
management fees (£2.9m) and operating expenses
(E1.9m), partially offset by interest received (£0.3m).

The NAV per share decreased from 99.97p to 92.90p
over the year.

The Company is targeting an annualised total return
on the Company's portfolio of at least 20% over the
long term. The Company has no formal benchmark
index but has tracked its NAV per share and share price
movements against the following indices for reference.

- MSCI World Aero and Defence Index {£) - a significant
proportion of portfolio companies’ revenues are
derived from the broader aerospace and defence
industry and/ or have governments as significant
customers.

+ MSCI World Climate Change Index (£} - a significant
proportion of portfolio companies’ revenues are
derived from climate change products and services.

- FTSE All-Share Index (£) - the Company is listed on
the London Stock Exchange.

- NASDAQ (£) - the Company invests in SpaceTech, a
subset of the broader technology market, and two of
its listed holdings are listed on NASDAQ.

- Dow Jones Global Technology Index {£) -the Company
invests globally in SpaceTech, a subset of the broader
technology market.

- S&P Kensho Space Index (£) - the Company invests
globally in SpaceTech, a subset of the broader space
sector.

* Goldman Sachs Future Tech Leaders Equity ETF (£) -
the Company invests globally in SpaceTech, a subset
of the broader technology market.

On 30 June 2023, allindices were up year-on-year other
than NASDAQ.

4 I
SSIT NAV PER SHARE AND SHARE PRICE VS. VARIOUS INDICES
(B, TOTAL RETURN REBASED TO 100)
160
140
120 x Sy
100
80 \
60
40 ‘ ‘
30-Jun-22 16-Aug-22 02-Oct-22 18-Nov-22 04-Jan-23 20-Feb-23 08-Apr-23 25-May-23 11-Jul-23  27-Aug-23 13-Oct-23
e SSIT NAV Per Share (£) e SSIT Share Price (£)
emme MSCI World Aero and Defence Index (£) — MSCI World Climate Change index (£)
= FTSE All-Share Index (£} = NASDAQ Index (£)
Dow Jones Global Technology Index (£) —— S&P Kensho Space Index (£)
= Goldman Sachs Future Tech Leaders Equity ETF (£)
kSource: Datastream; Morningstar; Bloomberg j

As explained in the Share Price section on pages 18 and 19, the Company's share price has been significantly

more volatile thanits NAV per share.
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QUARTERLY VALUATION CHANGES
In the three months ended 30 June 2023

During the quarter ended 30 June 2023, the fair value
{adjusted for acquisitions and disposals over the quarter)
rose by £3.9m, increasing fair value to 98.5% vs. cost
{101% excluding FX losses).

An FXloss of £4.2m and fair value reductions at Altitude
Angel (£3.6m), Xona Space Systems (£1.1m) and
PlanetWatchers {£0.9m), driven by underperformance,
were more than offset by fair value increases driven
by new funding rounds at D-Orbit (£3.8m), LeoLabs
(£3.5m), Pixxel (£1.2m) and SatVu (E0.7m) as well as a
premium being applied to ICEYE's enterprise value due
to strong performance leading to a £4.1m increase in
fair value.

POST YEAR END DEVELOPMENTS

Investment activity has continued since the end of
the year, with a further £4.1m invested. One follow-
on investment of £2.8m was made into ALL.SPACE,
an existing portfolio company in the main portfolio. In
addition, there were two foliow-on investments, totalling
£0.5m, and two new investments, totalling £0.9m, into
early stage companies.

TEAM UPDATE

Investment team members Andre Ronsoehr, Maureen
Haverty and Lewis Jones were all promoted recently
to Investment Partner, Investment Principal and
Investment Vice President, respectively. In addition,
Zainab Qasim joined the investment team as an
Investment Analyst on 1 April 2023 having previously
worked at the affiliated Seraphim Space Accelerator.

OUTLOOK

We remain confident with the outlook for the space
domain globally and SSIT's portfolioc of best-of-
breed SpaceTech companies. We continue to enjoy
the privileged position of seeing the majority of the
sector's global deal flow. This provides an information
asymmetry over the sectorthatinforms our every move.

Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC

With the secular trends relating to global security, food
security, climate change and sustainability expected to
accelerate, we believe the Company is well-positioned
to take advantage of the resultant opportunities. We
anticipate that demand for the products and services of
the Company’s portfolio companies, particularly from
governments, should result in the portfolio delivering
strong growth metrics.

Asat13October2023,cashwas£29.4m, with apotential
further £3.0m of liquidity available in the holdings of
listed companies. We believe this liquidity should be
sufficient to provide the necessary levels of support
to the portfolio over the course of the next 12 months.
Whilst we expect to continue to diversify the portfolio
with selective new investments, uncertainty around the
timing of market recovery (and, therefore, our ability
to raise new equity capital) means that the size of new
investments will likely be small, with investment activity
expected to be more weighted in favour of supporting
the existing portfolio until a time when the market
provides the appropriate conditions to fundraise.

A

MARK BOGGETT
CEO

SERAPHIM SPACE MANAGER LLP

Investment Manager

16 October 2023
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STRATEGIC REPORT

- PORTEOLIO

At 30 June 2023

PORTFOLIO SNAPSHOT

TOP 10 INVESTMENTS
FAIR VALUE AS % OF FAIR VALUE

£187.4M 85.7%

(2022: £186.1M) (2022 87.0%)

PRIVATE PORTFOLIO LISTED PORTFOLIO .
FAIR VALUE VS. INITIAL COoST FAIR VALUE VS INITIAL COST

GE‘ POR\TFQO’LI.O COMP"ANY MWERLHEE PORTFOLIC GOMPANY
UTERGIR{O;WATZH1 1L BIOIOIKFINIGISRGIR{O}WaTAHLL

34% 1999

AVERAGE GABRH RBUNWAY OF
TOVAL MONEY RAIBED BY ThE FRIVATE PORTFOLIO
PRIVATE PORTFOLIO COMAPANIESE FiRON &0 JUNE 2Ry

CSEEENM  2@MONTE

Sl Fainvalue weighted average (as defined in the Glossary,on page,162) year-on:year. growth for,the 12 months ended 300une 2023 of the top,10 holdings?
representing 86% of fair value (72% of NAV) atthe year end. Source: Portfolio company data®

2 Between 1July 2022 and 30 June 2023Source: Portfolio company data®

S Fairvalue weightedaverage (as definedinthe Glossary on page 162) number of months of cash runway from 30 June 2023 for the private holdings representing
97% of fairvalue, taking into account cash as at the year end and any funding raised post period end! Source: Portfolio company data
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PORTFOLIO HIGHLIGHTS

¢ We are delighted with the progress the portfolio has made during the year. The portfolio has
proven itself adept at successfully accessing ccapital at a time when the wider fundraising -

environment has been challenging. It is.particularly gratifyihg that-many of these companies

have closed _fundir‘\g‘ ‘roqn_‘d‘s.
previous funding rounds. The success'i
due to the impressiv '

1,capital raising across the;

d.by. newinvestors .and.on improved terms relative to their,
tfolio is in'no small part
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HOLDINGS

30 June 30 June
2023 2022

Cost® Fair value®™ % of Fair value
Company Sub-sector HQ £m £m NAV £m

ICEYE Earth Observation Finland 396 455 20.4% 43.3

D-Orbit In-orbit Services Italy n7 AR 9.6% 127

ALL.SPACE Ground Terminals UK 195 AW 9.5% 24.9

HawkEye 360 Earth Observation us 186 206 9.3% 206

SatVu Earth Observation UK 6.7 14.7 6.6% 78

LeolLabs Data Platforms us n7s 12.4 56%

Astroscale In-orbit Services 9.4 9.8 4.4% 77

Altitude Angel Data Platforms 37 6.2 2.8% 9.0

PlanetWatchers Data Analytics 56 4.8 2.2% 81

Tomorrow.io Data Platforms 4.2 3.9 1.8% 4.

Top 10 investments 130.7 160.6 72.2% 151.9

e mOther investments . DRSO 51 X - PUIUNWRRION < K BPUNPRGUIN - X° L/ SN2 I A —

Non-material investments 6.0 70 31% 4.5

Total investments 190.2 187.4 84.3% 186.1

Net current assets 350 15.7% 63.2

Totalassets 222.4 100.0% 239.3

M ncludes new and follow-on investments and disposals, where relevant, made since 30 June 2022 of £11.8min aggregate.

{L_eoLa ) radar,sitesen monitoring of space objects and characteris
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\

Platform/,Earth Observation

Privatel,Soonicorn

Stake category JII> 52106
115%

———————
\Valuation methodRremium to price.of recent investment

gperatesiithelworldisfirstifandiiargest
constellationfoffminiaturisedlsatellitesithatfuselraday
tolimage;thelearthlbothl dayand[nightfeven]
through cloudMCEYEisradantechnologyhas the ability,

to.monitonchange,inneagrealtime!

Total estimated long:-term addressable market:
10bn&

Key,sectors addressed:
Insurancerdefencerclimate

Recent keydevelopments:

Ll CE YE]US]awarded]Szyeagblanketipurchaselagreementlbyj

NASAforusein Earth Science and Research?
A d betarelease ofiwildfire Insights product¥a first of

o AN (D QIR o EE Raemeiis © dho
° partnership with] jand RvahsatftoXbuild]

national satellite and remote sensing capabilities within the UAE!
° Sged D CNEHIS o MED ©

LI¥FAnnounced partnershipto provide radargimaging satellite for;

i

Principal UN SDG alignment:

CIIMATE,
ACTION
G

SUSTAIABLE CITILS,
AND COUMUNTIIS

AR

285

\—

Fairyvalue vs'costR183%

Valuation method JCalibrated price of recentinvestment
D2Orbitlislthelmarketileaderinithelspacellogisticsland,

orbitaltransportationsernvicesindustry.

;

iTotal estimated long:term addressable market:
Key,sectors addressed:

Space logisticsYdatacentres

Recent keydevelopments:

LB SecuredfoudmultizmillionjEurofcontractsfwith]European)
Space [agencyland]italian]SpaceJagencyYincludinglonelof]
£26m and one of £6m!

o inISifted]asloneJoffEurope’slieading]

LXCompleted JR10;monthJedge Jcomputing Jllin Blspace)

demonstration with’AmazonWeb Services!

Principal UN SDG alignment:

m RISPONSEBLS
CONSUMPTION

DUCTIOH,

9 INDUSTRY, INNOVATION,
AND INFRASTRUCTURE

BECEHT WORK AND
FCOROKIC GROVTH

i
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110%™
N
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WeD)
V3iliation methodCalibrated price o ecentinvestmeny

satelliteconnectivitybydevelopinganantennacapablel

I Total estimated long:termaddressable market!

Recent key developments:
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l

[l (post period)
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Oy et
Privatel Minicorn

Valuation methodCalibrated price of recent investment

:

SatVulisTaiming]tolmonitordtheltemperaturefof]
building @nmammmmmaaa

Valuabic)insightslintoleconomicactivity energy;
efficiency,and.carbon footprint?

iTotal estimated long;term addressable market:

1$125b0]

Key sectors addressed:

Energy/property

Recent key developments:
Ll Taunched fitsRfirstifsatelliteM(HOTSATIN) NonRFalcon JO)
transportern8onj12Yune 2023"

LB Closed additional £13m of funding as part of Series’A2 round!

° pipelineJof§s0:gprescontractsEwithFoptionshtol

purchase £100m+inimagery!

Seraphim Space podcastlink:

Principal UN SDG alignment:
AHURDABIL AND SUSTAINABLE CITIES
CLEAN ENEREY, AKD COMMUNTTIES

1P
™7,

o

CLIMATL
ACTION
G

\

& LEOLABS

iWeb) leolabs’space]
HQ]

—_— —
;Taxonomy, Product/ Data Rlatforms

Private/ Minicorn

Stake category JI0;5%]
Fairvalue vs'costj106%

Valuation method BCalibrated price of recent investment
(post period)

;

TeolfabslisIprovidinglthelmapping]servicelforfspace]
by, ingfallnetworldoffground basedfantennas]
lsmalllasi2cmlasfaras]

iTotal estimated long-term addressable market:
1$1.5b0]

Key sectors addressed:
Spacelinsuranceldefence

Recent key developments:
LY E xpandedlitsiradagInetworkliolBlsiteslwithlanotherfunder

L¥Awarded contractywith,theMapanese,MoD,to provide,space

situational awareness?

LR \Won sole source contract with US Department of Commerce?

validating that 'eol!abs is the only realviable alternative data
source to US Space Surveillance Network!

¥ Continued fsuccessllin}

revenue baselincluding several large satellite constellations?
L¥Showcased lits) manoeuvre;detection jlidashboard|

[demonstrating lsuspiciouslmovementsMfrom Madversaryj

Principal UN SDG alignment:

9 INDUSTRY, (NOVARON RESPONSIBIE, PARTNERSHIPS
AND INTRASTRUCTURE, CONSUMPTION 108 THE GUALS S

ARD PRODUCTION Q
D
l 2
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RORTEOTIC I

H
HO) 2pan)
Taxonomy, Beyond Earth/In‘orbit Services

[Status] Private], Soonicorn

Stake category I 0:5%)
105%
——————————————

R Valuation method JCalibrated price of recent investment

Astroscalelistalgloballleaderfoffspacesustainability

solutionstitis’currently,developing a setof,capabilities
Maroundffsatellite] upgrading}

and] t0] aRvibrantflinzorbit
leconomy

Total estimated long:term addressable market:

7

Key sectors addressed:
Spacetdefence

Recent key developments:

* Callufig et G Gaiko @ (i @i
CY?23! GaylefSheppard fformerg
CorporatedvRland[CTOYaMicross Y and]EricalNewiands

former,Einance Directonat Intelltoits board!

L& OpenedfsubsidiaryfandJofficefin]Erancefandfannounced]
partnershipfwithECNESH(the] French]SpacefAgency)fthat]
includes]funded[study}forfactiveldebrisiremoval[of[Erench
A

Principal UN SDGalignment:

OLCENT WORK AND
AND INFRASTRUCTURE ECONDMIC GROVAH,

ESPONSIBIE]
CONSUMPTION,
AKD PRODUCTION

co

9 INDUSTRY. [NNOVATION

e I il £ L

A'F f
Nl | v

L! ; :
7 A -LETHI‘LT‘ {UNoY=

. ’7,5’3{_ ¥
Sors O BRI

BWeb] altitudeangel.com
H,
—

[ Status) Private/Minicorn

Ystrecaeoe I 5250
57

Valuationmethod RMilestonestmarket comparables

Waiticudegangel PXcloud;based)

Total estimated long;termaddressable market:
$10bn+

Keysectors addressed:

ogistics?aviation

Recent key developments:

[ B256km drone superhighway announcement made in UKA
LM Received backing from BTyGroup's Incubation Hub?

° rollinglioutfipurpose;builtilliowsaltitudeMaviation]
surveillance network®

Principal UN SDG alignment:

9 INDUSTRY. INNOVATION
AND [NFRASTRUCTURE

SUSTANABLE CITIES
AND COMMUKITIES

fitl

DLCENT WORK AND,
ECOROMIC CROVTH,

f

BTaxonomyl Product/ Data Platforms .

itsfsoftwarelpowersithelworldsYfirstiskylcorridorfors
[dronesy »

&8 df

)

\S
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[Web]
Ha] K]

jlaxonomy;
Status]
2545000

Valuation method RPartialwrite downtopriceofirecent
investment]

RlanetWatchersElhasEldevelopedila nilA Lenabled
fanalytics¥platformBusingRsatelliteNradaimagenvlfoy
CropimonitoringYinsurancefandfautomatedfinsurance

iTotal estimated long:term’addressable market:
$5210bn

Key,sectors’addressed:
Agriculturetinsurance¥climate

Recent key.developments:

.S UccessiullylexpandedfcustomerfifootprintwithiniNorth]
famericanfcropfinsurancelmarketRduringRCY:2 3¥growing]

lseasony
Ll FaunchedICropCycle] fas¥secondlproductiiine}to]
[provide easiefaccess tocrop,intelligence!

LS atellitezbased facreage (productEnowdreaching]
precisionhighenthan 90%inmany,cases?

Principal UN SDG alignment:

@ZH}ID

&

[AKD PRODUCTICH)

@)

\

L

N

\Web]

HO] US]

ATaxonomy]
Status]
Stake category JIO;00¢]

10350}
Valuation method MCalibrated priceofirecentinvestment]

flomosrowtiolisfpoweringfactionablelweatheginsights]
aroundithefworldMnhefcompanyasfmissiongisitoghelp]
CountriesYbusinessesfandlindividualsibettegfmanage]
theid (withElth elbest
informationfandlinsightst

iTotal estimated long:term'addressable market:
$30bng

Key,sectorsaddressed:

[TogisticsTaviationTmantimelgovernmentcivil

LS ccesstullyllaunchedffinstitwolsatellitesNorllitsEplanned]
(R Conmpletedfs87m]SeriesyERfundraisingYledIbvAUSIgrowth]
Ll (YaunchedKGaleligenerativelA fplatformBioReffortiessly]

Conver tifclimateffandRweatheldatallintolpredictiveland]

Principal UN SDG alignment:

DLCLNT VIOREAKD, @ RISPONSIEL
8 [ CoibuIC CROTIH, [CORS A E 0]

[AND PROTUCTION]
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~
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BCASElSTUDYE2 JUKRAINE

Feb;_l_@_rly2022 haslresultedlin devastatmg humanjtoll/and
W|despreadd|splacemer)t_£\s fJu|y2023 over@ 0000va
he_l_v_e]been recorded deadfandfmorekthanki6 Ooghjured
thouglbe UN belleves thefactuallnumbers]are hlgherme
warh,__g_g also laft nearly OO OOO .troops elther dead omjured
with ‘estimates of up to 120:000 Ru55|an and 70,0 0 UKrainian
soldiers killed!

Dlsplacement The conflicthas forced millions of Ukrainians to
erethelr HomestWith anational populatlon exceed:ﬂlﬂ million)
about l76 million]people r\ow requireJurgent humamtarlan
supportjOver 5. million people have beenﬂ'nternally splacec
and EUrope is hosting nearly 6 mllllon UKrainian refugees!

Westernjfsanctionsghave d|srupted global ma_r__kets I_<ey
commodlt@ke ol wheatiand metals have,witnessed prlce
ey ACL

surges trlggerlng E) global food crisis and contributing to recent
mcreasesmlnflatlonWestern m forUkralneLasalso

Role of space in supporting Ukraine

Commercial satellite imaging: Satellite imagery provided by,commercial
providerstand fthatusshareablewnl@llesh@been mtegraltonralne 3
defenceSatelllte [MECERAES prowdewvaluable intelligence.on Russian
troop Iocatlons andJmovements? Satellltelmages post~attacks have
assessed ‘damagersuch'as aftenthe Kakhovka hydroelectric dam incident?
SARI lmagmg can monitor, troop movements underdiverse condltlons (cloud
A I =y, ——— - T S—— - S—
and ni night)! Tinfrared candetectartillery fire and Iocations of intense fighting !

Cwmunlcatlon and|[coordination: Commermal satelllte constellations
b geyp————
liKe Starlink anc and,Viasat have ensured that mi military,units fs:and civilian groups
despecually during commumcahont:'lackouts in‘certain
remain,connecte j,comm
reglonslt Ras even been used to stream live feed i imagery back from drones
to'command centres'y!!

Open sourcemtelllgence(OSINT) in Ukraine: Activists and independent
analysts haveJused satelllte lmages tracktroopbunldups along the
i i nirealitim of;

weapons targetmgUkramlan forces losing

week as a resultYUKrainian forces have resorted to_'all_ternatlves like terrain
matchmgand supp_le_m_entmg GPSIwith'communication Satellitelsignals el

https:/iwww.reuters.com/world/europe/blood;billions;cost-

https:/iinters

80859888818

NM2RjUCWw5'ewgOdC76iR&ghE:cou_nte'r7 "

ICEYE delivered the capamty of . one ofjits satellltes to,the,Ukrainian government
through'a partnershlp with th‘e'?e’rhw Prytula Charity FoundatlonThls*peopIe S
satellltmurchased wnth donatlons from Ukralma_ns‘has‘smcetp_layed

role‘Wlthnn five monthsol of its deployment the sate satellite enabled UKrainian Defence
Intelligence to detect and targety7,

HawkEye 360s s:gmflgelotly aldmg effortsinthe Ukraine conflictthroughits unique
satellite technology Est ablushedwth tlﬁlssﬁn"(‘)’f offerlngcommermalmce-
based RFdataand analytlcsHawkEye 360’5 satelllte%tellatlon canldetect
radio waves emitted
T his capablllty allows for,the identification of enemy troop. concentratlons, whlch is
crumal for, understandmg troowvements and poge_ntlal threats on the battlefield!
InJUKRraine! HawkE%T?GO scapab|l|t|es prowde|nva|uab|e|nS|gpts that hel%\
strateglc de0|5|o-n'mak|ng 'on the ground \The cg_rp_p_eg‘y s satellite dataycombined
with advancg_q'analytlf:"s‘offers a comprehensive,view of activitiesTstrengthening
UKraine s situational awareness amidst the conflictiy]

[EEESNEIR
https:{/lwww.economist.com/interactive/briefing/2023/02/23|dataifromIsatellitessreveal;the;vastiextents
https:/iwww.defenseone.com/technology/ 2023/03/blackZswan:stariinks unexpected:boon;ukrainesdefenders/383514]
https://www.economist’ comllnteractlvellnternatlonaIIZOZSIOlllSlopen sourceiintelligenceiist plercmg ithezfog: of-war-m LS
https:/lwww.economist'com/special;report/2023/07/03/the;latest:initheibattieof-jammingiwithi electronicibeams
https: /lwww.economist.com/specialireport/2023]07]03]theiwar;in;ukraineIshows:howitechnology
tive'satellitetoday.com/vialnovember; 2022 how;satelliteZimageryzmagnified-ukraine
https: IIne_wé'\?aho_o'EbﬁHldefence'inteIIigence'reports'quantity,'russiah'—ll0700367 htﬁll’)guce

https:{linteractive’satellitetoday.com/fviajaugust-2023Junleashing;the;power;of;rf;datal
https:[lwww.nytimes.com/2023/05/21/us/politics/start:ups;weaponspentago

al plvotal

321 pieces of Russian military equipment2!’

by.cc communication equipment and other.electronic device

ukraine;2023;0823

of;fightingzin;ukraine

ichangingithe
tostheiworld!

4

iprocurement.html
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STRATEGIC REPORT

RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT

6 Many of the technologies being developed by the portfolio
companies are delivering ESG impact in key areas such
as climate change, sustainability and security. In addition,
as the portfolio companies continue to grow and develop, @
their ESG resourcing and risk management is maturing. p g
The Investment Manager is focused on helping portfolio
companies on this ESG journey and engaging in industry

forums to ensure the potential impact that space can
make is understood and leveraged. 9

Sarah Shackleton
COO, Seraphim Space

Being a responsible investor and taking into
consideration environmental, social and governance
{'ESG’) factors are paramount to the way the Company
and Investment Manager operate.

The Investment Manager is a signatory to Principles of
Responsible Investment, the UN-supported network
of investors dedicated to promoting sustainable
investment through incorporating ESG factors into their
investment and ownership decisions (the ‘UNPRY’),

During the year, Seraphim Space was involved
in the consultation process to develop the Space
Sustainability Principles by the Earth & Space
Sustainability Initiative (‘"ESSI')".

RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT POLICY

The Investment Manager's Responsible Investment
Policy, which has been adopted by the Company, may
be found at https://seraphim.vc/esgl. The Investment
Manager will update its Responsible Investment Policy
as necessary to reflect emerging regulations and
best practices.

The Directors and Investment Manager believe that
ensuring robust assessment of ESG-related risks and
opportunities as part of the investment analysis and
decision-making processes leads to investment in
more robust businesses, ultimately creating long-term,
sustainable value.

M https:/lwww.essi.org/newsfessis-memorandum-of-principles-for-space-sustainability-full-signatory-list-published

Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC
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RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT

(continued)

Potential Sustainability Impact

SpaceTechis a powerful new industry which can contribute significantly to achieving the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals (the 'SDGs’) andtheir underlyingtargets. The extentto which our portfolio companies contribute
tothe SDGs s seen as a key factor in the success of our investment strategy and, as such, considerations of this are
also an integral part of Seraphim Space’s decision-making process. Each portfolio company contributes to at least
two, and up to 11, SDGs. In addition, every SDG is addressed by at least one portfolio company. SDG 8 {(economic
growth} and SDG 9 (innovation/ infrastructure) are, unsurprisingly, the most common SDGs, with at least 20 portfolio
companies contributing to each of these.

The scorecard below shows the SDGs being addressed by the companies in SSIT's main portfolio.

SDG | SDG | SDG | SDG | SDG {SDG | SDG | SDG | SDG | SDG | SDG | SDG

8 n 15 17
Portfolio company name i - EE o "1.2 ‘&‘
ALL.SPACE 4 (4 v v
Altitude Angel v 4 4 v v
Arqit v v v
AST SpaceMobile v v v v 4 v v v v
Astroscale v v v
D-Orbit v v v
Edgybees 4 v v '
HawkEye 360 v v v l \
ICEYE v v v v v v v v v v “
LeolLabs v v v
Nightingale ' v v v v
Pixxel v v v v v v v v v
PlanetWatchers v v v v
QuadSAT v v
SatVu v v v v v v v (4 v v
Spire Global v v v v v v v v v v v
Taranis v v 4 v v v
Tomorrow.io v v 4 v v v v v v v
Voyager 4 v v v v
Xona Space Systems 4 v 4 v

Source: Portfolio company information; Seraphim Space analysis
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RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT

{continued)

Seraphim Spacerecently accepted aninviteto participate
in the United Nations' Data Expert Group convened to
support the UN's efforts for designing and implementing
a global environmental data strategy by 2025. The
symposium was focused on how ‘Big Data’ can be used
more effectively to support the achievement of the SDGs.
Space data will be integral to achieving this, and through
Seraphim Space's continued participation in the UN's
Data Expert Group, we will continue advocating for the
critical role we expect many of our portfolio companiesto
play in ensuring our planet has a sustainable future.

Ownership and ESG reporting

Each portfolio company is actively encouragedtointegrate
ESG considerations in their business strategies and value
creation plans. Seraphim Space works with the boards and
management teams of portfolio companies to identify and
address sustainability risks, capitalise on opportunities and
meet established ESG objectives in their own operations
and throughout their value chains and with co-investors to
increase collective influencein these areas.

in situations where a portfolio company fails to
address adequately any significant risks identified
at investment, Seraphim Space will take this into
consideration when assessing follow-on investment
opportunities into the company.

in September| October 2022, Seraphim Space organised
training sessions delivered by sustainability consultancy
Sancroft International for the management teams of the
portfolio companies. Intended as an introduction to ESG
and the generaltopics of focus for funders and society as
a whole, it also covered the key opportunities and risks
specific to the SpaceTech sector, including materiality,
climate change and human rights, as well as the SDGs
and examples of impact in the portfolio.

Following the first collection of ESG data from the
portfolio, as explained below, Seraphim Space is
engaging with the portfolio companies to encourage
them to implement further measures to mitigate risk
and drive impact and opportunities.

OBJECTIVE REPORTING METRICS FOR €SG FACTORS

PERCENTAGE OF DESIRED MEASURES!
INPLACE ACROSS THE PORTFOLIO®
TO MANAGE ESG RISK

PROPORTION OF THE ACTIVE PORTFOLIO
WITH A FOUNDER WHO IDENTIFIES AS
FEMALE OR FROM AN ETHNIC MINORITY

©&7°%

20°

SENIOR MANAGEMENT IDENTIFYING AS
FEMALE OR FROM AN ETHNIC MINORITY
WITHIN THE PORTFOLIO®

SERAPHIM SPACE STAFF®
IDENTIFYING AS FEMALE/ FROM
AN ETHNIC MINORITY

21%

S5@°k12@°%

AVERAGE PORTFOLIO COMPANY
HEADCOUNT GROWTH!

PERCENTAGE OF ENERGY CONSUMPTION
THAT IS RENEWABLE!?

22.1%

30°o

M Desired measures as explained in the 'ESG governance and risk management section' on page 65. Source: Portfolio company data.
2 Fair value weighted average {as defined in the Glossary on page 162} of the portfolio companies providing information (which represents 95% of

the fair value as of 30 June 2023). Source: Portfolio company data.
¥ Includes Seraphim Space's affiliates.

@ Fair value weighted average (as defined in the Glossary on page 162) year-on-year growth for the 12 months ended 30 June 2023 of the top 10
holdings, representing 86% of fair value (72% of NAV) as at 30 June 2023. Source: Portfolio company data.

Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC
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RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT

(continued)

The Company began collecting ESG metrics, such as
carbon emissions, job creation and diversity, from CY22
{hence there are no comparable metrics for the prior
year in this report} and plans to increasingly report on
such metrics for the aggregate portfolio in the future.
In addition, the Company also collects qualitative
information around the following topics:

- effective board and risk management;

- business ethics, legal and compliance;

+ data security and customer privacy;

+ health and safety;

- employee engagement, diversity and inclusion;

- product quality and safety;

- community relations;

* energy management;

+ GHG emissions; and

+ materials management.

95% of the portfolio (by fair value as at 30 June
2023) provided the above data, with the remaining
5% comprised predominantly of listed portfolio

companies or private companies where SSIT has no
information rights.

ESG governance and risk management

The Investment Manager allocated points (up to a
maximum of 15) to private portfolio companies based
on the number of measures that it would like to see and
which they have in place to manage ESG risk, including
frequency of discussion of such topics by the board and
the policies and processes to assess and mitigate such
risks. On a fair value weighted basis, 67% of the desired
measures are in place across the portfolio (71% for
portfolio companies that are post Series A).

Diversity

A growing body of evidence suggests that diverseteams
are more innovative and achieve higher returns than
those with just one gender and/ or one race or ethnicity
represented”. The World Economic Forum cites
that teams that include a female founder outperform
all-male led teams by 63%W?. Forbes also outlines
the outperformance of diverse teams, explaining that
companies with at least one female or ethnically diverse
founder generate over 60%+ in business value®.
Despite this, 2019 data from Pitchbook and the National
Venture Capital Association suggests that venture
investors continued to be white {80%) and male (84%),
predominantly backing white, male founders (85% or
$136.5bn in 2019)%. The SSIT active portfolio includes
six companies (20%) with a founder that identifies as
female or from an ethnic minority.

Jiow ot

piati XS,

00
ey

Satellite imagery is used to track the development of a flood by measuring the depth of water on the ground.
M https:/iwww.forbes.com/sites/committeeof200/2020/09/22]diversity-as-uperpower-the-well-known-data-against-homogeneous-teams-in-

venture-capital/?7sh=228846b52019

2 https:/lwww.weforum.orglagenda/2021/05/close-gender-gap-venture-capital/

@ https:/lwww.forbes.com/sites/forbesbusinesscouncil|2022]05/26/diversity-the-holy-grail-of-venture-capital| ?’sh=8eb823a41787

W https:]lwww.forbes.com/sitesicommitteeof200/2020{09/22|diversity-as-uperpower-the-well-known-data-against-homogeneous-teams-in-

venture-capital/?sh=228846b52019
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RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT

{continued)

SSIT PORTFOLIO DIVERSITY STATISTICS

SSIT portfolio™

Fair value
weighted
Average  average? Industry comparisons
Board members identifying as female 9% 4%  Hightech companies 2020 - 8%®
Board members identifying as from an ethnic minority 7% 9%
Senior management identifying as female or from 19% 21%

an ethnic minority

Staff identifying as female or from an ethnic minority 27% 23% Venture capital-backed startups 2020
-men (89.3%) and white (71.6%)*

Sources: Portfolio company information; Seraphim Space analysis

M Data provided by portfolio companies representing 95% of the fair value as of 30 June 2023.
@ Fair value weighted average {as defined in the Glossary on page 162).
@ https:/itechcrunch.com|2021/08/29]diversifying-startups-and-vc-power-corridors/

“ https://venturebeat.com/games/diversity-vc-reports-1-87-of-venture-capital-allocated-to-women-and-minority-owned-startups/

Compared to the diversity information outlined in the BVCA and Level 20 Diversity and Inclusion Report (2023),
as at 30 June 2023, Seraphim Space outperformed the market in most categories as outlined in the chart below.
With 17% females in all senior roles, it is slightly below the industry at 20%, although the team is supported by
the SSIT Board which is 76% female. While Seraphim Space had no women in senior investment roles versus
the industry at 12% as outlined on page 44, Maureen Haverty was promoted post the year end to Investment
Principal (which would take the percentage to 20%), and the Investment Committee is 33% female. Together
with its affiliates, Seraphim Space has roughly the same proportion of people from ethnic minorities represented
as the industry at 20%.

erdphim Space Investment Trust PLC
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{continued)

[
AND VENTURE CAPITAL (PE/ VC]) INDUSTRY

120%

100%

SERAPHIM SPACE AND SSIT DIVERSITY COMPARED TO THE UK PRIVATE EQUITY ’ )

80%
60% .
4L0% II| III
20%
" I | in Il

[¢)
0% Women Women Women Women Women Women Women People from
insenior | in mid-level | injunior in all roles in all in all ethnic
investment | investment | investment senior mid-level junior minorities in
roles roles roles roles roles allroles

M UK PE/VC industry B Seraphim Space
B Seraphim Space + Affiliates B Seraphim Space Investment Committee
B SSIT Board

Source: Seraphim Space analysis; https://lwww.bvca.co.uk/Research{BVCA-Publications/Details/Diversity-and-Inclusion-2023-Report

Job creation

Continued strong revenue growth and the ability for portfolio companies to access the fundingthey requireis driving
headcountincreases, despite the difficult macroeconomic environment over the last 12 to 18 months. On a fair value
weighted basis, the top 10 holdings grew headcount by 22.1% in the 12 months to 30 June 2023.

Carbon emissions/ energy reduction

Given the fact that the private portfolio companies are relatively early in their life, a number are not yet measuring
energy consumption, and scope 1/2 and 3 carbon emissions are only measured by four and two private portfolio
companies, respectively. On afair value weighted basis, 30% of energy consumptionis renewable. We are engaging

with the portfolio companies to drive further work in this key area.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

BUSINESS REVIEW

BUSINESS MODEL

SSIT is the world's first and only listed SpaceTech
fund providing public access to private SpaceTech
businesses.

The Company carries on business as an investment
trust, which is a form of a collective investment vehicle
constituted as a closed-ended public limited company.
The Company’'s shares are traded on the premium
segment of the London Stock Exchange’s main market.

The Company has no employees. It is managed by the
Board, comprising four independent non-executive
Directors. The management of the Company's
investmentsin accordance withitsinvestment objective
and policy is delegated to the Investment Manager
and the Company's day-to-day functions, including
administrative, financial and share registration services,
are carried out by duly appointed service providers. The
Board oversees the activities and performance of the
Investment Manager and other key service providers.
As an investment company with no employees, we
believe that the best way to achieve SSIT's strategic
objectives is to have effective and strong working
relationships with the Investment Manager and other
key service providers.

The Company complies, where relevant, with the FCA's
Listing Rules, Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules and Prospectus Regulation Rules. In addition
to publishing its Annual and Interim Reports, the
Company announces regulatory, financial and portfolio
information on a periodic basis via the London Stock
Exchange, thereby helping current and potential
investors to make informed investment decisions.

Additional information is available on the Company's
website (https:/linvestors.seraphim.vc]).

INVESTMENT STRATEGY

The Company provides investors with exposure to

nascent Spacelech companies, being businesses

which rely on space-based connectivity or precision,
navigation and timing signals, or whose technology
or services are already addressing, originally derived
from or of potential benefit to the space sector.
These businesses comprise companies providing
the SpaceTech infrastructure for collecting and
communicating data, principally via satellites, as well

Seraphim Space Investment Trust PL.C

as companies with the technology that facilitates the
exploitation of this data for terrestrial applications in
areas such as climate, communications, mobility and
security {including cyber security).

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE

The Company's objective is to generate capital growth
over the long term through investment in a diversified,
international portfolio of predominantly early and
growth stage unquoted SpaceTech businesses with the
potential to dominate globally.

INVESTMENT POLICY

The Company seeks exposure to early and growth
stage privately financed SpaceTech businesses,

‘acquiring primarily minority holdings. The Company

intends to realise long-term value through exiting its
investments over time.

The Company invests internationally with a view to
maintaining a diversified portfolio primarily located in
the US, UK and Europe. The Company's portfolio is
expected to comprise 20 to 50 holdings. The Company
will at all times invest and manage the portfolio in a
manner consistent with spreading investment risk.

Investments are mainly in the form of equity and
equity-related instruments although the Company may
invest in a range of financial instruments including,
without limit, securities, derivatives, warrants, options,
futures, convertible bonds, convertible loan notes,
convertible loan stocks or convertible preferred equity.
The Company may also on occasioninvestin other debt-
based investments not referred to above, including,
without limit, loan stock, payment-in kind instruments
and shareholder loans. In addition to participating
in new issues, the Company may also undertake
secondary transactions that involve the acquisition of
existing stakes.

The Company may invest in companies, as well as
other forms of legal entity, including partnerships and
limited liability partnerships. The Company may acquire
investments directly or by way of holdings in special
purpose vehicles, intermediate holding entities or other
structures. The Company will not invest in other listed
closed-ended investment funds.
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Investment restrictions

The Company will invest and manage its assets with
the objective of spreading risk through the following
investment restrictions:

- other than the ability for the aggregate value of the
Company’s holding in one single portfolio company
or other entity to represent up to 20% of Gross Asset
Value, the aggregate value of the Company’s holding
in any other single portfolio company or other entity
willrepresent no more than 15% of Gross Asset Value;
and

- the Company’'s aggregate investment in publicly
quoted companies will represent no more than 30%
of Gross Asset Value.

The Company will generally only invest in publicly
quoted companies that constituted part of the Initial
Portfolio or the Retained Assets or in circumstances
where it has already made an initial investment prior to
the portfolio company's initial public offering. However,
the Company may invest up to 5% of Gross Asset Value
in aggregate in publicly quoted companies that do not
constitute part of the Initial Portfolio or the Retained
Assets or in which it has not already made an initial
investment prior to an initial public offering. For the
avoidance of doubt, any process by which an unlisted
investment of the Company becomes listed shall be
deemed not to be a new investment by the Company.

Each of the restrictions referred to above will be
calculated at the time of investment. The Company
will not be required to dispose of any investment or to
rebalance the portfolio as a result of a change in the
respective valuations of its assets.

Hedging and derivatives

Save for investments made using equity-related
instruments as described above, the Company will not
employ derivatives of any kind for investment purposes
other than to potentially hedge downside risk on a
quoted portfolio company for specific reasons, such
as where the Company is subject to lock-up provisions.
Derivatives may be used for currency hedging purposes.

Borrowings

Although the Company does not intend to use
structural gearing with a view to enhancing returns on
investments, the Company may, from time to time, use
borrowings for the purpose of bridging investments,
managing its working capital requirements and efficient

portfolio management purposes. Borrowings will not
exceed 10% of NAV, calculated at the time of drawdown
of the relevant borrowings.

Cash management

The Company may hold cash on deposit and may
invest in cash equivalent investments, which may
include short-term investments in money market-type
funds and tradeable debt securities (‘Cash and Cash
Equivalents'). There is no restriction on the amount of
Cash and Cash Equivalents that the Company may hold
or whereitis held.

Cash and Cash Equivalents will be held with approved
counterparties and in line with prudent cash
management guidelines agreed between the Board and
the Investment Manager.

The Company will hold sufficient Cash and Cash
Equivalents for the purpose of making follow-on
investments in accordance with the Company’s
investment policy and to manage the working capital
requirements of the Company.

TARGET RETURNS AND DIVIDEND
POLICY

The Directors intend to manage the Company'’s affairs
to achieve shareholder returns through capital growth
rather thanincome.

The Company has no formal benchmark. However,
the Company targets an annualised total return on the
Company's portfolio of at least 20% over the long term
(adjusted for any dividends paid or share buy-backs
by the Company). This is a target only and reflects the
Investment Manager's expectations of the potential
returns that can be generated by investing in a portfolio
of early and growth stage private companies which have
the potential to generate substantial returns for their
shareholders over the long term whilst recognising that
not all portfolio companies will achieve their potential
andthat some mayfail intheir entirety. This should not be
taken as anindication ofthe Company's expected future
performance, return or results over any period and
does not constitute a profit forecast. The actual return
generated by the Company over any period will depend
on a wide range of factors, including, but not limited to,
the terms of the investments made, the performance
of its portfolio companies, general macroeconomic
conditions and fluctuations in currency exchange rates.
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As the Company's priority is to produce capital growth
over the long term, it has no dividend target and will not
seek to provide shareholders with a particular level of
distribution. However, the Company intends to comply
with the requirements for maintaining investment trust
statusforthe purposes of section1158 of the Corporation
Tax Act 2010 regarding distributable income. Therefore,
in accordance with regulation 19 of the Investment
Trust (Approved Company) (Tax) Regulations 2011, the
Company will not (except to the extent permitted by
those regulations) retain more than 15% of its income
{as calculated for UK tax purposes) in respect of each
accounting period and any excess will be distributed in
the form of afinal dividend.

SHARE RATING MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises the need to address any
sustained and significant imbalance of buyers and
sellers which might otherwise lead to the ordinary
shares trading at a material discount or premium to
their NAV.

The Board has not adopted any formal discount or
premium targets which would dictate the point at which
the Company would seek to buy back or issue ordinary
shares. However, the Board is committed to utilising
its share buy-back and issuance authorities where
appropriate in such a way as to mitigate the effects of
any such imbalance. In considering whether buy-back
or issuance might be appropriate in any particular set
of circumstances, the Board will take into account,
amongst other things, prevailing market conditions,
(in the case of buy-backs) the level of the Company's
discount relative to those of comparable listed
investment companies, the cash resources readily
available to the Company, the Company’'s immediate
pipeline of investment opportunities, the level of the
Company's borrowings (if any), the Company's working
capital requirements and the degree of NAV accretion
that will result from the buy-back or issuance, and, in
the case of buy-backs, whether higher returns would
be made from investing capital than buying back
ordinary shares.

Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC

On 13 July 2023, the Board announced a share
repurchase programme to mitigate the effect of the
substantial discount experienced bythe Company.Inthe
period to 13 October 2023, the Company bought back
2,186,344 shares pursuant to the share repurchase
programme. The shares bought back are being held in
treasury and may be resold in due course at a premium
to NAV. The Board will keep shareholders informed, on
a regular and ongoing basis, of the approach which it
has adopted to share rating management, principally
through commentary in the Company's Annual and
Interim Reports.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

At each Board meeting, the Directors consider a
number of performance measures to assess the
Company's success in achieving its objectives. The key
performance indicators (‘KPIs’) used to measure the
performance and progress of the Company over time
are as follows:

- the movement in NAV per share (as the Company
does not pay dividends, this is the same as the NAV
total return per share);

> the movement in the share price (as the Company
does not pay dividends, this is the same as the share
price total return per share);

- the premium/discount of the share price to the NAV
per share;

- ongoing charges; and

- portfolio fair value vs. cost.

The first four KPIs are established industry measures.
Having regard to the Company's target return, we
believe that, at this stage in the Company's life, the
portfolio fair value vs. cost is an appropriate KPI to
measure the portfolio's performance.

An explanation of the KPIs can be found in Alternative
Performance Measures on pages 160 and 161. The KPIs
for the year ended 30 June 2023 are shown on page 1.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE MATTERS

Socially responsible investment

The Board has endorsed the Investment Manager's
Responsible Investment Policy, which seeks to ensure
that the Investment Manager's management of SSIT's
investments takes account of environmental, social,
governance and ethical factors, where appropriate. The
Investment Manager actively engages with portfolio
companies on ESG factors and often has a participation
role at board level with such companies, helping to guide
their governance policies. Details of the Responsible
Investment Policy are included on pages 62to 67.

Environment

As an investment company with all its activities
outsourced to third parties, the Company does not have
any physical assets, property, employees or operations
of its own and, therefore, the Company's own direct
environmental impact is minimal. The Company has no
greenhouse gas emissions to report from its operations,
nor does it have responsibility for any other emissions
producing sources under the Companies (Directors’
Report) and Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and
Carbon Reporting) Regulations 2018. For the same
reasons, the Company considers itself to be a low energy
user under the Streamlined Energy & Carbon Reporting
Regulation and, therefore, is not required to disclose
energy and carbon information.

The Company notes the Taskforce for Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD') recommendations on
climate-related financial disclosures. The Company is
an investment company and, as such, it is exempt from
the FCA's Listing Rules requirement to report against the
TCFD framework.

A key focus of the Investment Manager's Responsible
Investment Policy, and its engagement with portfolio
companies, is on their management of environmental
risks, particularly those associated with the climate
change, and their ability to develop products and services
that help address climate change impacts.

Employees, human rights and community issues

The Board recognises the requirement under section
414C of the Companies Act 2006 to provide information
about employees, human rights and community issues,
including information in respect of any of its policies in
relation to these matters and their effectiveness. These
requirements do not apply to SSIT as it has no employees,
allof the Directors are non-executive and it has outsourced
all of its functions to third-party service providers.

Consequently, SSIT has not reported further in respect of
these provisions.

Modern slavery

The Company does not provide goods or services in
the normal course of business and, as an investment
company, does not have customers. Consequently, the
Directors do not consider that the Company is required to
make a statement under the Modern Slavery Act 2015 in
relation to slavery or human trafficking.

Diversity

The Board and Investment Manager strongly believe that
having diversity in skills, experience, identity and cognitive
thought has significant benefits when making decisions.

The Board currently comprises four independent
Directors appointed on merit-based qualifications. The
skills and experience which the current members of
the Board bring to SSIT's leadership are described on
pages 90 and 91. Currently, the Board has 75% female
representation (greater than the FCA's target for listed
companies of 40%) and the Senior Independent Director
{Sue Inglis) is also female (in line with the FCA's target
for listed companies of one senior position being held
by a woman). Given the size of the Board and that fact
the Company is in an early stage, it does not currently
have at least one member of the Board from a minority
ethnic background {contrary to the FCA's target for
listed companies) but this will be a key consideration for
future appointments.

The Investment Manager {together with its affiliates)
has a diverse employee base (currently, 50% female
and 23% from non-white British or other white
backgrounds) and continues to dedicate recruiting
resources to increasing its diversity across all positions
and levels.

Bribery Act 2010

The Board has a zero-tolerance policy in relation to bribery
and corruption and has received assurance through
internal controls reporting fromthe Company’'skey service
party providers, including the Investment Manager, that
adequate safeguards are in place to protect against any
such potentially illegal behaviour by employees or agents.

Criminal Finances Act 2017

The Company has a zero-tolerance policy towards the
criminal facilitation of tax evasion.
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PRINCIPAL AND EMERGING RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Under the FCA's Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules, the Directors are required to identify those
material risks to which the Company is exposed and take
appropriate steps to mitigate those risks.

The Board thoroughly considers the process for
identifying, evaluating and managing any significant
risks faced by the Company, including emerging risks,
on an ongoing basis, and these risks are reported and
discussed at Board meetings. The Board ensures that

effective controls are in place to mitigate these risks and
that a satisfactory compliance regime exists to ensure all
applicable local and international laws and regulations
are upheld (see 'Risk management and internal control
systems' on page 108 for further information). For each
material risk identified in the risk matrix, the likelihood
and consequences are identified, management controls
and frequency of monitoring are confirmed and results
are reported and discussed at each scheduled Audit
Committee meeting and more oftenif required.

The key areas of risk faced by the Company and mitigating factors are summarised below:

RISK POTENTIAL IMPACT

1. INVESTMENT
RETURN shares

Risk that SSIT fails to
achieve its investment
objective and provide
a satisfactory
investment return

trading

2. DISCOUNT

Risk that SSIT's shares
trade at a material discount
to NAV as a result of
animbalance between
buyers and sellers which
may occur for awide
variety of reasons

trading
- Reduced shareholder return

term strategy

- Reduced demand for SSiT's
+ Reduced liquidity in SSIT's share

+ Increase in share price discount

 Reduced liquidity in SSIT's share

- Discount may attract short-term
investors with return aspirations
materially different to SSIT's
investors supportive of its long-

MITIGATION

- Seraphim Space has deep sector knowledge and
experience and a rigorous investment process
designed to identify and manage risks

- The portfolio is managed in accordance with the
investment policy to spread investment risk

- The investment environment, portfolio performance,
specific factors affecting portfolio companies
(individually or collectively), transactions, investment
pipeline opportunities and cash flow forecasts are
reviewed regularly by the Board

- TheBoard conducts arigorous strategy review annually

- The Board, Seraphim Space and SSIT's corporate
brokers monitor the SSIT share price discount (and
premium) on an ongoing basis and movements in the
share register on a regular basis, taking into account
broader market conditions

+ Proactive investor communication and engagement
by the Board, Seraphim Space and SSIT's corporate
brokers to enhance investors’ understanding of SSIT,
its strategy and associated risks

+ SSIT's access to additional capital

constrained

Seraphim Space investment Trust ®PL.C

- Shareholders are encouraged to engage freely with
the Board on matters that are of concern to them
so that the Board can understand their views and
concerns and consider them in its discussions and
decision-making

- SSIT hasauthoritiesin place to buy back shares, which
the Board may use when deemed to be in the best
interests of shareholders as a whole (in July 2023, the
Board announced a share repurchase programme
to support the Company's share price in light of the
substantial discount it was experiencing)
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RISK POTENTIAL IMPACT

3. LIQUIDITY - Dilution of SSIT's holdings in
Risk that SSIT has existing portfolio companies

insufficient liquid resources
to particate in subsequent
funding rounds by
portfoliocompanies or
make new investments

+ Reputational damage
* Reduced NAV growth
- Reduced shareholder return

- Seraphim Space monitors the cash runways of
portfolio companies and maintains cash flow
projections based on its assessment of return
potential, timing and scale of potential funding
rounds, the ability of others in portfolio company
syndicates to support funding rounds, the availability
of new investment opportunities and SSIT's projected
operating costs in order to manage SSIT's ability to
participate in forthcoming funding rounds

- Cash flow forecasts are reviewed regularly by
the Board

4. PORTFOLIO
COMPANY
PERFORMANCE

Risk that portfolio
companies, being early and
growth stage companies
which may lack breadth
and depth of management
team and capital and have
ahigher risk profile than
larger, more established
companies, are unable

to commercialise their
technology, products,
business concepts or
services andjor otherwise
failto achieve their
business objectives

- Reduction in relevant portfolio

company valuations, potentially
resulting in 100% write-off

- Reduced NAV and shareholder

returns

- Seraphim Space has extensive experience of
investing into and supporting early and growth stage
businesses

+ Seraphim Space has a rigorous investment process
designed to identify and manage risks

- Athird party technical due diligence provider is engaged
prior to every material deal to assess the technological
and market opportunity

- Seraphim Space monitors progress against critical
milestones, with the aim of supporting portfolio
companies in changes in strategy where progress is not
as anticipated

- SSIT's investment strategy is to ensure sufficient
diversification within its portfolio and to syndicate
investments with other investors to ensure portfolio
companies are well capitalised

- Portfolio company performance is regularly reviewed by
the Board

5. PUBLIC COMPANY
SHARE PRICE
VOLATILITY

Risk of extreme volatility
in the share prices of
SSIT's listed portfolio
companies materially
adversely impacting

the concentration

risk associated with

* Reduced demand for

- Increased share price volatility

SSIT's
shares .

- Reduced liquidity in SSIT's share

trading

- Reduced NAV and shareholder

returns

- Increase in share price discount

- The investment policy includes restrictions on
investmentin listed companies

- Seraphim Space monitors share price fluctuations and
portfolio concentration levels
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RISK

6. MACROECONOMIC

Risk that the performance
of portfolio companies
may be materially
adversely affected by
geopolitical risks, a
pandemic/epidemic,
climate change andjor
other macroeconomic
conditions, including
interest rate rises

and inflation

7. VALUATION

Risk that estimates,
assumptions and
judgements used in
valuing SSIT's investments
in private companies lead
to a material misstatement
of the valuation

and, consequently,

in SSIT's NAV

8. REALISATION

Risk that,as SSIT's private
company investments are
illiquid and its investments
may have restrictions on sale
or transfer of shares, SSIT
may be unable to realise
investments at short notice
or at allandfor the price
achieved on any realisation
may be at a material discount
to the prevailing valuation

9. FOREIGN EXCHANGE

Risk that FX movements
materially adversely affect
the value of investments
made in currencies

other than Sterling

POTENTIAL IMPACT

- Significant widescale disruption

impacting businesses generally

+ Adverse impact on global markets

and investor sentiment

+ Reduced portfolio valuations
* Reduced demand for

SSIT's
shares

* Reduced liquidity in SSIT's share

trading

- Reduced NAV and shareholder

return

* Increase in share price discount
+ SSIT's access to additional capital

constrained

- False marketin SSIT's shares
* Reputational damage
- Reduced NAV and shareholder

returns

* Increase in share price discount

- Reduced NAV and shareholder

returns

- Reduced NAV and shareholder

returns

i
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+ SSIT's

MITIGATION

+ Seraphim Space completes extensive due diligence

procedures prior to investment and, on an ongoing
basis, monitors and works closely with portfolio
companies to provide advice and experience in
dealing with adverse macroeconomic conditions and
disruptive events

- Portfolio companies have business continuity plans,

which, in many cases, have been fully tested during
the COVID-19 pandemic andfor since the war in
Ukraine began and demonstrating that they are adept
at adjusting in response to major widescale disruption

- The investment environment and specific factors

affecting portfolio companies (individually or
collectively) are assessed regularly by the Board

- Valuations are prepared in accordance with the IPEV

Valuation Guidelines and Seraphim Space’s valuation
policy, which has been formally reviewed by the Board
and commented upon by the Company’s Auditor and
is consistently applied

+ In advance of quarterly Audit Committee meetings,

the Audit Committee meets with Seraphim Space
solely for the purpose of reviewing the quarterly
valuations, giving the Audit Committee an opportunity
to challenge the valuations and to request further
information before the valuations are approved

Auditor reviews the valuations and
methodology and attends ad hoc Audit Committee
meetings when interim and year end valuations are
presented and discussed by the Investment Manager

as part of their annual audit review procedures

+ SSIT's investment strategy is to hold investments for

the long term in order to deliver capital growth, SSIT
has no debt, dividend or buy-back obligations, it does
not have afixed life and it manages its liquidity to pay its
operating costs as they fall due, sothereis no pressure
torealise investments

- As set out opposite ‘Valuation' above, SSIT has a

robust and consistent valuation process

-+ SSIT invests globally and has exposure to several

non-Sterling currencies, providing some FX risk
diversification

+ Whilst it is not currently SSIT's policy to actively

manage FX risk, Seraphim Space monitors FX rates
and may, in consultation with the Board and SSIT's
corporate brokers, explore mitigating options

- The Company has engaged a provider who has

demonstrated a track record of favourable rates for
FX spot trades
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RISK
10. KEY PERSONS
Risk that one or more
of Mark Boggett,
James Bruegger and
Rob Desborough {key
members of Seraphim
Space’s team) cease
to be actively engaged
in the management
of SSIT's portfolio

1. ESG

Risk that Seraphim Space
fails to identify ESG issues

in portfolio companies
or receive adequate
ESG information from

POTENTIAL IMPACT

- Adverseimpacton SSIT's ability to

implement its investment strategy

+ Reduced NAV and shareholder

returns

* Reputational damage
-+ SSIT's shares may be less

attractive to investors

- Issues regarding valuations of

portfolio companies concerned

MITIGATION

- Seraphim Space has controls and incentives in regard
to key persons retention, including annual bonus,
share of any performance fee payable by SSIT and
succession planning

- Seraphim Space's recruitment and appointments
since SSIT's IPO have added further depth to its team

- The Investment Management Agreement may be
terminated by SSIT if a key person leaves Seraphim
Space and is not replaced by (a) person(s) of equal or
satisfactory standing within specified timeframes

- With the assistance of an international sustainability
consuitancy firm, Seraphim Space has developed a
robust Responsible Investment Policy and associated
tools

- Seraphim Space works with the boards and

management teams of portfolio companies to identify
and address ESG issues, including ESG reporting, and

portfolio companies or that
portfolio companies fail to

adequately address any
material climate change
impacts they might have

with co-investors to increase collective influence on
such matters

Each of the above principalrisks has beenidentified in the Company's risk matrix, which is reported and discussed
at Audit Committee and Board meetings. The Directors ensure that effective controls are in place to mitigate each
risk and the graphics below show the Board's assessment of the likelihood and impact of each, both pre-control
and post-control.

PRINCIPAL RISKS - PRE-CONTROL PRINCIPAL RISKS - POST-CONTROL

Impact Impact
High High
Medium Medium |
Low Low
Low Medium High Likelihood Low Medium High Likelihood

1. Investmentreturn 7. Valuation
2. Discount 8. Realisation
3. Liquidity 9. Foreign exchange
4. Portfoliocompany performance 10. Key persons
5. Public company share price volatility 1. ESG
6. Macroeconomic

* The Directors have amended their assessment of the likelihood of the liquidity risk from the prior year, when it was deemed to be Low, to the

current Medium.
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GOING CONCERN

In light of the conclusions drawn in the longer-term
viability statement below and as set out in note 2 to the
financial statements on page 136, the Directors have a
reasonable expectation thatthe Company has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for at
least 12 months from the date of this annual report.
Accordingly, the Directors believe that it is appropriate to
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing
the financial statements.

LONGER-TERM VIABILITY

Asrequiredbythe AIC Code,the Directorshaveassessed
the prospects of the Company over a period longer than
the 12 months required for the going concern statement.
The Board has assessed the Company’s prospects
over the period of three years ending 30 September
2026. The Board has chosen this period because it is
consistent with the three-year basis that the Directors
evaluate the Company's financial position as a whole on
a quarterly basis and projecting financial and economic
scenarios over alonger period would be imprecise given
the lack of long-term economic visibility. Soon after the
period of three years ending 30 September 2026, an
ordinary resolution will be proposed at the AGM in 2026
pertaining to the Company continuing as an investment
company.

In assessing the Company's prospects and longer-term
viability, the Board has taken into account:

- the principal and emerging risks and their mitigation
identified in the 'Principal and Emerging Risks and
Uncertainties’ section above;

- the nature of the Company's business;

- the Company's cash and other liquid reserves, as well
as the value of its listed holdings;

- the ability of the Investment Manager and Directors to
minimise the level of cash outflows, if necessary, asthe
Investment Manager considers the Company's future
cash requirements before making investments and the
Board receives regular updates from the Investment
Manager on the Company’s cash position and forecast
cash flows, which allows the Board to limit funding for
existing and/or new investments as required;

- the Investment Manager monitors the Company's
cash requirements to meet ongoing fees and
expenses and expects to maintain sufficient assets in
cash reserves to meet these obligations;

Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC

- the circumstances in which a performance fee is
payable to the Investment Manager as outlined in
note 4 to the financial statements; and

- the Company does not have any gearing or any
obligation to pay dividends.

The process for identifying, evaluating and managing
significant and any emerging risks faced by the
Company and periodic reports from the Investment
Manager and Administrator regarding risks faced by the
Company are reviewed routinely at Audit Committee
and Board meetings. The Board ensures that effective
controls are in place to mitigate these risks and that
a satisfactory compliance regime exists to ensure all
applicable local and international laws and regulations
are upheld. When required, the Company seeks expert
advice regarding tax, legal and other factors.

Based on a robust assessment of the principal and
emerging risks facing the Company, the Board believes
that the most significant risks to the Company’s longer-
term viability are:

- the risk of a significant and prolonged economic
downturn which could impact the Company through
poor ratings with consequent discounts, high
interest rates adversely impacting growth company
valuations and a tough fundraising environment;

- a significant majority of the Company's investments
are in private companies that are not liquid and may
be subject to restrictions on sale or transfer, which
may limitthe Company’s ability torealise investments
at short notice and/or at a reasonable price or at all;
and

- the inability to raise funds, should the need arise.

The Board has considered the Company'’s viability over
the three-year period, based on a working capital model
prepared by the Investment Manager. The working
capital mode! forecasts key cash flow drivers, such as
capital deployment rate and operating expenses, and
includes robust downside scenarios with continued high
interest rates and a considered amount of additional
investment activity in the near term. Capital raises,
realisations andfor share buy-backs are assumed to
not occur during the three-year period, unless already
predetermined.
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Based on its assessment, the Board has concluded
there is a reasonable expectation that the Company will
continue to meet its liabilities as they fall due and remain
viable, even in a scenario where global macroeconomic
uncertainty persists for an extended period and
including severe but plausible downside scenarios over
the three-year period of the assessment.

LIFE OF THE COMPANY

The Company has no fixed life but, in accordance
with its Articles of Association, an ordinary resolution
proposing that it continues in existence as an
investment company will be proposed at its AGM in
2026 and, if passed, every five years thereafter. If any
such resolution is not passed, proposals will be put
forward by the Directors within three months from the
date of the resolution to the effect that the Company be
wound up, liquidated, reconstructed or unitised.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE
COMPANY

While the future development of the Company is
dependent on the success of its investment strategy,
which is subject to various factors including external
ones (such as the macroeconomic environment and
market developments) which are outside the control
of the Board and Investment Manager, and the future
attractiveness of the Company as an investment
vehicle, the Board's intention is that the Company will
continue to pursue its investment objective and policy.
The Chair's Statement and the Investment Manager's
Report include, on pages 20 and 44 to 45 respectively,
commentary on the outlook for the Company.

APPROVAL OF STRATEGIC REPORT

The Strategic Report set out on pages 1 to 87 is

" providedin accordance with The Companies Act2006

{Strategic Report and Directors’ Report) Regulations
2013 and is intended to provide information about
the Company's strategy and business needs,
its performance and results for the year and the
information and measures which the Directors use to
assess, direct and oversee the Investment Manager
in the management of the Company's activities. The
Strategic Report has been approved by the Board and
is signed on its behalf by:

WILL WHITEHORN
Chair

16 October 2023
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ENGAGING WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

¢ Our responsibilities to stakeholders, together with consideration of the
long-term consequences of our decisions and maintaining high standards of
business conduct, are integral to the way the Board operates ’

S.172 RESPONSIBILITIES

Under section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 ('s.172'),
the Directors have a duty to actin the way they consider,
in good faith, would be most likely to promote the
success of the Company for the benefit of its members
as awhole. In doing so, the Directors are required to take
into account {amongst other matters) the likely long-
term consequences of their decisions, the needto foster
relationships with the Company’s wider stakeholders,
the desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation
for high standards of business conduct and the impact
of the Company's operations on the community and
environment.

As an externally managed investment company, SSIT
hasnopremises, employeesor customersand conducts
its core activities through third-party service providers.
Currently, SSIT has no debt finance. We consider,
therefore, shareholders to be the Company's principal
stakeholders but also regard potential shareholders,
the Investment Manager, the Administrator, other key
service providers (corporate brokers, Auditor, legal
advisers, public relations and communications adviser,
depositary and registrar) and portfolio companies
as key stakeholders. The Investment Manager's

Responsible Investment Policy is integrated into its
investment process, ensuring that it has regard to the
impact of SSIT's investments on the wider community
- and environment.

Our responsibilities to stakeholders, together with
consideration of the long-term consequences of our
decisions and maintaining high standards of business
conduct, are integral to the way we operate as a Board
and are foremost in our minds in our discussions,
decision-making and reporting. We welcome,
therefore, shareholders’ and other stakeholders’
views and concerns and place great importance on
our engagement with them so that we can better
understand and consider them in our discussions and
decision-making.




STRATEGIC REPORT
ENGAGING WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

(continued)

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Thetable below sets out the principal ways in which we engage with the Company's key stakeholder groups.

STAKEHOLDER GROUP

SHAREHOLDERS
AND POTENTIAL
INVESTORS

Why they are important

Continued shareholder support and engagement and attracting new investors are critical to the
continuing existence of the Company and the delivery of its long-term strategy.

How we engage

The Company has a broad range of shareholders, comprising both professional and retail
investors, and has developed various ways of engaging with them, including:

- Regulatory announcements and publications: The Company issues regulatory
announcements via the London Stock Exchange in respect of routine reporting obligations,
periodic financial and portfolio information updates and in response to other events. The
Company’'s Annual and Interim Reports and associated presentations, as well as quarterly
reports and shareholder circulars, are made available on the Company's website. Their
availability is announced via the London Stock Exchange and are available via the ‘RNS
Announcements’ section under ‘Investor Relations’ onthe Company's website.

+ RNS Reach Newsletter: The Companyissues a monthly SpaceTech Sector Newsletter viaRNS
Reach to provide timely updates, based on publicly available information, on the Company's
investments, its Investment Manager and the wider SpaceTech market. The first publication
was issued on 9 January 2023. Their availability is also announced via the London Stock
Exchange.

Website {https://investors.seraphim.vc/): This includes videos, research notes available
to retail investors and other relevant information to enhance investors’ understanding of the
Company and its strategy. Shareholders and other interested parties can subscribe to email
news updates by registering online on the website.

Investor meetings and events: The Investment Manager, on behalf of the Board and with the
assistance of SSIT's corporate brokers and public relations and communications advisor,
undertakes a programme of investor engagement throughout the year. During the year to
30 June 2023, the Investment Manager held four group meetings for research analysts
for each quarterly results and four professional and/or retail investor webinars through the
Company's public relations and communications advisor. Each analyst presentation had
25 attendees. Through the Company's corporate brokers, there were 120 interactions with
57 unique investors. Directors attend some investor meetings to gauge sentiment first hand.
All investors are offered the opportunity to meet the Chair, Senior Independent Director or
other Board members.

- Capital markets day: This is an event, attended by research analysts and professional
investors, held periodically consisting of presentations from the Chair and senior members of
the Investment Manager's team. The capital markets day held on 12 May 2022 also included
presentations from a selection of SSIT's portfolio companies. Videos of the event are available
on SSIT's website. The next capital markets day is scheduled for 18 October 2023.

- Investor relations updates: At quarterly Board meetings, the Directors receive updates on
the share trading activity, share price performance and investor feedback. The Directors also
receive investor feedback following investor roadshows arranged by the Company's corporate
brokers.

- Annual General Meetings: The Annual General Meeting of the Company provides a forum for
shareholders to meet, ask questions and discuss issues with the Directors and Investment
Manager. The next Annual General Meeting will take place on 20 November 2023.

- Working with external partners: The Board also engages some external providers, such as a
public relations and communications adviser, to assist in investor communication and obtain
input on specific aspects of shareholder communications, such as developing more effective
ways to communicate with investors.

-
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(continued)

STAKEHOLDER GROUP

SHAREHOLDERS We welcome diversity of thought and opinions. Shareholders may contact the Company via

AND POTENTIAL seraphimteam@ocorian.com or by post via the Company Secretary on any matters that they
INVESTORS wish to discuss with the Board and the Company Secretary will arrange for the relevant Board
(continued) member to contact them.

Target outcomes

Shareholders and potential investors receive relevant information to enable them to evaluate
whether their investment interests are aligned with the Company's strategy.

We receive feedback and views on investor concerns and priorities which inform our discussions
and decisions.

INVESTMENT Why itis important
MANAGER The Investment Manager's specialist knowledge and experience is vital to implementing SSIT's
{Seraphim Space investment strategy successfully and achieving its investment objective, so maintaining a strong,
Manager LLP} collaborative relationship withthe Investment Manager is critical to SSIT's long-term success.

How we engage

Important components in the collaboration with the Investment Manager are:

-+ drawing on Board members’ individual experience to support the Investment Manager in the
performance of its responsibilities to the Company, including implementing SSIT's investment
strategy;

- willingness to make the Board members’ experience available to support the Investment
Manager in the sound, long-term development of its business and resources, recognising that
SSIT is currently the principal client of the Investment Manager and so the long-term success
of the Investment Manager is closely aligned to that of the Company; and

+ havingin place appropriateremuneration arrangementsto incentivise the Investment Manager
whilst aligning with shareholders' interests.

We engage with the Investment Manager in numerous ways, including:

- Regular reporting: We receive at least quarterly reports from the investment Manager on
performance, investment activity and pipeline, portfolio company developments, cash flow
projections, and investor relations activities, as well as on a wide range of other topics.

- Meetings: The Board and Investment Manager meet face-to-face at least quarterly for
scheduled Board and Committee meetings. In addition, the Board and Investment Manager
frequently meet, either in person or virtually, between scheduled Board and Committee
meetings to consider ad hoc matters. .

- Continuous dialogue: The Board maintains an open dialogue with the Investment Manager,
engaging on key matters affecting SSIT or the Investment Manager.

Target outcomes
We maintain a strong, collaborative relationship with the Investment Manager.

The Company’s portfolio is well-managed, enabling it to meet its strategic objectives and achieve
long-term sustainable success.

- A e e At et A e - = = Se— g - —
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s

ADMINISTRATOR/
COMPANY
SECRETARY

(Ocorian Administration
(UK) Limited)

STAKEHOLDER GROUP

Why itis important

The Administrator provides accounting, company secretarial and other administrative services,
somaintaining a strong, collaborative relationship with the Administrator is critical tothe effective
running of SSIT's day-to-day operations.

How we engage
We engage with the Administrator in several ways, including:

Regular reporting: We receive at least quarterly reports from the Administrator on a range of
matters, including financial, corporate governance, legal, regulatory and compliance matters.

Meetings: The Administrator attends both scheduledand ad hoc Board and Committee meetings.

Continuous dialogue: The Board maintains open and constructive dialogue with the
Administrator, engaging on key matters affecting SSIT.

In addition, the Investment Manager, on our behalf, engages with the Administrator on atleast aweekly
basis and ensures service levels are satisfactory and appropriate controls are in place.

Target outcomes

We maintain a strong, collaborative relationship with the Administrator.

The Company's day-to-day operations are well-managed, supporting its ability to meet its
strategic objectives and achieve long-term sustainable success.

OTHER KEY SERVICE
PROVIDERS

{corporate brokers,
Auditor, legal advisers,
public relations and
communications
adviser, depositary,
registrar - see page 164
for details) -

Why they are important

For the Company to operate as a listed investment company, the Board relies on the other key
service providersfor essential services andfor advice and supportin meeting relevantobligations
and complying with best practice. Constructive working relationships with the other key service
providers helps ensure the Company continues to operate effectively.

How we engage

We engage with the other key service providersin acollaborative and collegiate manner, with open
and respectful discussion and debate being encouraged, whilst also ensuring that appropriate
andregular challenge is brought. We engage with the other key service providers in several ways,
including receiving regular and, as needed, ad hoc reports, face-to-face meetings (at the request
of the Board or the relevant service provider) and other dialogue as and when appropriate.

In addition, the Investment Manager and/or Administrator, on our behalf, engages with the other
key service providers on aregular basis and ensures service levels are satisfactory.

Target outcomes

We, directly and indirectly, maintain constructive working relationships with our other key service
providers.

Other key service providers provide the required level of service, enabling the Company to meet
its obligations and follow best practice.

PORTFOLIO
COMPANIES

Why they are important

For the Company to deliver capital appreciation, it needs to invest in portfolio companies that
ultimately develop their products and services and successfully grow.

How we engage

We look to engage with the portfolio companies in a collaborative and collegiate manner. We
engage with portfolio companies during investor events.

In addition, the Investment Manager, on our behalf, engages with portfolio companies onaregular
basis through participation on their boards, interaction with their shareholders, introductions to
partners, customers and potential funding providers, and value-add support and advice.

Target outcomes
We, directly andindirectly, maintain constructive working relationships with our portfoliocompanies.

Portfolio companies benefit from the engagement, leading to their growth and, ultimately, higher
value for the Company.
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{continued)

EXAMPLES OF STAKEHOLDER CONSIDERATIONS

Set out below are examples of decisions and actions during the year which have required the Directors to have

regardto applicable s.172 factors.

TOPIC

STAKEHOLDER CONSIDERATIONS AND OUTCOME

RESPONSIBLE
INVESTMENT

$.172 consideration: the impact of the Company’s operations on the community and
the environment

Whilst the Company's operations are limited (with all substantive operations being conducted
by its third-party service providers), the Board is aware of the need to consider the impact of the
Company's investment strategy on society and the environment. The Board is also aware, based
on feedback from investor meetings, that investors would like a better understanding of how ESG
matters are factored into the Company's investment strategy.

Stakeholders influencing and/or impacted considerations and outcome: Portfolio companies,
shareholders and potential investors.

INVESTMENT
APPROVALS

$.172 consideration: the desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high
standards of business conduct

The Company has appointed the Investment Manager to manage its investments on a discretionary
basis, save where the Investment Manager may have a potential conflict of interest. A company
affiliated withthe InvestmentManager runs accelerator programmes for very early stage SpaceTech
companies and receives share options andfor warrants from participants in those programmes.

During the financial year, the Investment Manager proposed that SSIT invest, in aggregate, up
to £2.3m, in two former accelerator programme participants (one new investment which did not
close prior to the year end and one follow-on ) where the affiliate had a potential conflict of interest.
In each case, the Board considered the proposed investment and the conflict and noted that only
the independent members of the Investment Manager's Independent Advisory Committee (listed
on page 94) had considered the investment at the Investment Manager's Investment Committee
meeting and were recommending the investment. The Board was satisfied that the conflict had been
managed appropriately and the investments were consistent with SSIT's strategy and objectives
and had the benefit of having been monitored by the Investment Manager for some time. The Board
also noted that the terms of each proposed investment were in line with those for other comparable
transactions,andtherewas participationfromarm'slengthinvestors, including significantinvestment
from a new investor or more than pro-rata participation from an existing investor. Accordingly, the
Board concluded that it was in the interests of SSIT's shareholders to approve the investments.

Stakeholders influencing andjor impacted considerations and outcome: Shareholders and
potential investors, Investment Manager.

CAPITAL
ALLOCATION

$.172 consideration: the likely consequences of the decisions in the long term

Havingregardtothe challenging environment for raising additional capital (debt andjor equity) and
in expectation that such environment would continue for some time, the Board and Investment
Manager regularly reviewed the Company's cash resources and other sources of liquidity,
identified anticipated shorter-term funding requirements of SSIT's portfolio companies and
agreed capital allocations for supporting portfolio companies and new investment opportunities
until such time as the fundraising environment improves or a significant liquidity event occurs.
These allocations were consistent with SSIT's long-term strategy, should enable the Company to
continue to foster good relationships with portfolic company management teams and maintain
it's standing as a key investor in the SpaceTech sector and are aimed at supporting the long-term
growth of the NAV per share.

Stakeholders influencing andjor impacted considerations and outcome: Shareholders and
potential investors, portfolio companies, Investment Manager.

Seraphim Space investment Trust PLC
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TOPIC

SHARE BUY BACKS

ANNUAL REVIEW OF
SERVICE PROVIDERS

STRATEGY SESSION

STAKEHOLDER CONSIDERATIONS AND CUTCOME

S.172 consideration: the likely consequences of the decisions inthe long term, the
need to act fairly as between members of the Company

The Board considers that it is not in Shareholders' interests for the Ordinary Shares of the
Company to trade at a significant discount to the prevailing NAV in normal market conditions.
SSIT's shares have traded at a material discount to NAV during the year (and continue to do so).
The Board has authority to buy-back shares when they are trading at a discount to NAV. The
Board kept under review whether buying back shares would be in the interests of shareholders
having regard to market conditions generally, the ratings of other similar listed investment
companies, the anticipated shorter-term funding requirements of SSIT's portfolio companies,
the investment opportunities available to the Company, feedback from shareholder meetings
and advice from SSIT's corporate brokers. The Board believes that the most effective means of
minimising any discount at which the Ordinary Shares may trade is for the Company to deliver
strong, consistent, long-term performance from the investment portfolio. However, wider
market conditions and other considerations inevitably affect the rating of the Ordinary Shares
fromtime to time.

Towards the end of the year, the Ordinary Share price discount widened to alevel that the Board
concluded, having regard to the matters referred to in the previous paragraph, that it would
be in the interests of shareholders to commence a share repurchase programme. On 13 July
2023, the Board announced a share repurchase programme funded out of SSIT's existing
cash resources. Since then, and up to 13 October 2023, the Company bought back a total of
2,186,344 shares {0.9% of the shares in issue at 12 July 2023) at an aggregate cost of £1.0m.
The shares bought back are being held in treasury. The closing price as at 13 October 2023 was
39.5p, anincrease of 51% from the closing share price of 26.1p on 12 July 2023. The shares were
bought ata discountto net asset value in order to ensure that the company's shareholders found
liquidity for their shares when market demand was insufficient and on terms that enhanced net
asset value for remaining shareholders.

Stakeholders influencing andjor impacted considerations and outcome: Shareholders and
potential investors.

S.172 consideration: the need for the Company’s to foster business relationships with
suppliers, customers and others

The Management Engagement Committee met during the year to review the Company's external
service providers and, in particular, the quality and costs of the services provided (details of the
review areincludedinthe Management Engagement Reporton pages 114 and 115). For thereasons
noted in its Report, the Management Engagement Committee concluded that the interests of the
Company's shareholders would be best served by the ongoing appointments of the Investment
Manager, the Administrator and SSIT's other key service providers on the existing terms.

Stakeholders infiuencing andjor impacted considerations and outcome: Investment Manager,
Administrator, other key service providers.

$.172 consideration: the likely consequences of the decisions in the long term

In June 2023, the Board held a strategy session with the Investment Manager outside of the
scheduled quarterly Board meetings, to consider the Company's strategic objectives. Topics
discussed included liquidity projections, scenario planning and aliocation of existing cash
resources. The Board believes that the strategy session helped to strengthen a clear and
collaborative vision for the strategic direction of the Company, while taking into account the views
and needs of stakeholders. The Board will continue to conduct a strategy session annually.

Stakeholders influencing andjor impacted considerations and outcome: Shareholders and
potential investors, portfolio companies, Investment Manager.

Annual Report and Financial Statements

87




0 - -







[

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DIRECTORS AND INVESTMENT MANAGER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Company, which combines considerable knowledge of the SpaceTech
industry, venture capital investment, the investment company sector and corporate
governance, is responsible for ensuring conformance to the investment strategy, monitoring
the performance of the Investment Manager and ensuring good governance, including in

relation to ESG matters.

The Directors are all non-executive and independent.

WILLIAM [WILL) WHITEHORN
Chair

T

SUSAN [SUE] INGLIS

1 Senior Independent Director

Date of appointment
14 June 2021

Date of appointment
14 June 2021

Committee membership

(]le]l]

Committee membership

[~ [v]

Skills and experience

Will was formerly a director of Virgin Group and
President of Virgin Galactic until 2010. He has since
pursued a private equity and non-executive career.
He is the President of UKSpace, the trade body that
represents the Space industry in the UK. Will chairs
the Scottish Event Campus, which hosted COP26. In
addition to these corporate roles, he has been a Fellow
of the Royal Aeronautical Society since 2014 and is a
member of the UK Government's Space Exploration
Advisory Committee, which reports to the UK Space
Agency.

- - e . A ————_— e

External appointments

Chair of Good Energy Group PLC and Craneware PLC
and non-executive director of AAC Clyde Space AB.

Committee membership key

‘E Audit Committee lﬂ Remuneration and Nomination Committee

Seraphim Space Investment Trust PL.C

Skills and experience

Sue has a wealth of experience from more than 30 years
advising listed investment companies and financial
institutions. Her executive roles included Managing
Director, Corporate Finance in the investment companies
team at Cantor Fitzgerald Europe and investment
companies and financial institutions teams at Canaccord
Genuity. Sue is a qualified lawyer and was a partner
and head of the funds and financial services group at
Shepherd & Wedderburn, a leading Scottish law firm.
In 1999 she was a founding partner of Intelli Corporate
Finance, an advisory boutique firm focusing on the asset
management and investment company sectors, which
was acquired by Canaccord Genuity in 2009.

—_ —_———

External appointments

Chair of ThomasLloyd Energy Impact Trust PLC and the
senior independent director of Baillie Gifford Growth
US Growth Trust PLC and CT Global Managed Portfolio
Trust PLC.

E Management Engagement Committee . Chair
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CHRISTINA MCCOMB

L - —

ANGELA LANE

'
]
|
Director J

Director
Date of appointment Date of appointment
14 June 2021 1January 2022

Committee membership

[+)[=]

Skills and experience

Christina has over 25 years' experience of venture
capital and growth investment as a former director of 3i
PLC and other venture funds. She has been a director
of other investment companies, including as Chair
of Standard Life European Private Equity Trust PLC,
from which role she retired in April 2022. She has also
held a number of senior public sector roles involved
in SME and growth business finance, including as
Senior Independent Director at the British Business
Bank. She was awarded an OBE in the Queen’s
Birthday Honours 2018 for services to the economy.

Committee membership

B[]

Skills and experience

Angela has decades of experience working with private
equity-owned companies and investment companies
and as the chair of audit and remuneration committees.
Sheis aFellow ofthe Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and began her career at the
venture capital firm 3i PLC and became a partner
of 3i's Growth Capital business, overseeing the UK
Growth Capital portfolio. Subsequently, she has held a
number of positions as chair of private equity-backed
businesses. She is currently on the Board of and acts as
chair of the audit committee for three investment trusts
investing in quoted and unquoted companies.

External appointments

Non-executive director of Big Society Capital Ltd and
trustee and chair of Investment Committee of Nesta,
the UK's Innovation Agency for Social Good.

Committee membership key

EI Audit Committee IE, Remuneration and Nomination Committee

External appointments

Non-executive director and chair of the Audit
Committee of BlackRock Throgmorton Trust PLC,
Pacific Horizon Investment Trust PLC and Dunedin
Enterprise Investment Trust PLC.

@ Management Engagement Committee . Chair
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(continued)

INVESTMENT MANAGER

The Company has appointed Seraphim Space Manager LLP as its alternative investment
fund manager. The Seraphim Space team is comprised of seasoned venture capitalists and
some of the sector’s most successful entrepreneurs who scaled their SpaceTech businesses

to multi-billion Dollar exits.

The senior individuals responsible for executing and overseeing the Company's investment strategy are

shown below.

MARK BOGGETT
CEO

\E}

JAMES BRUEGGER
cio

4

Mark is a pioneer in SpaceTech investment having co-
founded Seraphim Space and launched the Seraphim
Space LP fund, Seraphim Space Camp Accelerator,
UK Space Tech Angels and SSIT. Previously, Mark was
a director at YFM Equity Partners, the firm behind the
high profile British Smaller Companies VCTs 1 & 2. He
also worked at Brewin Dolphin and Williams de Broe. He
completed his undergraduate degree in Accounting &
Finance and Master's in Economics and Finance from
University of Leeds. Mark has been a fund representative
on the boards of a range of leading global SpaceTech
companies, including LeolLabs, Spire Global (listed on
NYSE), Arqit (listed on NASDAQ) and HawkEye 360.

e

James, co-founder and CIO of Seraphim Space, is a
prolific venture capital investor in the global SpaceTech
domain. James was an early venture capital investor in
Arqit, ICEYE, LeoLabs and D-Orbit and led investments
in several companies that went public, including Spire
Global and AST SpaceMobile. Previously, he worked
at YFM Equity Partners and Burlington Consultants,
a boutique strategy consultancy that was acquired by
Deloitte & Touche. James holds a first-class degree in
History from University College London. James has
been a fund representative on the boards of a range of
leading global SpaceTech companies, including ICEYE,
D-Orbit, Ultrasoc, ALL.SPACE (formerly Isotropic
Systems) and SatVu.

C o e g - e e des

ROB DESBOROUGH

! Managing Partner
[

Rob is a partner at Seraphim Space, heading up the early
stage investments. He is a co-founder of Seraphim Space
Camp Accelerator, which was launched in 2018 and is now
one of the world's leading accelerator programmes for
SpaceTechstart-ups. Priorto Seraphim Space, Robwas with
YFM Equity Partners as an Investment Director. Rob holds
a BSc (Hons) in Biomedical Sciences from University of
Glasgowanda Postgraduate Diploma {PGDip)in Information
Technology Systems from University of Strathclyde. Under
Rob's guidance the Seraphim Space Camp Accelerator has
graduated 63 SpaceTech start-ups, which have collectively
raised $200m in co-investment syndicated from 73 venture
capitalinvestors. He is afund representative onthe boards of
Xona Space Systems, Altitude Angel and other early stage
investments.

- PATRICK MCCALL

Venture Partner

N7
Patrick is the former chair of Virgin Galactic and
Virgin Orbit. He was a Director at Virgin from 2001 and
developed businesses including Virgin Active and Virgin
Trains. His most recent role was senior partner at Virgin
Group.

Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC
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SARAH SHACKLETON
coo

Sarah is the COO at Seraphim Space and has more
than 25 years of finance experience. Prior to Seraphim
Space, Sarah was a partner at Development Partners
International since its inception in 2007. She was
responsible for administration of the firm and its funds,
including legal, compliance, HR, IT, operations, facilities
andESGandalsosatontheinvestmentcommittee. Sarah
has experience as an active board director on private
equity fund general partners and investment holding
companies. Before joining Development Partners
International, Sarah was an Associate Director on the
Technology Equity Research team at UBS in London,
specialising in the telecommunications equipment
sector and covering large-cap European companies,
including Nokia, Ericsson and Alcatel-Lucent. Sarah
holds a BSc {Hons) in Economics and Accounting from
University of Bristol.

MAUREEN HAVERTY

Investment Principal

Maureen joined Seraphim Space in 2022 following a
successful career in the space industry. She was COO at
Apollo Fusion, a space start up that was sold for $145m,
where she was responsible for business development,
manufacturing and complex programmes. She was also
Senior Director of Corporate Development at Astra, a
rocketlaunchcompanylistedonNASDAQ.Shehasafirst-
classBatchelor Civiland Environmental Engineering (BE})
degreefromUniversity College CorkandaPhDinNuclear
Engineering from University of Manchester. Maureen is
focussed on deal origination, deal execution, portfolio
management and fund operations in addition to actively
supporting the Seraphim Space Camp Accelerator.

ANDRE RONSOEHR

Investment Partner

Andre is an Investment Partner at Seraphim Space,
following a career focussed on the Space sector. He
worked for almost a decade at Virgin Management,
the family office of Sir Richard Branson. Andre co-
led the seed investment in OneWeb in 2015 and was
instrumental in investments into Virgin Galactic and
Virgin Orbit. During this time, Andre worked hand-in-
hand with the boards and C-level teams of each of these
three pioneering space businesses, helping shape
them into $billion businesses. Andre has been a fund
representative on the boards of a range of SpaceTech
companies, including Astroscale and PlanetWatchers.
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CANDACE JOHNSON

independent Advisory
Committee Member

MATT O'CONNELL

Independent Advisory
Committee Member

Candace has alongand distinguished career as founder|

co-founder of Space ventures such as SES ASTRA,
SES Global, Loral-Teleport Europe and Europe Online,
as well as having played critical roles in developing
Space sector leaders, including Iridium and ILS. An
experienced venture capitalist and investor, she has
been a member of the Strategic Committee of Iris
Capital for the past decade and served as President
of the European Business Angel Network, and is now
President Emeritus. Candace serves and has served
on the boards of a number of emerging Space leaders,
including NorthStar Earth and Space and Kacific.
Candace serves on Seraphim Space’s Investment
Committee as an independent member to advise on and
address any conflicts of interest.

ANN WINBLAD

Independent Advisory
Committee Member

Ann is a Managing Director of Hummer Winblad Venture
Partners, a venture capital firm she co-founded in 1989,
She is a well-known and respected software industry
entrepreneur and technology leader. Ann's firm has
launched over 160 enterprise software companies and
led investments that pioneered successful companies
across the enterprise software sector. She served as
a director of numerous private and public companies
including MuleSoft, Hyperion, Sonatype, The Knot,
Liquid Audio, Net Perceptions and Ace Metrix. She also
currently serves as a Director of OptiMine. Ann serves
on Seraphim Space's Investment Committee as an
independent member to advise on and address any
conflicts of interest.

;Slﬁm S'}p‘é,ce Investrient Trust PLC

Matt is a recognised thought leader in the geospatial

intelligence industry. Currently an Operating Partner
at DCVC, supporting its investments, including Space
companies Capella and Planet. Matt has been working
with Seraphim Space since 2018. Beforethat,hewas CEQ
of OneWeb until July 2016. In 20086, he founded GeoEye
(NASDAQ: GEQY), a leading global provider of satellite
and aerial imagery and digital mapping information,
which was acquired by Digital Globe in 2013 for $1.3bn.
He has served on several private company boards and
government and industry advisory commissions. Matt
serves on Seraphim Space’s Investment Committee as
an independent member to advise on and address any
conflicts of interest.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors present their Annual Report and audited financial statements for the Company
for the year ended 30 June 2023. The Corporate Governance Report on pages 90 to 121 forms

part of this Report.

COMPANY STATUS

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in the
United Kingdom and registered in England and Wales.

The Company is an investment company as defined in
section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and is as an
approved investment trust in accordance with section
1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 {'s.1158'). The
Directors intend at all times to conduct the affairs of
the Company to enable it to continue to qualify as an
investment trust for the purposes of s.1158.

The Company manages its affairs so as to be a
qualifying investment for inclusion in an Individual
Savings Account and it is the Directors' intention that
the Company should continue to do so.

BUSINESS ReVIEW

The Company's principal activity is investment in a
diversified, international portfolio of predominantly
early and growth stage privately financed SpaceTech
businesses that have the potential to dominate globally
and are category leaders with first mover advantages
in areas such as climate change, sustainability,
communications, mobility and global security (including
cyber security) with the objective of generating capital
growth over the long term.

A detailed review of the Company's business and
performance during the year, the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Company, any future likely
developments in the Company and any important events
since 30 June 2023 are containedin the Strategic Report
on pages 74 to 77 and should be read as part of this
Report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss for the year was £16.9 million. A loss of
£4.5 million was attributable to the revenue reserve.
As the Company is focused on generating capital
growth over the long term and given the nature of the
Company’s investments, the Board does not anticipate
recommending paying any dividends in the foreseeable
future.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 30 June 2023, the Company’'s issued share
capital comprised 239,384,928 ordinary shares and no
shares were held in treasury. The total number of voting
rights of the Company at 30 June 2023 was, therefore,
239,384,928.

Shareholders are entitled to all dividends paid by the
Company (as stated above, the Company does not
expect to pay dividends in the foreseeable future). On a
winding up, provided the Company has satisfied all its
liabilities, shareholders are entitled to the surplus assets
of the Company. Shareholders are entitled to attend and
vote at all general meetings of the Company and, on a
poll, to one vote for each ordinary share held.

There are:

- no restrictions on the transfer of securities in the
Company save where the Company is legally entitled
to impose such restrictions, such as restrictions on
transfers by Directors and persons closely associated
with them during closed periods, or the Company’s
Articles of Association allow the Board to decline to
register a transfer of shares or otherwise impose
a restriction on shares to prevent the Company
breaching any law or regulation;

- no agreements between holders of securities
regarding their transfer which are known to the
Company;

- no restrictions on exercising voting rights save
where the Company is legally entitled to impose such
restrictions, such as if, having been served with a
notice under section 793 of the Companies Act 2006,
a shareholder fails to disclose details of any past or
present beneficial interest;

- no special rights with regard to control attached to
securities in the Company; and

- no agreements to which the Company is party
that might affect its control following a successful
takeover bid.

Annual Report and Financial Statements
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SHARE ISSUES AND BUY-BACKS

The Board has not adopted any formal premium or
discount targets which would dictate the point at which
the Company would seek to issue or buy back ordinary
shares. Information on the Board's approach to share
issues and buy-backs can be found under ‘Examples
of Stakeholder Considerations’ on page 87 and ‘Share
Rating Management'’ on page 72.

The Company's current general authority to allot for
cash on a non-pre-emptive basis up to 23,938,492
ordinary shares, representing ¢.10% of the ordinary
shares in issue on the date the authority was granted
expires at the conclusion of the 2023 AGM. Special
resolution 10 will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM
seeking renewal of such authority until the 2024 AGM
or 31 December 2024, whichever is the earlier. Unless
specifically authorised by shareholders, no issue of
ordinary shares on a non-pre-emptive basis will be
made at a price lessthanthe prevailing NAV per ordinary
share at the time of issue.

The Company's current authority to make market
purchases up to 35,883,800 ordinary shares,
representing 14.99% of the ordinary shares in issue
on the date the authority was granted, expires at the
conclusion of the 2023 AGM. No shares were bought
back under this authority during the year ended 30 June
2023. In the period since the year end to 13 October
2023, the Company bought back 2,186,344 shares
under this authority following a share repurchase
programme announced on 13 July 2023. The shares
bought back are being held in treasury. Special
resolution 11 will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM
seeking renewal of this authority until the 2024 AGM
or 31 December 2024, whichever is the earlier. The
Company may hold bought-back shares in treasury
and then re-sell such shares (or any of them) for cash or
cancel bought-back shares {or any of them). Shares will
only be re-sold from treasury at a premium to the NAV
per share,

MAJOR INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 30 June 2023 and 30 September 2023, the
Companyhadbeen notifiedunderthe FCA's Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules or was otherwise
aware of the following shareholders who were directly
- or indirectly interested in 3% or more of the voting
- rights in the Company's issued share capital:

= ﬁfrﬁépépe Investment Trust PLC

% of % of
voting rights voting rights
30June 29 September
Holder 2023 2023
British Business Bank
Finance Ltd 13.94 14.07
Schroders Plc 12.25 1219
RBC Brewin Dolphin 6.78 6.65
RBC Dominion
Securities%lInc 5.22 5.27
Hargreaves Lansdown
Asset Mgmt 4.7 5.00
Airbus Defence &
Space Limited 3.66 3.69
DIRECTORS

The names and biographical details of the Directors
at the date of this Report are shown on pages 90
and 91. Details of the interests of the Directors and
their connected persons in the Company’s ordinary
shares, the Directors’ remuneration policy and
their remuneration can be found in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 118 to 120. No Director
has a service contract with the Company and there are
no agreements between the Company and its Directors
providing for compensation for loss of office.

The rules concerning the appointment and replacement
of Directors are contained in SSIT's Articles of
Association and the Companies Act 2006. Further
details are provided in the Corporate Governance
Report on page 107.

In line with the AIC Code and the Company's Articles
of Association all of the Directors are retiring at the
forthcoming AGM and each offers themself for re-
election. The Chair confirms that, following formal
performance evaluation, all the Directors continue to
be effective and their contribution is valuable and they
demonstrate full commitment to and independence
in their roles. The Board considers each Director to be
independent of the Investment Manager and each has
the full support of the Board in standing for re-election.
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DIRECTORS' INSURANCE AND
INDEMNIFICATION

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance cover is
in place in respect of the Directors and was in place
throughout the year.

The Company'’s Articles of Association provide that the
Company may, subject to the Companies Act 2006 and
other applicable UK legislation for the time beinginforce
affecting the Company, indemnify any person whois a
Director of the Company against (a) any liability whether
in connection with any negligence, default, breach of
duty or breach of trust by that person in relation to the
Company or any associated company or {b} any other
liability incurred by or attaching to that person in the
actual or purported execution andjor discharge of
that person's duties andfor the exercise or purported
exercise of that person’'s powers andjor otherwise in
relation to or in connection with that person’'s duties,
- powers or office.

RELATED PARTY AND INVESTMENT
MANAGER TRANSACTIONS

The Company's transactions with related parties during
the year were with its Directors.

There were no material transactions between the
Company and its Directors during the year other than
the amounts paid to them in respect of Directors’
remuneration for which there were no outstanding
amounts payable at the year end.

In relation to the provision of services by the Investment
Manager, other than fees payable by the Company inthe
ordinary course of business, there were no transactions
with the Investment Manager affecting the financial
position of the Company during the year. Details of
amounts paid to the Investment Manager during the
year may be found in note 4 to the financial statements
on page 143. There were no amounts outstanding to the
Investment Manager at 30 June 2023.

RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company are set out on pages 74 to 77. Further details
of the Company's key financial risks are set out in note
14 to the financial statements on page 150 to 156.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company's Articles of Association may only be
amended by special resolution at a general meeting of
shareholders.

LISTING RULE Q9.8.4

The FCA's Listing Rule 9.8.4 requires the Company
to include certain information in a single identifiable
section of the Annual Report or a cross reference table
indicating where the information is set out.

WHISTLEBLOWING

The Board has considered arrangements by which
staff of the Investment Manager or Administrator may,
in confidence, raise concerns within their respective
organisations about possible improprieties in matters
of financial reporting or other matters. It has concluded
that adequate arrangements are in place for the
proportionate and independent investigation of such
matters and, where necessary, for appropriate follow-
up action to be taken within their organisations.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO THE
COMPANY'S AUDITOR

Having made enquiries of the Investment Manager and
Administrator, each of the Directors confirms that, atthe
date of approval of this Report:

- as far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Auditor is unaware; and

- they have taken all the steps a Director might
reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of
any relevant audit information andto establish thatthe
Auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted
in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
companies Act 2006.

Annual Report and Financial Statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Directors will propose the re-appointment of
BDO LLP as the Company's Auditor and resolutions
concerning this and to authorise the Audit Committee to
determine the Auditor's remuneration will be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM.

ANNUAL REPORT

As disclosed in the Audit Committee Report on pages
10 to 113, after due consideration the Audit Committee
concluded that the Annual Report, taken as a whole,
is fair, balanced and understandable. Therefore, the
Board is of the opinion that the Annual Report provides
the information necessary for shareholders to assess
the position and performance, strategy and business
model of the Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET
DATE

On 13 July 2023, the Board announced a share
repurchase programme to mitigate the effect of the
substantial discount experienced by the Company.Inthe
period to 13 October 2023, the Company bought back
2,186,344 shares pursuant to the share repurchase
programme announced.

There have been no other significant events since
30 June 2023.

Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC

2023 AGM

A separate notice convening the Company's 2023
AGM will be sent to shareholders in due course.
The notice willinclude an explanation of the resolutions
to be considered at the AGM. A copy of the notice
will also be published on the Company's website
{(https:/linvestors.seraphim.vc).

We believe that all the resolutions to be proposed at the
AGM areinthe best interests of shareholders as a whole
and therefore recommend shareholders to vote in
favour of them as we will be doing with our own holdings.

APPROVAL

This Directors’ Report was approved by the Board on
16 October 2023.

On behalf of the Board:

WILL WHITEHORN

Chair
16 October 2023
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The Board aims to promote SSIT's long term sustainable success and ensure that SSIT is
run in a manner that is consistent with our beliefs in integrity, fairness, transparency and
diligence. This is achieved through the application and maintenance of the highest standards

of corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FRAMEWORK AND COMPLIANCE

The FCA’s Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules (the ‘Disclosure Rules') require listed companies
to disclose how they have applied the principles and
complied with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code issued by the Financial Reporting
Council {the 'FRC'}in July 2018 ({the ‘UK Code'). The UK
Code can be viewed at www.frc.org.uk.

The related Code of Corporate Governance issued
by the Association of Investment Companies (the
‘AIC’) in February 2019 (the ‘AIC Code’') addresses the
principles and provisions set outin the UK Code, as well
as setting out additional provisions on issues that are of
specific relevance to listed closed-ended investment
companies, such as the Company. The AIC Code is
available on the AIC website (www.theaic.co.uk). It
includes an explanation of how the AIC Code adapts
the principles and provisions set out in the UK Code to
make them relevant for listed closed-ended investment
companies. The FRC has endorsed the AIC Code and
confirmed that AIC member companies who report
against the AIC Code will be meeting their obligations in
relation to the UK Code and the associated disclosure
requirements of the Disclosure Rules.

The Company is a member of the AIC and the Board
considers that reporting against the principles
and provisions of the AIC Code provides more
relevant information on the Company's governance
arrangements to shareholders than reporting against
the principles and provisions of the UK Code.

The Board operates under a governance framework
which is consistent with the principles and provisions of
the AIC Code. This Report describes how the Company
applies those principles and provisions. The Audit,
Management Engagement and Remuneration and
Nomination Committee Reports on pages 110 to 117
form part of this Report. The Board confirms that the
Company complied with the relevant principles and
provisions of the AIC Code during the year.

As an externally managed investment company, the
Company has no employees and all its substantive
operations are conducted on its behalf by its third-party
service providers. Consequently, the Company has not
complied with the provisions in the UK Code relating
to the role of the chief executive, executive directors’
remuneration and the need for aninternal audit function.
However, the Audit Committee considers the need for
an internal audit function at least annually {see page 112
for further information).

BOARD LEADERSHIP AND PURPOSE

Role of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for promoting
the long-term sustainable success of the Company,
generating value for shareholders whilst having regard
to the interests of wider society.

The Board's role is to provide leadership and direction
within a robust framework of risk management and
internal controls. It sets the Company's strategic
objectives (subject to the Company's Articles of
Association and such approval of the shareholders in
general meeting as may be required from time to time)
and ensures that the necessary resources are in place
to enable the Company's objectives to be met.

In managing the Company, the aim of both the Board
and the Investment Manager is always to ensure SSIT's
long-term sustainable success and, therefore, the likely
long-term consequences of any decision are a key
consideration. The Investment Manager's Responsible
Investment Policy is integrated into its investment
process, ensuring that it has regard to the interests of
wider society in managing SSIT's portfolio.

Company purpose and strategy

The Company’s purpose is to provide a vehicle through
which a broad range of investors can gain exposure to
a diversified, international portfolio of predominantly
early and growth stage privately financed SpaceTech
businesses that have the potential to dominate globally
and are category leaders with first mover advantages
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in areas such as climate change, sustainability,
communications, mobility and security (including cyber
security). The Company seeks to generate capital
growth over the long term for shareholders.

Operating as an externally managed investment
company, SSIT seeks to fulfil its purpose by delegating
operational matters to specialist third-party service
providers, subjecttooversight by the Board. In particular,
the Investment Manager and Administrator are
responsible for implementing the Company's strategy
and managing the Company's day-to-day operations,
respectively. The Company's success is based on such
implementation and management being effective.
The Board's strategy is, therefore, to work closely with
the Investment Manager and Administrator in a long-
term relationship designed to foster an environment
that is consistent with SSIT's culture and values and
contributes to achieving SSIT's strategic objectives.

Culture and values

As an externally managed investment company, SSIT's
culture and values are the product of the behaviours of
both the Board and the Investment Manager and the
way in which they interact with each other and with the
Company’s other stakeholders.

The Board operates in an open, respectful and
inclusive manner, where differences of perspective are
welcomed and constructive challenge is encouraged.
Advice and input are sought from external advisers
and others, as required, to ensure a broad range of
views are available and to guard against groupthink.
As noted in more detail under 'Section 172: Engaging
with Stakeholders' on pages 82 to 87, the Board seeks
to engage with its Investment Manager, Administrator
and other key stakeholders in a constructive and
collaborative manner.

The Investment Manager has established an
organisation driven by purpose where its employees
are united by a passion to work with the most
impactful companies in the SpaceTech sector. The
Investment Manager strives to develop a culture of
candour and openness, with employees empowered
to innovate and work autonomously. Value is placed
on output (the quality of work produced) rather than
input {the number of hours logged). Team cohesion
and collaboration are core tenets of the Investment
Manager's people strategy.

>hj ”S‘paf_celnvestmentTrustPLC

Both the Board and Investment Manager aim to ensure
that SSIT is run in a manner that is consistent with
their beliefs in integrity, fairness, transparency and
diligence and responsive to the views of the Company’s
shareholders and other stakeholders. Both seek to
maintain high standards of business conduct at all times.

We believe that the culture and values of the Board
and Investment Manager encourage constructive and
robust challenge and debate, generate strong collective
wisdom and ultimately lead to good decision making, all
of which areimportanttothe successfulimplementation
of the Company's strategy.

Recognising the importance of culture and values, the
Board monitors them on an ongoing basis. They are
also formally reviewed as part of the annual Board and
Investment Manager evaluation process.

Conflicts of interest

Directors have adutyto avoidsituationswheretheyhave,
or could have, a direct or indirect interest that conflicts,
or possibly could conflict, with the Company's interests
{‘conflict situations'). As permitted by the Companies
Act 2006, the Company's Articles of Association allow
the Directors to authorise conflict situations, where
appropriate.

The Board has a procedure in place to deal with conflict
situations. As part of this process, Directors must
submit any actual or potential conflict situations they
may have to the Board for approval as soon as possible.
In deciding whether to approve a conflict situation, the
Board will act in a way it considers, in good faith, will be
most likely to promote the Company’s success, taking
into consideration whether the Director’s ability to act
in accordance with their wider duties is affected. The
Company Secretary maintains the register of approved
conflict situations {which also includes a list of other
external positions held). Directors have a duty to keep
the Board updated about any changes to their approved
conflict situations. In certain circumstances the
conflicted Director may be required to absent themself
from discussions or decisions on the matter on which
they are conflicted (in which event, the Director will not
be counted when determining whether the meeting
is quorate). No such circumstances arose in the year.
None of the Directors have, or have had, any potential
conflicts of interest of the nature listed in provisions
6and12 of the AIC Code.
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The Board also has a procedure in place to manage
potential conflicts of interest of the Investment
Manager. These can arise, for example, where share
options and/or warrants have been granted to an
affiliate of the Investment Manager by a participant
in an accelerator programme run by that affiliate and
the Company subsequently has the opportunity to
invest in the participant. In such instances, only the
independent advisory committee members of the
Investment Manager's Investment Committee (listed
on page 94) consider the investment at the Investment
Committee meeting, and the final stage of the Board's
conflict management process requires any such
investment to be approved by the Board before it is
made. During the year, the Board approved investments
in 2 companies {£2.3m of investments in aggregate)
in former accelerator programme participants (for
further information, see 'Examples of Stakeholder
Considerations’ on page 86).

DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board has overall responsibility for the Company's
activities. However, the Company has delegated or
outsourced various matters to its standing Committees
and key service providers, most notably the Investment
Manager and the Administrator, all of which operate
within clearly defined terms of reference or agreements
that set out their roles, responsibilities and authorities.

Board
The Board's principal responsibilities include:

- determining the Company's strategic objectives;

- overseeing the execution of the Company's strategy,
business conduct and implementation of its key
investment, financial, operational and compliance
policies, ensuringthey are aligned with SSIT's purpose
and strategy and the Board's culture and values and
that any necessary corrective action is taken;

- ensuring that appropriate internal controls and risk
management frameworks are in place to enable risk
to be managed and continually assessed;

- scrutinising the performance of the Investment
Manager, Administrator and other key service
providers and holding them to account;

- ensuring effective engagement with, and encouraging
participation from, shareholders and other key
stakeholders; and

- providing constructive challenge and strategic
guidance and offering specialist advice.

The Board's responsibilities for this Annual Report are
set out in the Directors' Responsibility Statement on
page121.

Matters not delegated or outsourcedto Committees and
key service providers are reservedfor considerationand
approval by the Board (including those matters listed
in a formal schedule of reserved matters approved by
the Board), thus enabling the Board to maintain full and
effective control over appropriate strategic, financial,
operational and compliance issues. The reserved
matters include:

- approving SSIT's long-term objectives and any
matters of a strategic nature, including any change
in investment objective, policy and restrictions,
including those which may need to be submitted to
shareholders for approval;

- the appointment and removal of key service providers
and any material amendments to the Company’s
agreements with them;

- approval of any other material contracts and
agreements entered into, varied or terminated;

- approving any transactions with related parties;

- approval of quarterly and any ad hoc NAV and other
financial announcements;

- approval of the Company's operating and marketing
budgets;

- the Company's corporate governance arrangements;
and

- approving any actual or potential conflicts of interest,
including any potential investments in respect of
which the Investment Manager may have a potential
conflict of interest.

The full schedule of matters reserved for the
Board is available on the Company's website
(https:/linvestors.seraphim.vc]).
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The primary focus at Board meetings is a review of
investment performance and associated matters {such
as new investments, progress of portfolio companies,
investment pipeline, projected cash flow and market
environment), share price discount/premium, investor
relations, industry issues, legal and regulatory (including
corporate governance) developments and principal and
emerging risks and uncertainties, in particular those
identified in the Strategic Report on pages 1to 87.

Chair

The Chair is Will Whitehorn. His primary role as Chair
is to provide leadership to the Board. The principal
responsibilities of the Chair include:

+ ensuring the overall effectiveness of the Board in
directing the Company;

- takingaleadingrolein settingthe Company's strategic
objectives;

- facilitating open, honest and constructive debate
among Directors and the effective contribution of all
Directors;

* ensuring the Company is meeting its responsibilities
to shareholders and wider stakeholders; and

* engaging with shareholders to ensure that the Board
has a clear understanding of their views.

Full details of the role and responsibilities of the
Chair are available on the Company’s website
{(https:/linvestors.seraphim.vc/).

Senior Independent Director

The Senior Independent Director is Sue Inglis. Her
primary responsibilities as such are to serve as a
sounding board for the Chair, act as an intermediary
for other Directors and be available to respond to
shareholders’ concerns if they cannot be resolved
through the normal channels of communication (i.e.
through the Chair). The Senior Independent Director
leads the annual evaluation of the Chair. Full details
oftherole and responsibilities of the Senior Independent
Director are available on the Company's website
(https:/linvestors.seraphim.vcy).

Board Committees

The Board has three standing Committees, being
the Audit Committee, Management Engagement
Committee and Remuneration and Nomination
Committee: The roles and responsibilities of the
Committees are included in their respective Reports

1@2 Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC

on pages 110 to 117 and the terms of reference of each
Committee are available on the Company's website
{https:llinvestors.seraphimvc]). The Committees
review their terms of reference at least annually, with
any proposed changes recommended to the Board for
approval. Committee Chairs will attend AGMs to answer
any questions on each of their Committees' activities.
In addition, Committee Chairs will seek engagement
with shareholders on significant matters related to their
areas of responsibility.

The Board may also establish additional Committees
from time to time to take operational responsibility on
specific matters. These Committees ensure that key
matters are dealt with efficiently.

Investment Manager

The Investment Manager is the Company’s alternative
investment fund manager {‘AIFM') for the purpose
of the EU AIFM Directive as incorporated into UK
legislation. The Investment Management Agreement
dated 22 June 2021 between the Company and the
Investment Manager (the ‘IMA’) sets out the matters in
respect of which the Investment Manager has authority
and responsibility, subject to the overall control and
supervision of the Board. These include the Investment
Manager having full discretion in relation to SSIT's
portfolio management activities in accordance with
SSIT's investment policy and any other restrictions
imposed by the IMA or the Board from time to time. The
Investment Manager is also responsible for promoting
the Company's investment proposition to professional
and retail investors.

In advance of Board meetings, the Investment Manager
provides regular reports, which include operating
updates on the Company's investments, information
on potential new investment opportunities, cash flow
forecasts and other financial information and other
relevant information. Senior representatives of the
Investment Manager attend Board meetings. The
Investment Manager is responsible for keeping the
Board informed, in a timely manner, of any material
developments arising from its portfolio management
activitiesorotherrelevantmatters,includinginteractions
with shareholders and other key stakeholders.

Under the IMA, the Investment Manager is entitled to
management and performance fees, details of which
are included in note 4 to the financial statements on
page 143. The Investment Manager’'s appointment is
terminable by the Company or Investment Manager on
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not less than 12 months’ notice, such notice to expire
on or at any time after the third anniversary of SSIT's
launch (14 July 2021). The IMA may be terminated with
immediate effect onthe occurrence of certain events.

Administrator/Company Secretary

The Company has appointed the Administrator to
provide fund accounting, company secretarial and
other administrative services. The Administrator’'s
responsibilities include:

- undertaking the day-to-day financial and
administration functions of the Company, including
calculation of the NAV and maintenance of the
Company's accounting and statutory records;

- providing the company secretarial functions required
by the Companies Act 2006;

- ensuring that the Company complies with applicable
laws, rules and regulations, including laws and
regulations applicable to investment trusts and the
rules of the FCA and London Stock Exchange;

- advising on governance matters;

- supporting the Board to ensure that it has the policies,
processes and information it needs to function
effectively and efficiently;

- ensuring that Board procedures are followed; and

- facilitating the flow of information between the Board,
Committees, Investment Manager and other service
providers.

In advance of Board meetings, the Administrator
provides regular reports, which include financial and
other operational information, details of any breaches
or complaints and relevant legal and regulatory,
corporate governance and other technical updates.
The Administrator is responsible for keeping the
Board informed, in a timely manner, of any material
developments regarding matters within the scope of its
role and responsibilities.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Regular Board and Committee meetings are scheduled
throughout the year (Board: four; Audit Committee:
four; Management Engagement Committee: one;
Remuneration and Nomination Committee: one).
In addition, the Board and Committees meet between

scheduled meetings in preparation for or follow-up after
scheduled meetings and any other matters that may
arise between scheduled meetings. The Company also
holds an annual strategy meeting to enablethe Directors
to consider strategic matters outside of scheduled
quarterly Board meetings.

The Company Secretary assists the Board and
Committee Chairs in agreeing the agenda in sufficient
time before the meeting to allow input from key
stakeholders. Care is taken to ensure that papers are
presented clearly and with the appropriate level of detail
to assist the Board and Committees in discharging
their duties. The Board uses a web-based system
which provides ready access to Board and Committee
papers and materials. Prior to each Board and
Committee meeting the Directors receive the agenda
and supporting papers through this system to ensure
that they have all the latest and relevant information in
advance of the meeting to enable them sufficient time
to prepare properly for the meeting and to make further
enquiries about any matter prior to the meeting, should
they so wish. This also allows any Director whais unable
to attend to submit views in advance of the meeting.

The Investment Manager, the Administrator and, as
required, the Company's other key service providers are
expected to be present at formal Board and Committee
meetings unless identified conflicts require otherwise.

Due to its size the Board has deemed it appropriate
for all Directors to be members of all Committees.
When running meetings, the Chair or Committee Chair
maintains a collaborative atmosphere and ensures that
all Directors have the opportunity to contribute to the
debate. The Directors are able to voice their opinions in
a calm and respectful environment, allowing coherent
discussion.

The proceedings at all Board and Committee meetings
are fully recorded, including any Director’'s concerns, in
the minutes. After each Board and Committee meeting,
the Company Secretary operates a follow-up procedure
to ensure that actions are completed as agreed by the
Board or Committee.
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The number of scheduled meetings during the year, and the attendance of the individual Directors at those

meetings, is shown in the table below.

Remuneration Management

Audit and Nomination Engagement

Board Committee Committee Committee

Number of meetings 2 1 1
Will Whitehorn 4 2 1 om

Sue Inglis 4 2 1 1

ChristinaMcComb 4 2 1 1

AngelaLane 4 2 1 1

' Mr Whitehorn was unable to be present at the Management Engagement Committee meeting held on 15 May 2023 but was briefed on the outcomes

of the meeting by the Chair of this Committee shortly after the meeting.

In addition to the scheduled meetings and the annual
strategy meeting, there were nine ad hoc Board and
Committee meetings during the year. These meetings
were convened to conclude a number of matters
previously discussed at scheduled meetings and deal
with matters arising between scheduled meetings,
as well as, to consider the Investment Manager's
preliminary reports on proposed portfolio valuations.
Prior to ad hoc meetings, the Directors receive the
agenda and supporting papers. Typically, all Directors
attend ad hoc meetings, although this is not always
feasible or necessary and Directors who are unable to
attend a meeting can communicate their views ahead of
the meeting.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND SUCCESSION

Board composition and independence

At the date of this Report, the Board consists of four
non-executive Directors, all of whom are (and were on
appointment) independent of the Investment Manager.
Each of the Directors is {and was on appointment)
independent when assessed against the circumstances
set outin provision 13 of the AIC Code.

The current Board was selected to bring a breadth
of skills, experience and knowledge relevant to the
Company's structure and strategy. Three of the
Directors were appointed prior to the IPO and the fourth
joined the Board on 1 January 2022. Details of the
Directors, including their skills and experience, are set
out on pages 90 and 91.

e

The composition of the Board is a fundamental driver
of its success as the Board must provide strong and
effective leadership of the Company without any one
individual or small group dominating the decision-
making. The strong and diverse mix of experienced
individuals on the current Board enables high calibre
debate and constructive challenge. The Board is able
to use the skills, experience and knowledge of the
individual Directors to their maximum potential and
make decisions that are in the best long-term interests
of the Company.

The Board's tenure, succession and diversity policies
seek to ensure that the Board continues to be well-
balanced and refreshed by the appointment of new
Directors with the necessary skills, experience,
knowledge and personal qualities and who can bring
fresh perspectives.

Board diversity

The Board acknowledges the importance of diversity
as a key driver of effectiveness and strongly believes
that having diversity in skills, experience, identity
and cognitive thought has significant benefits when
making decisions. The Board currently comprises
four independent Directors appointed on merit-based
qualifications. The skills and experience which the
currentmembers of the Board bringto SSIT's leadership
are described on pages 90 and 91.

The Board supports the progress being made under
the direction of the FCA's guidance to improve the
governance of listed companies by increasing both
gender and racial diversity amongst the directors who
serve these businesses.

‘:iﬂdﬁ“ :S‘:,é'raplhjn.l Space investment Trust PLC
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As at 30 June 2023, our Board composition exceeded
the revised gender targets which require at least 40%
of the Boardto be women and metthetargetthat at least
one of the senior Board positions be filled by a woman.

Currently, the Board has 75% female representation
and the Senior Independent Director (Sue Inglis) is also
female.

REPORTING TABLE ON GENDER REPRESENTATION AT 3@ JUNE 2023

Number of senior
positions on the
Board {Chair and

Number Percentage Senior

of Board of the Independent

members Board Director)

Men 1 25% 1
Women 3 75% 1

Other categories

Not specified/prefer not to say

Given the current tenure, knowledge and experience of our relatively small Board and the fact that the Company
is in an early stage, it does not currently have at least one member of the Board from a minority ethnic background
(contrary to the FCA's target for listed companies). Further consideration will be given to these targets when

implementing future succession plans.

REPORTING TABLE ON ETHNICITY REPRESENTATION AT 3@ JUNE 2023

Number of senior
positions on the
Board (Chair and

Number Percentage Senior

of Board of the Independent

members Board Director)

White British or other White {including minority-white groups) 4 100% 2

Mixed/Multiple Ethnic groups - - -

Asian/Asian British - - -

Black/African/Caribbean/Black British - - -

Other ethnic group, including Arab - - -

Not specified/prefer not to say - - -

The Board will keep under review and evaluate its Appointments to the Board

balance and composition to ensure that both it and The Remuneration and Nomination Committee

its Committees have the appropriate mix of skills,
experience, independence and knowledge to ensure
their continued effectiveness. In doing so, the Board
will consider diversity, including age, gender, ethnicity,
educationalandprofessionalbackgrounds and cognitive
and personal strengths amongst other relevant factors.

reviews at least annually the composition of the Board
and its Committees, including the balance of skills,
experience, knowledge, diversity {including age, gender,
social and ethnic backgrounds and cognitive and
personal strengths) and length of service, and makes
recommendations to the Board when it considers that a
new Director should be recruited.
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Once a decision has been taken by the Board to recruit
a new Director, the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee oversees the recruitment process. At the
outset, the Committee reviews the current balance
and diversity of the Board, identifies any specific skills,
experience, knowledge and personal qualities that are
required to ensure the continued effective operation of
the Board and then sets objective selection criteria to
ensure a formal and transparent appointment process.
The Remuneration and Nomination Committee intends
to use non-executive director recruitment consultants
and/or open advertising when recruiting new Directors.
Following the creation of a shortlist of candidates, the
decision-making process will be based on merit, with
due consideration of the objective selection criteria
identified.

When considering new appointments, the Committee
also takes into account other demands on the
candidates’ time. In advance of joining the Board,
successful candidates will be asked to disclose any
existing significant commitments with an indication of
the time involved and to confirm that they are able to
allocate sufficient time to the business of the Company
and that there are no situations where they have, or
could have, a direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or
possibly could conflict, with the Company’s interests.

Directors are not appointed for any specific term and
are subject to election at the first AGM following their
appointment and, thereafter, annual re-election at
AGMs. Directors’' appointments are reviewed by the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee ahead of
their submission for re-election, with submission being
contingent on satisfactory performance evaluation.
Directors may resign by notice in writing to the Board at
any time.

At the time of appointment, a new Director receives
a letter of appointment that sets out their duties and
obligations. Copies of the letters of appointment of the
current Directors are available for inspection at the
Company's registered office and at each AGM.

Board induction and training

New Directors will receive an induction on joining
the Board covering the Company's strategy, policies,
operational structure and governance, which will be
coordinated by the Company Secretary. In addition,
new Directors will be briefed fully about the Company's
strategy and portfolio by the Investment Manager.

aphilin-Space Investent Trist PLC
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The Company Secretary is charged with assisting in
the ongoing training and development of all Directors,
including providing the Directors with details of the
Company's regulatory and statutory obligations (and
changes thereto). Directors are able to receive training
or additional information on any specific subject
pertinent to their role as a Director that they request or
require. The Directors are encouraged to participate
generally in industry events and to attend any other
relevant seminars and conferences, if necessary at the
Company's expense.

information and support

To enable the Board to function effectively and the
Directors to discharge their responsibilities, the
Directors are regularly updated, in a timely manner, on
investment, financial, investor and other stakeholder
engagement and other matters. In addition to periodic
reporting at scheduled Board and Committee meetings,
the Directorsreceive, and may request, ad hoc additional
informationfromthe InvestmentManager, Administrator
and other key service providers. The Directors also
maintain regular engagement, through formal meetings
and calls as well as informal communications, with the
Investment Manager, Administrator and other key
service providers. This active engagement creates an
openand collaborative culture thatensures that we have
a thorough understanding of the Company's business
and facilitates our robust scrutiny and constructive
challenge of the activities and performance of, in
particular, the Investment Manager and Administrator.

The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary is
responsible for facilitating good and timely information
flows within the Board and its Committees and between
Directors and the Investment Manager.

There is a procedure in place for Directors to take
independent professional advice at the Company's
expense should this be required to aid them in their
duties.

Time commitment

All Directors are aware of the need to allocate sufficient
time to the Company in order to discharge their
responsibilities effectively. Directors must obtain prior
approvalfromthe Boardwhentheytakeonanyadditional
external appointments and it is their responsibility to
ensure that such appointments will not prevent them
meeting their time commitments to the Company.
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Where a significant additional external appointment is
approved by the Board, the reasons for permitting the
appointment will be explained in the Annual Report.

Election and re-election by shareholders

Directors are required to stand for election at the first
AGM following their appointment and annual re-election
at each subsequent AGM. A Director who retires at an
AGM may, if willing to continue to act, be elected or re-
elected at that meeting. If, at a general meeting at which
a Director retires, the Company neither re-elects that
Director nor appoints another person to the Boardinthe
place of that Director, the retiring Director shall, if willing
to act, be deemed to have been re-elected unless at the
general meeting it is resolved not to fill the vacancy or
unless a resolution for the re-election of the Director is
put to the meeting and not passed.

All of the Directors will retire at the forthcoming AGM
and are willing to continue to act. Having considered
their effectiveness, demonstration of commitment to
the role, attendance at meetings and contribution to
the Board's and Committees’ deliberations, the Board
has approved the nomination for re-election of all of
the Directors.

Board tenure

The Board's policy on Director, including Chair, tenure
is that a Director should normally serve no longer than
nine years but, where it is in the best interests of the
Company, its shareholders and other stakeholders, a
Director may serve for a limited time beyond that.

The Board believes that the continuity of experience
and knowledge of its Directors is important and that
a suitable balance requires to be struck with the need
for refreshing of the skills and experience of the Board.
The Board believes that some limited flexibility in its
approach to Director, including Chair, tenure will enable
it to manage succession planning more effectively.

The Board also believes that Directors with more than
nine years' service can still form part of an independent
majority. In the event that any Director, including the
Chair, shall have been (or on re-election would be} in
office for nine years or more the Company will consider
whether there is a risk that such a Director might
reasonably be deemed to have lost independence
through such long service.

In the event of a Director being in office for nine years
or more at the AGM at which their re-election is to be
proposed, the Board will include an explanation in the
relevant Annual Report or notice convening the next
AGM as to its reasoning for recommending re-election
notwithstanding the length of tenure.

As the Company was incorporated on 14 May 2021,
no issues regarding long tenure have arisen to be
considered by the Board.

Succession planning
The aim of the Company's succession planis:

- to preserve continuity by phasing the retirement of the
original Directors so that they do not all retire at once
after serving nine years; and

- to ensure the Board's skills and experience are
regularly refreshed and the benefits of a truly diverse
Board are further enhanced, in terms of age, gender
and diversity of background and thought.

Succession planning is explained in more detail in the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee report on
page117.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS

Board, Commiittees, Chair and individual Directors

Details on the annual evaluations of the Board, its
standing Committees, the Chair andindividual Directors,
conducted by the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee, are included in that Committee’s Report on
pages 116 and 117. Having considered the Committee’s
report and recommendations, the Board accepted all of
the Committee's recommendations.

Investment Manager

Details on the annual evaluation of the Investment
Manager, conducted by the Management Engagement
Committee, are included in that Committee's Report
on pages 114 and 115. Having considered the report and
recommendation from the Management Engagement
Committee, the Board believes that the continued
appointment of the Investment Manager on the terms
agreedis in the interests of the shareholders as a whole.
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Administrator and other key service providers

Information on the annual evaluations of the
Administrator and other key service providers is
included in the Management Engagement Committee
Report on page 115. Having considered the Committee's
report and recommendations, the Board accepted all of
the Committee’'s recommendations.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 118 to
120 includes the Directors' remuneration policy and
details of the remuneration of each Director.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

A critical factor in achieving the long-term sustainable
success of the Company is understanding the risks
that the Company faces and ensuring that controls are
in place to manage and mitigate them. The Company's
principal and emerging risks, together with details of
how we seek to manage and mitigate them, are set out
in the Strategic Report on pages 1to 87. The Company's
financial risks are discussed in note 14 to the financial
statements on pages 150 to 156.

Responsibility for, and effectiveness of, risk
management and internal controls

The Board is responsible for determining the nature
and extent of the principal and emerging risks the
Company is willing to take in order to achieve its long-
term strategic objectives. The Board is also responsible
for maintaining the Company's systems of risk
management and internal controls (such as financial,
operational and compliance controls). The AIC Code
requires the Board to review the effectiveness of the
Company's systems of risk management and internal
controls at least annually.

The Board has established an ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the principal and
emerging risks faced by the Company.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has
established,inconjunctionwiththe Investment Manager
and Administrator, an ongoing process designed to
meet the particular needs of the Company in identifying,
evaluating and managing the risks to whichitis exposed.
The process accords with the Financial Reporting
‘Council’s 'Guidance on Risk Management, Internal
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Control and Related Financial and Business Reporting'.
The process was in operation throughout the year and
up to the date of this Report. The system is designed
to meet the specific risks faced by the Company and
takes account of the nature of the Company's reliance
on the Investment Manager, Administrator and other
key service providers and their internal controls. The
process therefore manages rather than eliminates
the risk of failure to achieve the Company’s business
objectives and provides reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

At its October 2023 meeting, the Audit Committee
carried out an annual assessment of the Company's
risk management and internal controls for the year
and taking account of events since 30 June 2023. The
Committee determined that the risk management and
internal controls were operating effectively and as
expected, and the results of the assessment were then
reported to the Board at the following Board meeting.

Based on the ongoing work of the Audit Committee
in monitoring the risk management and internal
control systems on behalf of the Board and the Audit
Committee's report to the Board on its findings and
conclusions regarding those systems, the Board:

- is satisfied thatit has carried outarobust assessment
of the principal and emerging risks facing the
Company, including those that could threaten its
business model, future performance, solvency,
liquidity or reputation; and

+ has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems and no
significant failings or weaknesses were identified.

Risk management and internal control systems

The Company's risk management and internal control
systems are designed to identify, manage and mitigate
on a timely basis both the principat and emerging risks
inherent to the Company's business and activities and
safeguarding the Company’s assets. The Company has
arisk-based approach to risk management and internal
controls through a detailed matrix that identifies each
of the key risk areas associated with the Company's
business and activities and the controls employed to
minimise and mitigate those risks. The Audit Committee
is responsible for monitoring and regularly reviewing
the Company's risk management and internal control
systems, including the risk matrix, and reports its
findings and conclusions to the Board. Where changes
in risk are identified during the year, the risk matrix is
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updated as appropriate and an assessment made as
to whether further action is required to manage the
changes identified. The risk matrix was reviewed and
updated by the Audit Committee, and approved by the
Board, during the year.

The Company has delegated its day-to-day activities
to the Investment Manager and Administrator and
has clearly defined their roles, responsibilities and
authorities. The Investment Manager and Administrator
have their own risk management and internal control
systems. Thelnvestment Manager, whichisregulated by
the FCA, and Administrator both operate risk-controlled
frameworks on an ongoing basis. The Administrator has
anannualtype 2 report produced under the International
Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3402.
This entails an independent rigorous examination and
testing of its controls and processes.

The Board oversees the ongoing performance and
actions of the Investment Manager and Administrator
at its scheduled quarterly meetings and, as required,
at ad hoc meetings. At each quarterly Board meeting,
the Investment Manager reports on the performance
and valuation of the Company's investments, activities
since the last Board meeting, any specific new risks
identified relating to the Company's portfolio and
cash projections and the Administrator reports on the
Company's corporate activity and financial, compliance,
governance, legal and regulatory matters. The Board
also receives updates from the Investment Manager
and Administrator on material developments affecting
the Company's business, activities or investments
between quarterly Board meetings.

The Board, Investment Manager and Administrator,
together, review all financial performance and resuits
notifications. The Investment Manager reports to the
Board twice a year regarding the Company's longer-
term viability, which includes financial sensitivities and
stress testing of the business to ensure that the adoption
of the going concern basis is appropriate.

The Company is ultimately dependent upon the quality
and integrity of the management and staff of the
Investment Manager and Administrator. In each case,
qualified and able individuals have been selected at
all levels. The Investment Manager and Administrator
are aware of the risk management and internal
controls relevant to their activities and are collectively
accountable for the operation of those controls.

Eachyear adetailed review of the quality of services and
performance of the Investment Manager, Administrator
and other key service providers pursuant to their terms
of engagement is undertaken by the Management
Engagement Committee.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

For the reasons stated in the Audit Committee Report
on page 112, the Board does not currently consider that
an internal audit function is required.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

We place great importance on communication with
shareholders, as well as with the Investment Manager,
Administrator and other key stakeholders. Details of our
engagement with all of the Company's key stakeholders
and examples of how we had regard to those
stakeholders in our decision-making processes during
the year are set out in the Strategic Report on pages
82 to 87. In addition, the Chairs of the Board's standing
Committees will seek to engage with shareholders on
significantmattersrelatedtotheir areas of responsibility.

The Board recognises that relationships with suppliers
are enhanced by prompt paymentandthe Administrator,
in conjunction with the Investment Manager, ensures all
payments are processed within the contractual terms
agreed with the individual suppliers.

APPROVAL

This Corporate Governance Report was approved by
the Board on 16 October 2023.

On behalf of the Board:

a7

WILL WHITEHORN
Chair

16 October 2023
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee consists of all Board
members and is currently chaired by Ms Lane,
who succeeded Ms McComb as Chair of the
Audit Committee following the conclusion of
the Company’s AGM on 17 November 2022.

The AIC Code permits the Chair of the Board to be a
member of the Audit Committee. The Board believes
that Mr Whitehorn's experience and knowledge is a
significant benefit to the Committee.

The Committee members have considerable business
and financial experience and the Board considers that
the membership as a whole has sufficient recent and
relevant sector and financial experience to discharge
the responsibilities of the Committee. Ms Lane is a
Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. All members of the Committee
are independent of the Company's Auditor, Investment
Manager and Administrator.

The Committee's authority and duties are clearly defined
inits writtenterms of reference which are available onthe
Company's website (https:/linvestors.seraphim.vc/). The
terms of reference include all matters indicated by the
FCA's Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule 71,
the AIC Code and the UK Code. The terms of reference
are reviewed at least annually.

The Committee meets no less than two times a year
and at such other times as the Committee Chair shall
require. At least once a year the Committee meets with
the Auditor without any representative of the Investment
Manager or Administrator being present.

The Committee's effectivenessis reviewed onanannual
basis as part of the Board's performance evaluation
process.

Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC
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Key Responsibilities

+ Scrutinising and, where appropriate,
challenging the Investment Manager's
proposed valuations of SSIT's private
company investments.

- Monitoring the integrity of SSIT's financial
reporting and, where appropriate, challenging
the financial reporting judgements of the
Investment Manager and Administrator.

- Keeping under review the adequacy and
effectiveness of SSIT's internal controls,
including financial controls and risk
management systems.

+ Considering the ongoing assessment of SSIT
as a going concern and assessment of its
longer-term viability.

+ Appointing the Auditor, approving its
remuneration, monitoring the extent of any
proposed non-audit services and generally
overseeing the relationship.

* Monitoring the Auditor's
objectivity and effectiveness.

independence,

* Reviewing the performance and quality of the
Auditor’s audit work.

> Reportingtothe Board on how the Committee
has dischargedits responsibilities and making
recommendations as appropriate.

- J

MAIN ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Committee held four scheduled
meetings and several ad hoc meetings and there was
ongoing liaison and discussion between the Auditor,
BDO LLP, and the Audit Committee Chair with regard
to the audit approach, identified risks and other matters
pertinent to the Committee.
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The matters considered, monitored, reviewed and, where
appropriate challenged by the Committee during the year
included the following:

- the terms of reference of the Committee;
- the Company'’s accounting policies and practices;

- the Investment Manager's valuation approach and the
quarterly valuations of the Company’s investments
prepared by the Investment Manager;

- the Company’s key risks, including emerging risks,
the risk management systems in place and the
Company'’s risk matrix;

- the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control environment;

- whether there is a need for an internal audit function;

- the format of the Annual and Interim Reports
and financial statements, associated results
announcements and related matters;

+ regulatory changes impacting the Company;

- the Financial Reporting Council's latest Annual Audit
Quality Inspection Reporton BDO LLP;

- the independence of the Auditor;

- the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
Auditor; and

- the audit plan of the Auditor for the year.

After the year end, the Committee met on 12 October
2023 and 16 October 2023 to consider and review
the Annual Report and financial statements and
related matters and recommend the Annual Report
and financial statements to the Board for approval.
The Auditor was invited to attend the Committee
meeting on 12 October 2023 and 16 October 2023
and a member of the Committee met with the Auditor
without representatives of the Investment Manager or
Administrator being present.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The primary role of the Committee in relation to financial
reporting is to review, with the Administrator, Investment
Manager and Auditor, and report to the Board on the
appropriateness of the Annual Report and financial
statements and Interim Report, concentrating on,
amongst other matters:

- the quality and acceptability of accounting policies
and practices;

- the clarity of the disclosures and compliance with
financial reporting standards and relevant financial
and governance reporting requirements;

- material areas in which significant judgements had
been applied or where there had been discussion
with the Auditor, including the valuation of unlisted
investments and going concern and viability
statements;

- whether the strategic report included in the Annual
Report included a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and financial position
of the Company, together with a description of the
principal and emerging risks and uncertainties that it
faces; and

- whether the Annual Report and financial
statements, taken as a whole, were fair, balanced
and understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's
position and performance, business model and
strategy.

To aid its review, the Committee considered reports from
the Administrator and Investment Manager and the report
from the Auditor on the outcome of its annual audit.

SIGNIFICANT AREAS OF JUDGEMENT
CONSIDERED BY THE COMMITTEE

The Committee has determined that a key risk of
misstatement of the Company's financial statements
relatestothe valuations of its private company investments
held at fair value through profit or loss as they represent a
significant proportion of the Company's net assets (82.1%
as at 30 June 2023} and since the valuations of these
investments requirethe use of estimates, assumptions and
judgements. Thereis also aninherent risk of management
override as the Investment Manager's performance fee
is calculated based on NAV (see note 4 to the financial
statements on page 143 for details of the performance
fee). Whilst the Administrator is responsible for calculating
the NAV, the most significant input to calculating the NAV
is the valuation of the Company's investments, which are
prepared by the Investment Manager and reviewed by the
Committee before approval by the Board.

[P
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The Company's private company investments are early
or growth stage companies. Valuations are prepared
in accordance with the IPEV Valuation Guidelines and
the Investment Manager's valuation policy, which has
been formally reviewed and approved by the Board.
The Investment Manager's approach to valuation of
investments is outlined in the Investment Manager's
Report on page 40 and in notes 2 and 8 to the financial
statements on pages 140 and 145 to 147 respectively. The
valuation methodology used for each private company
investment is reassessed at each valuation date.

On a quarterly basis, the Investment Manager provides
a detailed analysis of the proposed valuations of the
Company's investments with supporting materials.
The Committee considers in detail and, as necessary,
challengesthe analysisand supportingmaterials, including
the methodology and integrity of the valuations, and may
request additional information. Once the Committee has
satisfied itself that the key estimates, assumptions and
judgements usedinthe valuations are appropriate and that
the investments have been fairly valued, it recommends
the valuations for approval by the Board.

The Auditor has explained the results of its audit work on
valuations in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages
12410131, There were no adjustments proposed that were
material in the context of the Annual Report and financial
statements as awhole.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is accountable for carrying out a robust
assessment of the principal risks facing the Company,
including those threatening its business model, future
performance, solvency and liquidity.

On behalf of the Board, the Committee reviews the
effectiveness of the Company's risk management
processes. The Company's risk assessment process and
the way in which significant business risks are managed
are key areas of focus for the Committee. The work of
the Committee during the year was driven primarily by
the Company's assessment of its principal and emerging
risks as set out in the Strategic Report on pages 74 to 77.
The Committee also receives reports from the Investment
Manager and Administrator on the Company's risk
evaluation process and reviews changes to significant
risks identified.

No significant weaknesses were identified in the year.

. Space Invesfment Trust PLC
ot . N .

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Committee considers at least once a year whether
there is a need for an internal audit function. Currently,
the Committee does not consider there to be a need for
an internal audit function, on the basis that there are no
employees in the Company and all outsourced functions
are with parties who have their own internal controls and
procedures. The Management Engagement Committee
regularly reviews the performance of the key service
providers and their risk and control processes.

AUDITOR

BDO LLP was appointed as the Company's Auditor
following its incorporation.

The reappointment of the Auditor is subject to annual
shareholder approval at the AGM. There are no contractual
obligations restricting the choice of Auditor and the
Company will put the audit services contract out to tender
at least every 10 years. In accordance with professional
guidelines, the statutory auditor will be rotated at least
every five years. The current statutory auditor, Mr Wieder,
has completed his second year in therole.

To form a view on audit quality and the effectiveness of
the external audit process, the Committee reviewed and
considered:

- the Auditor's fulfilment of the agreed audit plan and
variations from it;

» discussions or reports highlighting the major issues
that arose during the course of the audit;

- feedback from the Administrator and Investment
Manager evaluating the performance of the audit
team, including the robustness of the audit, the level
of challenge offered by the audit team, the skills,
experience and overall quality of the audit team, the
timeliness of delivering the tasks required for the audit
and reporting to the Committee and the overall quality
of the service; and

- the Committee’s own observations and interactions
with the Auditor.
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The Committee also considered the Auditor’s technical
competence, understanding of the Company’s business
and whether it demonstrated an appropriate level
of diligence, professional scepticism and challenge.
Following this review, the Audit Committee was satisfied
that BDO LLP had carried out its duties in a diligent and
professional manner and provided a high level of service.

The Committee monitors the Auditor's independence
through three aspects of its work:

- the approval of a policy regulating the non-audit
services that may be provided by the Auditor to the
Company;

- assessing the appropriateness of the fees paid to the
Auditor for all work undertaken by it; and

- reviewing the information and assurances provided
by the Auditor on its compliance with the relevant
ethical standards.

Details of the audit and non-audit fees paid to BDO LLP in
respect of the year and prior period are set out in note 5
to the financial statements on page 143. Notwithstanding
such non-audit services, the Committee considered
BDO LLP to be independent of the Company and that the
provision of such services was not a threat to BDO LLP's
objectivity and independence.

BDO LLP confirmed that all its partners and staff involved
withtheauditwereindependentof any linkstothe Company
and that these individuals had complied with BDO LLP's
ethics and independence policies and procedures which
are fully consistent with the Financial Reporting Council's
Ethical Standards.

Having satisfied itself as to the effectiveness and
independence of BDO LLP as the Company'’s Auditor, the
Committee recommended to the Board that BDO LLP be
reappointed as Auditor for the year ending 30 June 2024.
Accordingly, a resolution proposing the reappointment of
BDO LLP as the Auditor will be put to shareholders at the
2023 AGM.

The Committee will continue to monitor the performance
of the Auditor on an annual basis and will consider
its independence and objectivity, taking account of
appropriate guidelines. In addition, the Committee Chair
will continue to maintain regular contact with the lead audit
partner outside the formal Committee meeting schedule,
not only to discuss formal agenda items for upcoming
meetings, but also to review any other significant matters.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board has requested the Committee to confirm that,
in its opinion, the Board can make the required statement
that the Annual Report and financial statements, taken
as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and
provide the information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Company's position and performance,
business model and strategy. The Committee has
given this confirmation based on its review of the whole
document, underpinned by involvement in the planning
for its preparation and review of the processes to assure
the accuracy of factual content.

COMMITTEE EVALUATION

The activities of the Committee were considered as part
of the Board evaluation process completed in May 2023
in accordance with standard governance arrangements
as summarised in the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee Report on pages 116 and 117. The conclusion
from the process was that the Committee was operating
effectively with the right balance of membership and skills.

APPROVAL

This Audit Committee Report was approved by the
Committee on 16 October 2023.

On behalf of the Committee:

(gl 122

ANGELA LANE
Audit Committee Chair

16 October 2023
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CIORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Management Engagement Committee
consists of all the Directors and is currently
chaired by Ms McComb, who succeeded
Mr Whitehorn as chair following the conclusion
of the Company's AGM on 17 November 2022.

The Committee’'s authority and duties are
clearly defined in its written terms of reference
which are available on the Company's website
{https:/finvestors.seraphim.vc/). The terms of reference
are reviewed at least annually.

( )

Key Responsibilities

* Evaluating the performance of the
Investment Manager.

* Reviewing the terms of the Investment
Management Agreement.

- Reviewing the Investment Manager's
remuneration, including the methodology
and level of the annual management and
performance fees.

- Considering the merit of obtaining an
independent appraisal of the Investment
Manager's services.

- Evaluating the performance of SSIT's
other key service providers (except for
the Auditor) and whether those service
providersdeliver value for money services.

- Assessing whether the culture, policies
and practices of the Investment Manager
and other key service providers are
consistent with good risk management,
compliance and regulatory frameworks.

- Reporting to the Board on how
the Committee has discharged
its responsibilities and making

recommendations as appropriate.

MANAGEMENT ENGAGEMENT
COMMITTEE REPORT

The Committee meets once a year and at such other
times as the Committee Chair shall require. It met once
during the year.

The Committee's effectivenessis reviewed onan annual
basis as part of the Board's performance evaluation
process.

EVALUATION OF THE INVESTMENT
MANAGER

The performance of the Investment Manager is
considered at every Board meeting, with a formal
evaluation by the Committee at least once each year.
For the purpose of its ongoing monitoring, the Board
receives detailed reports and views from the Investment
Manager on the Company's investment strategy,
investment portfolio and pipeline (including associated
risks) and investment performance.

The Committee met in May 2023 for the purpose of the
formal annual evaluation of the Investment Manager's
performance and to review the terms of the Investment
Management Agreement (details of which are included
under ‘Investment Manager’ on page 107 and in note
4 to the financial statements on page 143), including
the fee provisions. The Committee reviewed detailed
questionnaires completed by the Investment Manager,
which included sections on the Investment Manager's
systems, controls and policies. The results of the
detailed questionnaire completed by the Directors and
the Investment Manager in connection with the Board
evaluation, to the extent that they were relevant to the
Investment Manager evaluation, were also reviewed.
Other factors reviewed included:

+ quality and continuity of the Investment Manager's
team;
+ investment results achieved to date;

- the Investment Manager’'s engagement with the
Board and other key stakeholders;

- the Investment Manager's ongoing commitment to
promoting the Company;

+ the Investment Manager's compliance with
contractual arrangements and duties, including
compliance with SSIT's investment policy;
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MANAGEMENT ENGAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT

(continued)

- the methodology and level of the annual management
and performance fees (see note 4 to the financial
statementsonpage 14 3for detailsjandthe otherterms
of the Investment Management Agreement, having
regard to those of comparable listed investment
companies; and

- the Investment Manager’s culture and its strategy and
goals for developing its business.

Following its review, the Committee concluded that the
Investment Manager was performing well against the
requirements set by the Board and that it was satisfied,
in all material respects, with the services provided
by, performance of and support from the Investment
Manager and also with the interaction between the
Board and the Investment Manager.

The Committee concluded that, in its opinion, the
continuing appointment of the Investment Manager on
thetermsagreedwasinthebestinterestsof shareholders
as a whole and recommended this to the Board. The
Board agreed with the Committee's recommendation
and approved the continuing appointment of the
Investment Manager on the terms agreed.

EVALUATION OF OTHER KEY SERVICE
PROVIDERS

The performance of the Company’s other key service
providers is monitored by the Board on an ongoing
basis and formally evaluated by the Committee at least
once a year, with a key focus on the Administrator and
Company Secretary.

Atits meetinginMay2023,the Committeealsoundertook
the formal annual evaluation of the other key service
providers' performance and reviewed their respective
remuneration. The Committee reviewed a detailed
questionnaire completed by the other key service
providers, which included sections on their systems,
controls and policies. In most instances, relationships
with the other key service providers are managed by
the Investment Manager andfor Administrator and
Company Secretary on behalf of the Board and the
Committee considered feedback received from the
Investment Manager and the Administrator regarding
the levels of service provided by, and relationships with,
the other key service providers.

The Committee was satisfied, in all material respects,
with the levels of service provided by the other key
service providers. The Committee concluded that, in
its opinion, the continuing appointments of the other
key service providers on the terms agreed remained
appropriate and in the best interests of the Company
and recommended this to the Board. The Board agreed
with the Committee's recommendations and approved
the continuing appointments of the other key service
provider on the terms agreed.

COMMITTEE EVALUATION

The activities of the Management Engagement
Committee were considered as part of the Board
evaluation process completed in May 2023 in
accordance with standard governance arrangements
as summarised in the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee Reporton pages114and115.itwas concluded
that the Committee has the right balance of membership
and skills and is operating effectively.

APPROVAL

This Management Engagement Committee Report was
approved on 16 October 2023.

On behalf of the Committee:

(i) (onda

CHRISTINA MCCOMB

Management Engagement Committee Chair

16 October 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION

COMMITTEE REPORT

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee
consists of all the Directors and is chaired
by Ms Inglis. Individual Directors are not
involved in decisions connected with their own
appointments.

The Committee's authority and duties are clearly
defined in its written terms of reference which
are available on the Company's website
(https:/linvestors.seraphim.vc]). The terms of reference
are reviewed at least annually.

4 )
Key Responsibilities
- Developing and reviewing the Directors'

remuneration policy and policies on Board
tenure and diversity.

* In conjunction with the Chair, reviewing
the Directors’ remuneration levels and
considering the need to appoint external
remuneration consultants.

* Reviewing outside commitments of the
Directors.

» Evaluating the Board, its Committees and
the Directors and considering whether
the Directors should be recommended for
election or re-election.

* Reviewing the composition of the Board
and its Committees, including the balance
of skills, experience, knowledge and
diversity (including gender, social and ethnic
backgrounds and cognitive and personal
strengths).

- Formulating succession plans for the
Directors consistent with SSIT's policies on
Board tenure and diversity.

- Identifying, evaluating and recommending
candidates for new Board appointments.

* Reportingto the Board on how the Committee
has dischargedits responsibilities and making
recommendations as appropriate.

Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC

The Committee meets once a year, and at such other
times as the Committee Chair shall require.

The Committee’s effectivenessis reviewedonanannual
basis as part of the Board's performance evaluation

process.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES DURING THE
YEAR

Annual evaluation of Board, Committees and
Directors

The Committee ensures that there is a formal and rigorous
annual evaluation of the performance of the Board, its
Committees, the Chair and individual Directors.

The evaluations, which were facilitated by the Company
Secretary and undertaken during May 2023, consisted of
performance appraisals, questionnaires, and discussions
to determine effectiveness and performance in various
areas. The areas considered included (a) the Board's
composition, knowledge, skills and independence, (b} its
governanceandprocesses,{c)thecontributionsofindividual
Directors to the Board's work, (d) the relationships and
communication betweenthe Directors, as well as between
the Board and the Investment Manager, the Administrator
and other key service providers, (e) investment matters,
(f} delivering shareholder value and (g) key priorities for
the financial year ending 30 June 2024, The Committee
also sought the views of the Investment Manager as part
of the evaluation process. The performance evaluation of
the Chair was led by Ms Inglis as the Company's Senior
Independent Director and Chair of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee.
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REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

(continued)

Following review and discussion of the evaluation results,
the Committee concluded, at its scheduled meeting in May
2023, that:

- the Board and each of its standing Committees
had a good balance of relevant skills, experience
and knowledge and. their structures, sizes and
compositions were appropriate at this stage in the
Company's life and, accordingly, no changes were
expectedto be required for atleast the next 12 months;

- each Director continued to be independent in
character and judgement, their skills and experience
were a significant benefit to the Board and they had
demonstrated their ability to commit the time required
to fulfil their responsibilities;

- the Directors (individually and collectively as the
Board) had been operating effectively;

- therewere nospecific additionaltrainingrequirements
for any of the Directors; and

- the proposed re-election of each Director at the 2023
AGM should be recommended.

The Committee made recommendations to the Board
based on the outcome of its deliberations.

Other routine activities
Atits schedule meetingin May 2023, the Committee also:

- reviewed the Board's policies on diversity and Board
tenure and its succession plan and recommended
them to the Board for approval (see ‘Board diversity’,
‘Board tenure' and 'Succession Planning’ on pages
104 to 107 and page 117 for details of these policies, as
approved by the Board); and

- reviewed the Directors' remuneration policy and the
annual remuneration of the Directors and concluded
that no changes were required in respect of the year
ending 30 June 2024,

SUCCESSION PLANNING

The Board is at an early stage of its life, with all Directors
having a number of years of their tenure left. The tenure
of all Directors, including the Chair, is expected not to
exceed nine years unless exceptional circumstances
warrant, such as to allow for phased retirements
of the current Directors. The Committee considers
succession planning annually and has developed a
succession plan that seeks to achieve an appropriate
balance between preservation of experience and
knowledge and bringing in fresh ideas and perspectives
and is consistent with the Company's policies on Board
tenure and diversity. The Committee is cognisant that it
does not currently have ethnic representation, contrary
to the new FCA diversity targets, and this will be an
important consideration in future Board appointments.

The process for recruiting additional Directors is
described under ‘Appointments to the Board' on
page 105 to 106. The Committee intends to use non-
executive director recruitment consultants and/or open
advertising when recruiting new Directors in the future.

COMMITTEE EVALUATION

The activities of the Committee were considered as part
of the Board evaluation process completed in May 2023
inaccordance with standard governance arrangements
as summarised under ‘Annual evaluation of Board,
Committees and Directors’ earlier in this Report. The
conclusion from the process was that the Committee
was operating effectively with the right balance of
membership and skills.

APPROVAL

This Remuneration and Nomination Committee Report
was approved on 16 October 2023.

On behalf of the Commiittee:

s
SUE INGLIS

Remuneration and Nomination Committee Chair

16 October 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

This Report has been prepared by the
Directors in accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006 and the Large
and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008. By
law, the Company's Auditor is required to audit
certain of the disclosures provided in this Report.
Where disclosures have been audited, they
are indicated as such. An ordinary resolution
for the approval of this Report {excluding the
section ‘Remuneration Policy’) will be put
to shareholders at the Company's AGM on
20 November 2023.

ANNUAL STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR
OF THE BOARD

The Company's remuneration policy, which is set out
below, is subject to shareholder approval every three
years or sooner if an alteration to the policy is proposed.
The remuneration policy was approved atthe AGM of the
Company on 17 November 2022 and no changes to the
policy are proposed. It is intended that the remuneration
policy will continue in force untilthe AGM in 2025.

The remuneration of the Directors has been set in
order to attract individuals of a calibre appropriate to
the future development of the Company. For the year
ended 30 June 2023, the Directors’ remuneration
was set at £50,000 per annum for each Director. The
Remuneration and Nomination Committee reviewed the
level of fees during the year and the Board approved the
Committee's recommendation that there should be no
increase in the level of fees for the year ending 30 June
2024. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee
did not receive independent advice or services in respect
of its review of the Directors' remuneration; however,
the Company Secretary provided it with details of
comparable fees and other market information.

' m Spa_ce Investment Trust PLC

[T

REMUNERATION POLICY

It is the Company's policy to determine the level of
Directors’ fees which should be sufficient to attract and
retain Directors with appropriate skills and experience
necessary for the effective stewardship of the Company
and the expected contribution of the Board as a whole
in achieving the Company's objectives. The time
committed to the Company's business and the specific
responsibilities of individual Directors are taken into
account. The policy aims to be fair and reasonable in
relation to the level of fees payable to non-executive
directors of comparableinvestmentcompanies and other
investment companies of similar size and complexity as
the Company.

The Company's Articles of Association limit the
aggregate fees payable to the Directors to £500,000
per annum (any change to that limit requires shareholder
approval). Within that limit, it is the responsibility of
the Board as a whole to determine and approve the
Directors’ fees, following a recommendation from the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee. The fees are
fixed and payable in cash, quarterly in arrears. Annual
fees are pro-rated where a change takes place during a
financial year. Directors have no entitlement to pensions
or pension-related benefits, medical or life insurance
schemes, share options or long-termincentive schemes.

TheDirectors'feeratesarereviewedbytheRemuneration
and Nomination Committee at least annually, but reviews
will not necessarily result in a change to the rates. Any
feedback received from shareholders will be taken into
account when setting fee rates. Directors abstain from
voting on their own fees.

The Directors are entitled to the reimbursement of
reasonable fees and expenses incurred by them in
the performance of their duties. Where expenses are
recognised as a taxable benefit, a Director may receive
the grossed-up costs of that expense as a benefit.

The Directors do not have a service contract. Each
Director has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company. The letters of appointment do not include any
minimum period of notice of termination by either party
or any provision for compensation for loss of office.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT

(continued)

ANNUAL REPORT ON
DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
(AUDITED INFORMATION)

The table below shows all remuneration earned by each
individual Director during the year. No Director received
taxable benefits during the year.

30 June 30 June % change
2023 2022 from prior
£ £ period®?
Will Whitehorn
(Chair) £50,000 £48,322 _ 3%
Sue Inglis (Senior
Independent
Director) £50,000 £48,322 3%
Christina
McComb £50,000 £48,322 3%
AngelaLane® £50,000 £25,000 100%
Total £200,000 £169,966

M Appointed with effect from 1 January 2022.

@ Movement in individual Director's salary based on annualised total
figures. Prior year remuneration was prorated based on duration of
service.

Remuneration for each Director is set at £50,000
per annum. None of the Directors received any other
remuneration or additional discretionary payments
during the year from the Company (2022: £NIL).

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND
ON PAY

The remuneration of the Directors with respect to the
year totalled £200,000. As outlined on page 19, the
Directors intend to manage the Company's affairs to
achieve shareholder returns through capital growth
rather than income. Therefore, no dividends have been
declared or paid during the year and a comparison
of amounts paid to Directors against distributions to
shareholders would not be relevant.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS
(AUDITED INFORMATION])

The Directors who held office during the year and their
interests in the ordinary shares of the Company at
30 June 2023 are shown in the table below. There have
been no changes to the Directors’ interests between
30 June 2023 and the date of this Report.

30June2023 30 June2022

Ordinary shares  Ordinary shares

Will Whitehorn 100,000 100,000
Sue Inglis 50,000 50,000
ChristinaMcComb 41,706 25,000
AngelaLane 47,000 27,284

There are no requirements for the Directors to own
shares in the Company.

Annual Report and Financial Statements
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{continued)

COMPANY PERFORMANCE

The following chart shows the value of £100 invested
in the Company on 14 July 2021 (the Company’s launch
date) compared with the value of £100 invested in the
MSCI World Aero and Defence Index (in Sterling terms),

as a significant proportion of portfolio companies'’
revenues are derived from the broader defence
industry andfor many portfolio companies have
government as a significant customer.

SSIT SHARE PRICE VS. MSCI WORLD AERO AND DEFENCE INDEX

(£, TOTAL RETURN REBASED TO 100)
150 |
140 |
130 |
120 |
1o | A
06" ’

80

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

|

Juk21 Oct-21 Dec-21 Mar-22 Junr22 Aug-22 Now-22 Feb-23 May-23 Juk23 Oct-23

mmm SSIT Share Price (£)

Source: Datastream

STATEMENT OF VOTING AT ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

The Company seeks shareholder approval of the
Directors’ remuneration policy at every third AGM. At the
2022 AGM, of the proxy votes received in respect of the
Directors' Remuneration Policy, 99.58% werein favourand
0.42% were against (votes representing approximately
0.03% of the issued share capital were withheld).

Anadvisoryordinaryresolutionto approvethe Directors’
Remuneration Report (excluding the Directors'’
remuneration policy) is put to members at each AGM.
Atthe 2022 AGM, of the proxy votes received in respect
of the Directors’' Remuneration Report, 99.60% were

~in favour and 0.40% were against (votes representing
- .Q.QS% of the issued share capital were withheld).

<u

)S__,éfégﬁ‘[rﬁ\Spa_ce Investment Trust PLC

=== MSCI|World Aero and Defence Index {£)

APPROVAL

This Directors' Remuneration Report was approved by
the Board on 16 October 2023.

On behalf of the Board:

WILL WHITEHORN

Chair
16 October 2023
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

STATEMENT

RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year. Under
that law the Directors are required to prepare the
Company’s financial statements, in accordance with
UK-adopted International Accounting Standards and
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. Under
company law the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the profit or loss for the Company for
that financial year.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are
required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently;

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;

- state whether they have been preparedin accordance
with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards,
subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements;

- prepare the financial statements on the goingconcern
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business; and

- prepare a Directors' Report, strategic report and
Directors’' remuneration report which comply with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are responsible for:

+ keeping adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006;

- for safeguarding the assets of the Company and,
hence, for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities; and

- ensuring that the Annual Report, taken as a whole, is
fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Company's performance, business model and strategy.

WEBSITE PUBLICATION

The Directors are responsible for ensuring the Annual
Report and financial statements are made available on
a website. Financial statements are published on the
Company's website in accordance with legislation in
the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements, which may vary from legislation in
other jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity of the
Company's website is the responsibility of the Directors,
which they have delegated to the Investment Manager.
The Directors' responsibilities also extend to the
ongoing integrity of the financial statements contained
on the website.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors confirm to the best of their knowledge
that:

- the Company's financial statements have been
preparedinaccordance with UK-adoptedinternational
Accounting Standards and give a true and fair view of
the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit and
loss of the Company;

- the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and
financial position of the Company, together with a
description of the principal and emerging risks and
uncertainties that it faces; and

- the Annual Report and financial statements, taken as
a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and
provide the information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Company's position and performance,
business model and strategy.

This responsibility statement was approved by the
Board on 16 October 2023.

On behalf of the Board

WILL WHITEHORN
Chair

16 October 2023
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

to the members of Seraphim Space Investment Trust Plc

OPINION ON THE FINANCIAL
3 STATEMENTS

in our opinion the financial statements:

+ give atrue and fair view of the state of the Company's
affairs as at 30 June 2023 and of its loss for the year
then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with UK
adopted international accounting standards; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements of Seraphim
Space Investment Trust PLC (the 'Company') for
the year ended 30 June 2023 which comprise the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement
of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in
Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and UK adopted international accounting standards.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our auditin accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. Our audit opinion is consistent with the
additional report to the audit committee.

Independence

Following the recommendation of the audit committee,
we were appointed by the Board in February 2022 to
audit the financial statements for the period ended 30
June 2022 and subsequent financial periods. The period
..of total uninterrupted engagement including retenders

.

And {Léappointments is 2 years, covering the period

Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to listed public
interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
The non-audit services prohibited by that standard were
not provided to the Company.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded
that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accountinginthe preparation of the financial statements
is appropriate. Our evaluation of the Directors’
assessment of the Company's ability to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting included:

- agreeing the inputs and assumptions (i.e., forecasted
expenditure, investment additions and Investment
Portfolio Value) within the board's assessment of the
going concern status of the Company to supporting
documentation and our own understanding of the
Company;

- assessing the appropriateness of assumptions
made by the Directors in their scenario analysis by
considering the nature of the entity and its operations
and consideredthe likelihood of the extreme downside
scenarios occurring as well as reverse stress testing
the forecast and the resulting effects on the liquidity
of the Company; and

- calculating financial ratios to ascertain the financial
health of the Company.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not
identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months
from when the financial statements are authorised
forissue.

In relation to the Company’s reporting on how it has
applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have
nothing material to add or draw attention to in relation
to the Directors’ statement in the financial statements
about whether the Directors considered it appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the
Directors with respect to going concern are described
inthe relevant sections of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

{continued)

OVERVIEW
Key audit matter Valuation of unquoted investments
Materiality Company financial statements as a whole

£4.281m (2022:£3.512m) based on 2% (2022: 1.5%) of Net assets

AN OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF
OUR AUDIT

Our audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding
of the Company and its environment, including
the Company's system of internal control, and
- assessing the risks of material misstatement in the
financial statements. We also addressed the risk of
management override of internal controls, including
assessing whether there was evidence of bias by the
Directors that may have represented a risk of material
misstatement.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current
period and include the most significant assessed
risks of material misstatement (whether or not due
to fraud) that we identified, including those which had
the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the
allocation of resources in the audit, and directing the
efforts of the engagement team. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Annual Report and Financial Statements
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{continued)

HOW THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT
KEY AUDIT MATTER ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER
Valuation of Unquoted investments, which We gained an undefstanding of the controls and processes in
Unquoted comprises equity and loan note  relation to the valuation of unquoted investments including how the
Investments investments, are valued using respective methodology and inputs in the model are chosen.
The Company’s judgemental valuatloptechnlqles Our testing of unquoted investments was tested inter alia to an
accounting policy ba§ed on thg International immaterial residual balance. For allinvestments in our sample:
for assessing Private Equity and Venture ) i
the fair value Capital Valuation Guidelines + We assessed whether the valuation methodology is the most

of investments and represent 97% of total appropriate in the circumstances under the International Private

is disclosed on investments at fair value through Equity and Venture Capital Valuation ("IPEV") Guidelines.
page140innote2.  Profitandloss, respectively. + We considered whether the assumptions and inputs into the
The disclosure Thereis a high level of valuation are reasonable by obtaining an understanding of the

regarding significant gctimation uncertainty involved portfolio companies and obtaining underlying evidence supporting

accounting in determining the valuation the inputs in the year end valuations.

judgments, of unquoted investments due * We recalculated the attributable value based on the rights of
estimates and to the judgements involved the relevant instruments, which were agreed to investment
assumptions for in selecting the appropriate agreements. We received direct confirmation of the capital

assessingthefair  yajyation methodology aswellas  structure from all of the investee companies.

value of investments ; ; ;
regarding the estimatesinvolved .. cpoR| {Calibrated Price of Recent Investment) valuations in our

isgivenon inrelationtothe choseninputs o, e

pagelé42innote3,  and valuation assumptions. . . .
and disclosures - We agreed the price of the recent investment to supporting
regarding the fair Furthermore, the Investment documentation and management information. We considered

valueestimatesare Manager's fees are determinedin  whether or not the performance of the portfolio company has
givenonpages 145 referencetothenetassetsvalue,  gignificantly varied from expectations at the transaction date

to 147 in note 8. of which unquoted investments by obtaining management's evaluation of post transaction
represent a significant performance considering both financial and non-financial KPI's
percentage. As the Investment against relevant milestones to determine the appropriateness of
Manager isinvolvedinvaluingthe  the level of adjustment, if any, made to the transaction value. We
investments, we have identified held extensive discussions with management around the portfolio
there to be a potential risk of companies performance, based on our understanding gained,
material misstatement. we challenged management where a material difference was
Given the high level of estimation identified. Additionally, we have performed our own search of the
uncertainty, the risk of material macro-economic environment, and understood the performance
misstatement, and the of the investment portfolio companies, in order to assess whether
significance of the unquoted management have appropriately considered the effect of rising

inflation, the overall industry and the volatility of the public equity
markets on their valuations.

investments in the context of the
financial statements, we have

determined the valuationofthe - Where a discount was noted, we assessed and challenged the
unquoted investmentstobeakey  judgments used in determining the discount percentage and
audit matter. whether this was appropriate.

* For convertible loan notes and safe notes, we also agreed the
inputs applied in the valuation to the loan agreements. Through
discussions with management, and in reference to the terms of
the loan agreements, we challenged the basis on how the loan
conversion terms were reflected in the valuations of the equity and
debtinstruments, where applicable.

+ Where applicable, we assessed the impact of the preference
share waterfall on the valuation by checking the accuracy of the
preference share waterfall with reference to statutory documents
and investment agreements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

HOW THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

- Assessed whether the investment was an arm’s length transaction
through reviewing the parties involved in the transaction and
checking whether or notthey were already investors of the investee
company or otherwise connected.

For milestone and market comparable valuations in our sample:

- We gained an understanding around the investee in terms of the
key strategic drivers and metrics which influences the overarching
valuation.

+ We challenged estimates used in the valuation of the investments
by holding discussions with management and reviewing
management accounts or board packs to understand the
performance of the portfolio company, including its cash runway.
We challenged the appropriateness of the basket of comparable
companies by considering the sectors in which those companies
operate together with their nature of operations. We challenged
the appropriateness of KPI's, milestones and metrics applied in the
valuation by reviewing the portfolio companies underlying financial
information with reference to investment agreements or board
packs where applicable.

- Where appropriate, we verified and benchmarked key inputs and
estimates usedin valuation models to independent information and
assessed whether the benchmarks used were reasonable.

- Where applicable, we assessed the impact of the preference
share waterfall on the valuation by checking the accuracy of the
preference share waterfall with reference to statutory documents
and investment agreements.

Key observations:

Based on the procedures performed we consider the unquoted
investment valuations to be within an appropriate range, and the
estimates made by managementin valuingthe unquoted investments

~ tobereasonable.
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OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning
and performing our audit, and in evaluating the effect
of misstatements. We consider materiality to be
the magnitude by which misstatements, including
omissions, could influence the economic decisions
of reasonable users that are taken on the basis of the
financial statements.

In order to reduce to an appropriately low level the
probability that any misstatements exceed materiality,
we use a lower materiality level, performance materiality,
to determine the extent of testing needed. Importantly,
misstatements below these levels will not necessarily
be evaluated as immaterial as we also take account of
the nature of identified misstatements, and the particular
circumstances of their occurrence, when evaluating
their effect on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole and

performance materiality as follows:

Company financial statements
2023
£4.281m

2% of Net assets

Materiality
Basis for determining materiality

Rationale for the benchmark applied

2022
£3.512m
1.5% of Net Assets

As aninvestmenttrust, the net asset value is considered to be the key

measure of performance for users of the financial statements.

Performance materiality

Basis for determining performance
materiality

£3.210m
75% of Materiality

£2.282m
65% of Materiality

Rationale for the percentage applied
( for performance materiality

The level of performance materiality applied was set after having
considered a number of factors including our assessment of the
Company's overall control environment and the expected total value
of known and likely misstatements and the level of transactions in

the year.

Reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would
report to them all individual audit differences in excess
of £222,000 (2022: £175,600). We also agreed to
report differences below this threshold that, in our view,
warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly statedinour report, we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge
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obtained inthe course of the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements,
we are required to determine whether this gives rise
to a material misstatement in the financial statements
themselves. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to reportin this regard.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Listing Rules require us to review the Directors’
statement in relation to going concern, longer-term
viability and that part of the Corporate Governance
Statement relating to the Company's compliance with
the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified for our review.
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Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elements of the
Corporate Governance Statement is materially consistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained

during the audit.

GOING CONCERN AND

LONGER-TERM VIABILITY

+ The Directors’ statement with regards to the appropriateness of

adopting the going concern basis of accounting and any material
uncertainties identified set out on page 78; and

- The Directors' explanation as to their assessment of the Company’s

prospects, the period this assessment covers and why the period is
appropriate set out on pages 78 and 79.

OTHER CODE PROVISIONS

- Directors' statement on fair, balanced and understandable set out

on page 121;

+ Board's confirmation that it has carried out a robust assessment

of the emerging and principal risks set out on pages 108 and 109;

- The section of the annual report that describes the review of

effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems
set out on page 112; and

- The section describing the work of the Audit Committee set outon

pages 110to 113.

OTHER COMPANIES ACT 2006 REPORTING

Based on the responsibilities described below and our work performed during the course of the audit, we are
required by the Companies Act 2006 and ISAs (UK} to report on certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategicreportand
Directors' report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

* the information given in the Strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financial
year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements; and

- the Strategic report and the Directors' report have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the
strategic report or the Directors’ report.

Directors’
remuneration

In our opinion, the part of the Directors' remuneration report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which
we are required to
report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the

Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

- the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be
audited are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Asexplained morefullyinthe Directors' responsibilities
statement, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the Directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

Extent to which the audit was capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud

lIrregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined
above, to detect material misstatements in respect
of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which
our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud is detailed below:
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Non-compliance with laws and regulations

We gained an understanding of the legal and regulatory
framework applicable to the Company and the industry
in which it operates, and considered the risk of acts by
the company which were contrary to applicable laws
and regulations, including fraud. We considered the
significant laws and regulations to be compliance with
Companies Act 2006, the FCA listing and DTR rules,
the principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code,
requirements of s.1158 of the Corporation Tax Act, and
applicable accounting standards.

We focused on laws and regulations that could give rise
to a material misstatement in the Company financial
statements. Our tests included, but were not limited to:

- agreement of the financial statement disclosures to
underlying supporting documentation;

- enquiries of management and those charged with
governance relating to the existence of any non-
compliance with laws and regulations;

- review of minutes of board meetings throughout the
period;

+ obtaininganunderstanding of the controlenvironment
in monitoring compliance with laws and regulations;
and

- reviewing the calculation in relation to Investment
Trust compliance to check that the Company was
meeting its requirements’to retain its Investment
Trust status.

Fraud

We assessed the susceptibility of the financial
statement to material misstatement including fraud
and considered the fraud risk areas to be the valuation
of unquoted investments and management override of
controls.

Our tests included, but were not limited to:
- The procedures set outinthe Key audit matter section
above;

- Obtaining independent evidence to support the
ownership of a sample of investments;

+ Recalculating investment management fees in total;

- Obtainingindependent confirmation of bank balances;
and
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- Testing journals period end financial reporting
journals and evaluating whether there was evidence
of bias by the Investment Manager and Directors that
represented a risk of material misstatement due to
fraud.

We also communicated relevant identified laws and
regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement
team members who were deemed to have the
appropriate competence and capabilities and remained
alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with
laws and regulations throughout the audit.

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks
of material misstatement in the financial statements,
recognising that the risk of not detecting a material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of
not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery,
misrepresentations or through collusion. There are
inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed
and the further removed non-compliance with laws
and regulations is from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we
are to become aware of it.

A further description of our responsibilities is available
on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:
www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor's report.

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report is made solely to the Company’s members,
as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Company's
members those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

DocuSigned by:

€ron. Wiedor

BD33F3EF4925430...

ERAN WIEDER
(SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR)

For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

16 October 2023

BDO LLP s alimited liability partnership registered in England
and Wales (with registered number 0C305127).
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the period frominception to 30 June 2023

For the year ended 30 June 2023 Forthe year ended 30 June 2022
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
_ Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Investment (loss)/ gain
Net (loss)/ gain on investments
held at fair value through profit
or loss 8 - (12,416) (12,416) - 7,655 7,655
' ' - (12,416)  (12,416) - 7,655 7,655
Expenses
Management fee 4 (2,912) - (2,912) (2,74 4) - (2,744)
Other operating expenses 5 (1,857) - (1,851) (1,626) - (1,626}
Total expenses (4,763) - (4,763) (4,370) - (4,370)
Operating (loss)! profit for
the year| period (4,763) (12,416) (17,179) (4,370) 7,655 3,285
Financeincome
Interestincome 260 - 260 84 - 84
Total finance income 260 - 260 84 - 84
(Loss)! profit for the year|
period before tax {4,503) (12,416) (16,919} (4,286) 7,655 3,369
Tax 6 - - - - - -
(Loss)! profit and total
comprehensive income for the
year] period attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company (4,503} (12,416} (16,919) (4,286) 7,655 3,369
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted (losses)/
earnings per share (pence) _ 7 (1.88) (5719) (7.07) (1.94) - 347 1.563

All Revenue and Capital items in the above statement derive from continuing operations. No operations were
acquired or discontinued in the year or prior period.

The Total column of this statement is the profit and loss account of the Company, and the Revenue and Capital
columns represent supplementary information prepared under guidance issued by the Association of Investment
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STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2023

Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
Note £'000 £'000
Non-current assets
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 8 187,428 186,083
187,428 186,083
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 9 88 121
Cash and cash equivalents 10 35,309 57,650
' 35,397 57,771

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables n (428) (4,538)

(428) (4,538)
Net current assets 34,969 53,233
Net assets 222,397 239,316
Equity
Share capital 12 2,394 2,394
Share premium 12 60,377 60,377
Other reserves 12 173,176 173,176
Retained (losses)jearnings (13,550} 3,369
Total shareholders’ funds ‘ 222,397 239,316
Number of shares inissue at period end 239,384,928 239,384,928
Net assets per share (pence) 13 92.90 99.97

The financial statements on pages 132 to 157 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 16 October 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

WILL WHITEHORN SUE INGLIS
Chair Director

Registered Company Number 13395698

The accompanying notes on pages 136 to 157 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Special . R

Share Share distributable _Retained (losses}/earnings

capital premium reserve Revenue Capital Total

£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Total shareholders' funds at
1July 2022 2,394 60,377 173,176 (4,286) 7,655 239,316
Total comprehensive expense
for the year - - - (4,503) (12,416} {16,919)
Total shareholders’ funds at
30 June 2023 _ 2,394 60,377 173,176 (8,789) (4,761) 222,397
For the period frominception to 30 June 2022

Share Share distrissgsﬁal Retained (losses)/earnings

capital premium reserve Revenue Capital Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Total shareholders’ funds at
14 May 2021 - - - - - -
Issue of redeemable preference
shares 50 - - - - 50
Issues of ordinary shares 2,394 236,991 - - - 239,385
Redemption of redeemable
preference shares (50) - - - - (50)
Shareissue costs - (3,438) - - (3,438)
Cancellation of share premium - (173,176) 173,176 - - -
Total comprehensive
(expense}/income for the period - - - (4,286) 7,655 3,369

Total shareholders' funds at
30 June 2022 2,394 60,377 173,176 (4,286) 7,655 239,316
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STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Forthe For the
year ended period ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
_ Note ~ £'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
{Loss)lprofit for the year/period before tax {16,919} 3,369
Adjustments for:
Foreign currency cash movement 237 -
Purchase of investments (21,330} (84,815)
Disposal of investments 8 3,341 -
Unrealised movement in fair value of investments 8 10,456 (7,655)
Realised loss on disposal of investments 8 1,960 -
Movement in payables n8 310
Movementin receivables 4 33 (121
Net cash used in operating activities (22,104) (88,912)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds of share capitalissuance - 147,639
Payment of issue costs - (1,077)
Net cash generated from financing activities - 146,562
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents during the year/period (22,104) 57,650
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year/period 57,650 -
Exchange translation movement (237) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period 35,309 57,650

The accompanying notes on pages 136 to 157 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2023

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an externally managed closed-ended investment company, incorporated in England and Wales on
14 May 2021 with registered number 13395698. The Company’s ordinary shares were admitted to trading on the
London Stock Exchange'’s main market on 14 July 2021.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost basis, as modified for the measurement of
certain financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss and in accordance with UK-adopted International
Accounting Standards and those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies under International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Where presentational guidance set out in the Association of Investment Companies Statement of Recommended
Practice for the Financial Statements of Investment Trust Companies and Venture Capital Trusts (AIC SORP) is
consistent with the requirements of UK-adopted International Accounting Standards, the Directors have sought to
prepare the financial statements on a basis compliant with the recommendations of the AIC SORP. In particular,
supplementary information which analyses the Statement of Comprehensive Income between items of revenue
and capital nature has been presented alongside the total Statement of Comprehensive Income. The determination
of whether an item should be recognised as revenue or capital is carried out in accordance with the principles and
recommendations set out in the AIC SORP. The Directors have chosen to apply the non-allocation approach, so all
indirect costs are charged to the revenue column of the Statement of Comprehensive income.

The Company was formed on 14 May 2021, so comparative information in the financial statements covers the period
from 14 May 2021 to 30 June 2022, but during that period the meaningful activities of the Company took place from
the Company's listing on the London Stock Exchange on 14 July 2021 to 30 June 2022.

In these financial statements, values are rounded to the nearest thousand {£'000), unless otherwise indicated.

Going concern

The Company's cash balance at 30 June 2023 was £35.3m (2022: £57.7m), which was sufficient to cover its liabilities
of £0.4m (2022: £4.5m including £4.2m investment settled post period-end) at that date and any foreseeable
expenses for a period of atleast 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements, including in severe
but plausible downside scenarios. The Company's cash balance at the date of approval of these financial statements
was £29.4m.

The Company's cash balance is comprised of cash held on deposit with substantial global financial institutions
with strong credit ratings and the risk of default by the counterparties is considered extremely low. The major cash
outflows of the Company are expected to be for the acquisition of new investments, which are discretionary. The
Company is closed-ended and there is no requirement for the Company to buy back or redeem shares.

The war in Ukraine has had substantial impacts on the global economy, in particular in respect of heightened inflation
rates. Heightened inflation rates and interest rates have caused a weak macroeconomic environment which has
impacted global markets.
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(continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CDNTINUED]

Continued strengthening of Sterling againstthe US Dollar has morethan reversed the Sterling weakness experienced
in the first quarter of this year. Given the ongoing weak macroeconomic environment, it is currently not possible
to determine the potential scale and scope of the ultimate effects on the global economy, capital markets and
the Company's operations and investments. As the situation continues to evolve, this will remain a key risk to the ;
Company. In the meantime, the Directors and Investment Manager are actively monitoring the situation. In addition, ‘
they have considered the following specific key potentialimpacts:

+ increased volatility in the fair value of investments;
- uncertainty regarding the ability to raise additional capital and support the existing portfolio; and

- disruptions to business activities of the underlying investments.

In considering these key potential impacts, the Directors and Investment Manager have assessed them with
reference to the Company's risk framework and mitigation measures in place.

Based onthe assessment outlined above, including the various risk mitigation measuresin place, the Directors do not
consider that the effects of the weak macroeconomic environment or the impact of the continuing war on Ukraine
have created a material uncertainty over the assessment of the Company as a going concern.

On the basis of this review, and after making due enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for at least 12 months from the date of
approval of these financial statements. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements.

Segmental reporting

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors as a whole. The key measure of performance used
by the Board to assess the Company's performance and to allocate resources is the Company’s NAV, as calculated
in accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards, and, therefore, no reconciliation is required
between the measure of profit or loss used by the Board and that contained in the Annual Report.

For management purposes, the Company is organisedinto one main operating segment, whichinvests predominantly
in early and growth stage privately financed SpaceTech businesses globally.

All of the Company's current bank interestincome is derived from within the UK.

The Company's non-current assets are located in the US, the UK, the EU, Israel and Japan. Due to the Company's
nature, it has no customers. '

Functional currency and foreign currency transactions

These financial statements are presented in Sterling. As the majority of the Company's transactions are in Sterling,
it is appropriate for the Company's functional currency to be Sterling. However, the Company holds investments
denominated in currencies other than Sterling, including US Dollars. In addition, an element of any income from the
Company's investments may be generated in currencies other than Sterling.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated at the foreign
exchangerateruling atthat date. Foreign exchange differences arising ontranslation are recognisedin the Statement
of Comprehensive Income. The Company may employ derivatives for currency hedging purposes, but the Board did
not do sointhe year.
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{continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED]

New and amended standards and interpretations not applied

Atthe date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following amendments had been published and will be

mandatory for future accountlng periods.

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023:

+ Narrow-scope amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of financial statements’, Practice statement 2 and IAS 8
‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors’.

- AmendmentstolAS12'Incometaxes’-deferredtaxrelatedtoassetsandliabilities arisingfromasingletransaction.

+ Amendments to IFRS 17 ‘Insurance contracts’ - this standard replaces IFRS 4 ‘Insurance contracts’, which
currently permits a wide variety of practices in accounting for insurance contracts.

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024:

- Amendments to IAS 1 on classification of liabilities clarify that liabilities are classified as either current or
non-current, depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period.

The Company has considered the IFRS accounting standards and interpretations that have been issued but are not
yet effective. None of these standards or interpretations are likely to have amaterial effectonthe Company, asitis the
belief of the Board that the activities of the Company are unlikely to be affected by the changes to these standards,
although any disclosures recommended by these standards, where applicable, will be provided as required.

Assessment as an investment entity

IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements' sets out the following three essential criteria that must be met if a

company is to be considered as an investment entity: : :

- it must obtain funds from multiple investors for the purpose of provudlng those investors with investment
management services;

+ itmustcommittoitsinvestorsthatits business purposeistoinvestfunds solely for returns fromcapitalappreciation,
investment income or both; and

- it must measure and evaluate the performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis.

In satisfying the second essential criteria, the notion of an investment time frame is critical, and an investment entity
should have an exit strategy for the realisation of its investments. Also as set out in IFRS 10, further consideration
should be given to the typical characteristics of an investment entity, which are that:

+ it should have more than one investment to diversify the portfolio risk and maximise returns;

- it should have multiple investors, who pool their funds to maximise investment opportunities;

¢ itshould have investors that are not related parties of the entity; and

- it should have ownership interests in the form of equity or similar interests.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company meets the essential criteria and typical characteristics of an
investment entity as it obtains funds from investors to invest for returns from capital appreciation and substantially

all of its investments are held at fair value through profit or loss, in accordance with IFRS 9 'Financial instruments’.
Fair value is measured in accordance with IFRS 13 ‘Fair value measurement'.

Income recognition

Investment income and interest income is accounted for on an accruals basis using the effective interest rate
method.
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{continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)

Fair value movement

Gains or losses resulting from the movement in fair value of the Company’s investments held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in the Capital column of the Statement of Comprehensive Income at each valuation point.

Expenses

Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. The Company's management, administration and all other
expenses are charged through the Revenue column and any performance fee is charged to the Capital column of the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Share issue expenses of the Company directly attributable to the issue and listing of shares are charged to the share
premium account.

Taxation

The Company has received confirmation from HMRC that it has been accepted as an approved investment trust with
effect from 14 July 2021, provided it continues to meet the eligibility conditions of section 1168 of the Corporation
Tax Act 2010 ('s.1158') and the ongoing requirements for approved companies in the investment Trust {Approved
Company) (Tax) Regulations 2011. The Directors believe that the Company has conducted its affairs in compliance
with s.1158 since approval was granted and intends to continue to do so.

In respect of each accounting period for which the Company is and continues to be approved by HMRC as an
investment trust, the Company will be exempt from UK corporation tax on its chargeable gains. The Company will,
however, be subject to UK corporation tax on its income (currently at a rate of 25%).

In principle, the Company is liable to UK corporation tax on any dividend income. However, there are broad-ranging
exemptions from this charge which would be expected to be applicable in respect of most of the dividends the
Company may receive.

To the extent that the Company receives income from, or realises amounts on the disposal of, investments in foreign
countries it may be subject to foreign withholding or other taxation in those jurisdictions. To the extent it relates to
taxable income, this foreign tax may, to the extent not relievable under a double tax treaty, be able to be treated as an
expense for UK corporation tax purposes, or if the Company has a tax liability it may be treated as a credit against UK
corporation tax up to certain limits and subject to certain conditions.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognisedto the extentthatit is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments, except where the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the difference andit is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off tax assets against tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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{continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED]

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are only
offset, and the net amount reported inthe Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Comprehensive Income,
when there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and the Company intends to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and liability simultaneously.

At 30 June 2023 and 2022, the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables and accrued
expenses reflected in the financial statements are reasonable estimates of fair value in view of the nature of these
instruments or the relatively short period of time between the original instruments and their expected realisation.

Financial assets

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the purpose for which the financial asset was
acquired and its characteristics.

All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. All purchases of financial assets are recorded at the date on
which the Company became party to the contractual requirements of the financial asset.

The Company's financial assets principally comprise of cash and cash equivalents and investments held at fair value
through profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, short term deposits held on call with banks and other short-
term highly liquid deposits with original maturities of three months or less and that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Investments held at fair value through profit or loss

Investments are designated uponinitial recognition as held at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or lossesresulting
from the movementin fair value are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income at each valuation point.

Financial assets are recognised/ derecognised at the date of the purchase/ disposal. Investments are initially
recognised at cost, being the fair value of consideration given. Transaction costs are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income as incurred.

Fair value is defined as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing partiesin
an arm's length transaction. The value of the Company's investments is calculated on the following bases:

- the value of investments that are not publicly traded are valued using recognised valuation methodologies in
accordance with the IPEV Valuation Guidelines. These methods include primary valuation techniques such as
revenue or earnings multiples, milestones or recent transactions;

- where an investment in an unlisted business has been made recently, the Company may use the calibrated price
of recent investment as the best indicator of fair value. In such a case, changes or events subsequent to the
relevant transaction date are assessed to ascertain if they imply a change in the investment’s fair value;

- publicly traded securities are valued by reference to their bid price or last traded price, if applicable, onthe relevant
exchange in accordance with the AIC’s valuation guidelines and applicable accounting standards. Where trading
in the securities of a portfolio company is suspended, the investment in those securities would be valued at the
estimate of its net realisable value. In preparing these valuations, account is taken, where appropriate, of latest
dealing prices, valuations from reliable sources, comparable asset values and other relevant factors; and

- any value otherwise than in Sterling is converted into Sterling at the prevailing rate.
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(continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets
Afinancial asset {in whole or in part} is derecognised:

- when the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership; or

- when it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and when it no longer has
control over the asset or a portion of the asset; or '

- when the contractual right to receive cashflow has expired.

Purchases of investments for cash are classified as operating activities in the Statement of Cash Flows as the
Company's objective is to generate capital growth through investment in a portfolio of predominantly early and
growth stage privately financed SpaceTech businesses.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual agreements entered into and are
recorded on the date on which the Company becomes party to the contractual requirements of the financial liability.

The Company's financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost and include trade and other payables and other
short-term monetary liabilities which are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.

Afinancial liability (inwhole or in part) is derecognised whenthe Company has extinguished its contractual obligations,
or it expires or is cancelled. Any gain or loss on derecognition is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when there is an expected future economic outflow as aresult of a past event and for which
the timing or amount is uncertain.

Share capital

Financial instruments issued by the Company are treated as equity if the holder has only a residual interest in the
assets of the Company after the deduction of all liabilities. The Company's ordinary shares are classified as equity
instruments.

For the issue of each ordinary share, £0.01 has been recognised in share capital and the remaining amount
received has been recognised in share premium. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
are shown in share premium as a deduction from proceeds. Amounts in the share capital and share premium
accounts are not distributable.

As disclosed in note 11, the amount standing to the credit of the share premium account of the Company on
completion of the IPQ, less issue expenses set off against the share premium account, was cancelled by a
court order dated 14 December 2021 and credited to the special distributable reserve. Retained earnings
include cumulative unrealised movements in investments which are classified as capital in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, which are not distributable; and cumulative revenue items, which are classified as
distributable to shareholders.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the financial statements requires the application of estimates which may affect the results
reported in the financial statements. Estimates, by their nature, are based on judgement and available information.

Investment entity

As disclosed in note 2, the Directors have concluded that the Company meets the definition of an investment entity
as defined in IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27. This conclusion involved a degree of judgement and assessment as to
whether the Company met the criteria outlined in the accounting standards.

Valuation

Thekey areainvolving a high degree of estimation or complexity thatis significantto the financial statements has been
identified as the risk of misstatement of the valuation of the Company’s unlisted investments (see note 8). In addition,
as disclosed in note 4, amounts payable as management fee or performance fee to the Investment Manager are
dependent on NAV and, therefore, valuation of investments.

The Company’'sunlistedinvestments are early or growth stage companies. Giventhe nature of these investments,
there are often no current or short-term future earnings or positive cash flows. Consequently, the Company
abides by the IPEV Valuation Guidelines in determining fair value. Although not considered to be the default
valuation technique, the appropriate approach to determine fair value may be based on a methodology with
reference to a calibrated price of recent investment, or, in the case of terms for a future round being agreed, fair
value may be based with reference to a calibrated price of such future round, discounted for execution risk. This is
of greater reliability than other methods based on estimates and assumptions and, accordingly, where there have
been recent investments by third parties, the price of that investment generally provides a basis of the valuation.
Recenttransactions mayinclude post year-end (ifterms agreed pre year-end) as well as pre year-end transactions
depending on their nature and timing. Where a significant milestone is achieved by a portfolio company and there
has not yet been a subsequent funding round, the fair value is determined using comparable metrics. Where
relevant, such as in cases where portfolio companies are profitable or have stable and predictable revenues, fair
value may be determined using a multiples approach (earnings or revenue, respectively). It may be necessary
to apply discounts to some or all of the comparables due to differences between the portfolio company and the
comparables (such as size, margin, liquidity, marketability etc). In addition, in the case of underperformance,
fair value write-downs are taken. Publicly traded securities are valued by reference to their bid price or last
traded price.

The Company considers whether the basis for the last valuation remains appropriate each time valuations
are reviewed. In addition, inputs to the fair value calculation are recalibrated to assess the appropriateness of
the methodology used in relation to the market performance since the last funding round, such as the portfolio
company's trading performance relative to the expectations of the round and macroeconomic conditions and
general market performance.

In all cases, valuations of unlisted investments are based on the judgement of the Directors after consideration of
the above and upon available information believed to be reliable, which may be affected by conditions in the financial
markets. Due to the inherent uncertainty of the investment valuations, the estimated values may differ significantly
from the values that would have been used had a ready market for the investments existed and the differences could
be material. Due to this uncertainty, the Company may not be able to sell its investments at the carrying value inthese
financial statements when it desires to do so or to realise what it perceives to be fair value in the event of a sale.
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4. MANAGEMENT AND PERFORMANCE FEES

Managementfee

Under the Investment Management Agreement, the Investment Manager is entitled to a management fee of 1.25% é
per annum of NAV up to £300m and 1.00% per annum of NAV above £300m, payable quarterly in advance.

Management fees incurred in the year were £2.9m (2022: £2.7m), of which £NIL was payable to the Investment
Manager as at 30 June 2023 (2022: £NIL).

Performance fee

Under the Investment Management Agreement, the Investment Manager is also entitled to a performance fee of
15% over an 8% hurdle with full catch-up, calculated on NAV annually. The performance fee is only payable where
the adjusted NAV at the end of a performance period exceeds the higher of the performance hurdle and a high-water
mark. Any accrued performance fee will only be paid to the extent that the aggregate of the net realised profits on
unlisted investments, net unrealised gains on listed investments and income received from investments during the
relevant performance period is greater than the performance fee payable and, to the extent that such aggregate
is less than the performance fee payable, an amount equal to the difference shall be carried forward and included
in the performance fee payable as at the end of the next performance period. Subject to the Takeover Code, the
Investment Manager is required to reinvest 15% of any performance fee paid in shares of the Company. Full details
of the performance fee are set out in the Company's IPO prospectus, which is available on the Company’s website
(https:/linvestors.seraphim.vc|).

No performance fee was accrued for or paid to the Investment Manager for the year (2022: £NIL).

5. OPERATING EXPENSES

Year ended Year ended

30 June 30 June

2023 2022

£'000 £'000

Legal & professional fees 394 298
Administration & depository fees 219 215 L
Directors’ fees 224 170 :
Insurance expense 23 168 ‘

Irrecoverable VAT 95 98

Audit of statutory financial statements 96 80

Other operating expenses 800 597

Total operating expensés 1,851 1,626

During the prior period, the Company's external Auditor, BDO LLP, was also paid £210k (including VAT) in relation to
share issue and valuation work, completed before the IPO, which was recognised in share premium.
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6. TAX

As an investment trust, the Company is exempt from UK corporation tax on capital gains arising on the disposal

of shares.

Capital profits from its creditor loan relationships or derivative contracts are exempt from UK tax where the profits
are accounted for through the Capital column of the Statement of Comprehensive Income, in accordance with the

AIC SORP.

No tax liability has been recognised in the financial statements.

30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

UK corporation tax charge on profits for
the year/ period at 20.5%* (2022:19%)

* Thetaxrate changed from 19% to 25% on 31 March 2023 such that the average rate for the year was 20.5% and this is the percentage used for the

tax reconciliation.

30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Return on ordinary activities before tax {4,503) (12,416) (16,919) (4,286) 7,655 3,369
Tax at UK corporation tax rate of
20.5% (2022:19%) (923) {2,545) (3,468) (814) 1,454 640
Effects of:
Non-taxable (losses)/ gains
oninvestments - 2,545 2,545 - (1,454) (1,454)
Disallowable Expenses 32 - 32 39 - 39
Excess management expenses not
utilised in the period 891 - 891 775 - 775

Total tax charge

As at 30 June 2023, the Company has not recognised a deferred tax asset of £2,105,902 (2022: £1,019,196) arising
as a result of having unutilised management expenses carried forward at the year-end of £8,423,609 (2022:
£4,076,786) based on a prospective corporation tax rate of 25% (2022: 19%). These expenses will only be utilised
if the tax treatment of the Company's income and chargeable gains changes or if the Company's investment profile

changes.

Deferredtaxis not provided on capital gains and losses arising on the revaluation or disposal of investments because
the Company meets (and intends to continue to meet for the foreseeable future) the conditions for approval as an

Investment Trust company.

7. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Year ended 30 June 2023 Year ended 30 June 2022

Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
(Loss)! profit attributable
to equity - £'000 {4,503) {(12,416) (16,919) (4,286) 7655 3,369
Weighted average number
of ordinary sharesinissue - - 239,384,928 - - 220,621,858
Basic and diluted earnings
per share in the year/

(1.88) (5.19) (7.07) 1.94 3.47 1.53

period (pence)
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8. INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Levell Level!2 - Level3 Total
For the Year ending 30 June 2023 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Opening balance* 16,236 2,373 . 167,474 186,083
Investment additions - - 17102 17102
Investment disposals ] (3,34) - - (3,347)
Transfers from Level 3 to Level 1 103 - (103} -
Loss ondisposals (1,358) - (602) {(1,960)
Change infair value (7.569) {525) 4,427 (3,667)
Change in fair value - Foreign Exchange Movement (900) (21) (5,678) (6,789)
Net loss on investments held at fair value through
profitor loss (9,827) {736) (1,853) (12,416)
Closing balance 3171 1,637 182,620 187,428

Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
For the Year ending 30 June 2022 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Opening balance ' - .- - -
vestment additions 2,478 - 86,565 89,043
Investment additions - shares issued (note 11) 39,189 - 50,196 89,385
Change in fair value {23,058) - 30,713 7655
Closing balance 18,609 - 167,474 186,083

*Investmentin AST SpaceMobile has been reclassified to a Level 2 investment

During the year ended 30 June 2023 investments with a fair value at 30 June 2023 of £0.1m were transferred from
Level 3to Level 1 due to the Nightingale IPO and listing in November 2022 (2022: no transfers).

Fair value measurements

The Company measures fair value using the following fair value hierarchy that prioritises the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets foridentical assets or liabilities {Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to valuations with unobservable
inputs {Level 3 measurements). The three leve!s of the fair value hierarchy under IFRS 13 are as follows:

Levell:  Quoted price (unadjusted)in an active market for an identical instrument.

Level2: Valuationtechniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e., as prices} or indirectly (i.e., derived
from prices). This category includes instruments valued using quoted prices in active markets for similar
instruments, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than
active, or other valuation techniques for which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable
from market data.

Level3:  Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments for
whichthevaluationtechniqueincludesinputsthatare notbased onobservabledataandtheunobservable
inputs have asignificant effect ontheinstrument’s valuation. This categoryincludesinstrumentsthatare
valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments
or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety is
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement. For this purpose,
the significance of aninputis assessed againstthe fair value measurementinits entirety. If afair value measurement
uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that measurement is a
Level 3 measurement.
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8. INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS [CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements (continued)

Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgement,
considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgement by the Company. The Company
considers observable data to be market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and
verifiable, not proprietary and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

The objective of the valuation techniques usedis to arrive at afair value measurementthat reflects the price that would
be received if an asset was sold or a liability transferred in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

The following table analyses, within the fair value hierarchy, the Company's investments measured at fair value at
30 June 2023.

Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
As atJune 2023 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Listed investments . 317 1,637 - 4,808
Unlisted investments - - 182,620 182,620
3,171 1,637 182,620 " 187,428
Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at June 2022 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Listed investments 18,609 - - 18,609
Unlisted investments - B - 167,474 167,474

18,609 - 167,474 186,083

The Level 1 investments were valued by reference to the closing bid prices of each portfolio company on the
reporting date.

The investment in AST SpaceMobile has been reclassified as a Level 2 investment with regards to the Fair Value
hierarchy as at 30 June 2023.

Due to their nature, the unlisted investments are always expected to be classified as Level 3 as these are not traded
and their fair values will contain unobservable inputs.

Significant unobservable inputs for Level 3 valuations

The fair value of unlisted securities is established with reference to the IPEV Valuation Guidelines and the Company
may base valuations on the calibrated price of recent investment in the portfolio companies, comparable milestones
or multiples of earnings or revenues where applicable. An assessment is made at each measurement date as to the
most appropriate valuation methodology.
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8. INVESTMENTS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements (continued)

The valuation methodologies applied involve subjectivity in their significant unobservable inputs and the table below
outlines these inputs. Note 13 below illustrates the sensitivity that flexing these inputs has on fair value {'FV').

Valuation methodology FV{£'000) Unobservableinput

Level1

Available market price ‘ 3171 nja

Level 2

Available market price 1637 nla

Level 3

Calibrated price of recent investment (<3 months) 44428 Transaction price and company performance

Calibrated price of recent investment (3-6 months) 13,708 Transaction price and company performance

Calibrated price of recent investment (>6 months) 7624 Transaction price and company performance

Calibrated price of future investment 21,237 Transaction price and company performance

Premium to price of recentinvestment 45463 Premium percentage

Partial write down to price of recent investment 10,476  Write down percentage

Discount to price of recent investment (post-period) 33,474  Uncertainty discount

Milestones and multiples 6,210 Weightings and discount to comparables/
multiples

Total 187428

Details of significant holdings as required by Schedule 4 of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Regulation 2008 are set out below.

30 June 2023
% of Capital &
Nature of Country of Class of share share- reserves Profit{ {loss) Year-end
Name relationship incorporation held holding (£) (E) ofdata Notes
Bamboo Systems Group  Shareholder UK APreference 47%  (1,355,598) Notpublicly  31-Dec-20 Inadministration
Limited available as of 21-Nov-21
PlanetWatchers {(UK) Shareholder UK Series Seed 2 78% 12,106,431 Not publicly 31-Dec-22
Limited Preference available
Pre-Series A 29%
Preference
Series A 43%
Preference X
30 June 2022 |
% of Capital &
Nature of Country of Class of share share- reserves Profit{ (loss) Year-end
Name relationship incorporation  held holding [[3] (E) of data Notes
Altitude Angel Ltd Shareholder UK Al Preference 47% 4,272,201  Notpublicly 31-Dec-21
A2 Preference 80% available
TransRobotics, Inc. Shareholder US Series A 67% Notpublicly Notpublicly Notpublicly
Preferred available available available
Bamboo Systems Group  Shareholder UK APreference 47%  (1,355,598) Not publicly 31-Dec-20 Inadministration
Limited available as of 21-Nov-21
PlanetWatchers (UK) Shareholder UK Series Seed 2 78% 6,082,609 Not publicly 31-Dec-21
Limited Preference available
Pre-Series A 29%
Preference
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9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

30 June 30 June
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Prepayments 78 80
VAT receivable 10 43
88 121

10.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Cash and cash equivalent on demand 35,309 57,650
35,309 57,650

. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

30 June 30 June
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Accruals 313 228
Trade creditors 115 82
Amounts payable for investments - 4,228
428 4,538
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12.SHARE CAPITAL

Share Share Other

: Number of capital premium  reserves Total
Date Issued and fully paid shares issued £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
14-May-21 Incorporation - ordinary shares 1 - - - -
10-Jun-2} Redeemable preference shares 50,000 50 - - 50
14-Jul-21 IPO -redeemable preference shares (50,000} (50) - - (50)
. 1 - - - -

14-Jul-21 IPO - Cash 150,000,000 1,500 148,500 - 150,000
14-Jul-21 IPO - Initial portfolio® 28,414,561 284 28,130 - 28,414
Share issue costs - (3,438) - (3,438)

178,414,561 1,784 173,192 - 174,976

10-Sep-21 Subsequent share issue®® 7,418,890 T4 7345 - 7.419
22-Sep-21 Subsequent share issue®® 26,296,402 263 26,033 - 26,296
14-Dec-21 Cancellation of share premium (173176) 173176 -
20-Dec-21 Subsequent share issue® 27,255,074 273 26,983 - 27,256
60,970,366 610 (112,815) 173,176 60,97

30 June 2022 and 30 June 2023 239,384,928 2,394 60,377 173176 235,947

W Cash received by the Company was £147,639k after the direct deduction of certain share issuance costs of £2,361k. Other share issuance costs of £1,077k
were subsequently paid in cash and total share issuance costs of £3,4 38k were deducted from share premium.

? Shares issued by way of direct subscriptions in connection with the Company's acquisition of the Initial Portfolio.

¥ Shares issued by way of direct subscriptions in connection with the Company's acquisition of the Retained Assets.

Onincorporation, the issued share capital of the Company was £0.01 represented by one ordinary share, issued to
the subscriber to the Company’s Memorandum of Association. The ordinary share was fully paid up.

To enable the Company to obtain a certificate of entitlement to conduct business and to borrow under section 761 of
the Companies Act 2006, on 10 June 2021, 50,000 redeemable preference shares were allotted to the Investment
Manager. The redeemable preference shares were considered to be paid up as to one quarter of their nominal value
and redeemed immediately following the IPO out of the IPO proceeds.

The amount standing to the credit of the share premium account of the Company on completion of the IPO, less
issue expenses set off against the share premium account, was cancelled by a court order dated 14 December 2021
and credited to the special distributable reserve. This amount shall be capable of being applied in any manner in
which the Company's profits available for distribution, as determined in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,
are able to be applied.

13.NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

The net asset value per ordinary share at the year/ period end were as follows:

30 June 30 June

2023 2022

Net assets £'000 {per Statement of Financial Position) . £222.4m  £239.3m
Number of ordinary shares issued 239,384,928 239,384,928
Net asset value per share (pence) 92.90p 99.97p
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14.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk management objectives

The Company’s investing activities intentionally expose it to a variety of financial risks. The Company makes
investments in order to generate returns, in accordance with its investment policy and objectives.

The mostimportant types of financial risks to which the Company is exposed are market risk (including price, interest
rate and foreign currency risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The Board has overall responsibility for the determination
of the Company's risk management and sets policies to manage financial risks at an acceptable level to achieve the
Company's objectives. The policy and process for measuring and mitigating each of the main risks are described
below. The Investment Manager and the Administrator provide advice to the Board which allows it to monitor and
manage financial risks relating to its operations through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and
magnitude of risks. The Investment Manager and the Administrator report to the Board on a quarterly basis.

Categories of financial instrument

For financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost, the Directors are of the opinion that their carrying value
approximates to their fair value.

Financial assets/ liabilities are as follows:

30 June 30 June
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Financial assets
Investments held at fair value through profit or loss:
Investments 187,428 186,083
Other Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . 35,309 57,650
Trade and other receivables 88 121
Financial liabilities ' -
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables : . 428 4,538

Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
capital return to shareholders. The capital structure of the Company consists of issued share capital, share premium,
retained earnings and other reserves, as stated in the Statement of Financial Position.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may buy back shares or issue new shares. There are
no external capital requirements imposed on the Company.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Company had no borrowings (2022: £NIL).

The Company'sinvestment policy is set out in the Strategic Report on pages 70to 71.
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14.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)]

Market risk

Market risk includes price risk (impact of the general market on the price of any listed holdings or the uncertainty
associated with the price of unlisted holdings), foreign currency risk and interest rate risk.

a) Pricerisk

The investments held by the Company present a potential risk of loss of capital to the Company. Price risk arises
from uncertainty about future prices of the underlying financial investments held by the Company. See note 8 for
quantitative information about the fair value measurement of the Company’s Level 3 investments.

The table below outlines that the valuation methodologies employed involve subjectivity in their significant unobservable
inputs andillustrates sensitivity of the valuations to these inputs. The inputs have been flexed by the percentages outlined.

Reasonable possible

Asat June 2023 Key Other shiftininput Change in FV (£'000}

unobservable unobservable
Valuation methodology FV(£'000) input inputs Range ) () {+) ]
Levell
Available market price 3171 nja nja nfa 5% -5% 159 (159)
Level 2
Available market price 1637 nla nja nla 5% -5% 82 (82)
Level 3
Calibrated price of recent 44,428 Transaction 123,131, 14).(5). (9 nja 5% -5% 2,221 (2,221)
investment (<3 months) pricetand )

company

performance
Calibrated price of recent 13,708 Transaction 121,13}, 4].51.19) nja 10% -10% 1,371 (1.371)
investment (3-6 months) price™and

company

performance
Calibrated price of recent 7,624 Transaction 120,131, (41.15).(3) nla 20% -20% 1,525 (1,525)
investment (>6 months) price™and

company

performance
Calibrated price of future 21,237 Transaction 21, {3).41. 151,19 nja 5% -5% 1,062 {1,062)
investment priceand

company

performance
Premium to price of recent 45,463 Premium @ 5% -15% 2,273 {6,818)
investment percentage
Partial write down to price of 10,476 Write down m 25%-50% 25% -25% 2,619 (2,619}
recentinvestment percentage
Discount to price of recent 459 Uncertainty ® 15% 20% -5% 92 {23)
investment (post-period} discount
Discount to price of recent 33,015 Uncertainty 8 5% 10% -5% 3,302 {1,651}
investment (post-period) discount
Milestones and multiples 6,210 Weightings® . (41,159 nla 10% -10% 621 (621)

anddiscount to
comparables/
multiples

Total 187,428 15,327 (18,152)

Notes:

W wWhile transaction price is observable, where it is deemed to be the appropriate valuation methodology, it is also calibrated against other methodologies as
outlined in the table above.

@ Benchmark performance against relevant indices - the selection of appropriate benchmarks is assessed for each investment, taking into account its
industry, geography, products and customers.

@ EV/revenue multiple of comparable companies or M&A transactions - the selection of comparable companies or M&A[ secondary transactionsis assessed
for each investment, taking into account its industry, geography, level of revenue and growth profile.

“  Milestone comparison with private company comparables - the selection of milestone to be compared to EV is assessed for each investment based on its
industry and includes milestones such as number of satellites/ missions| radars, headcount and funding raised.

#®  Growth in company metrics - the selection of metric is assessed for each investment based on its industry, level of revenue and growth profile and includes
metrics such as satellites] missionsf radars, headcount, revenue and bookings.

®  The premium percentage applied for strong performance istypically in 10% increments - the level of premium to be applied is assessed for each investment
based onits level of performance, cash runway and ability to deliver revenue growth,

™ The write down percentage applied for underperformance is typically in 25% increments - the level of write down to be applied is assessed for each
investment based on its level of underperformance, cash runway and ability to show improvement.

®  Theuncertainty discount applied where terms for a new funding round have been agreed, but the round has notyet closed, can vary from 0-100% - the level
of discount applied is assessed for each investment based on the level of certainty.

©  Where multiple methods of calibration or valuation are used, weightings of 5-40% are applied to these methods to total 100% - the level of weighting applied
to each method is assessed for each investment based on the relevance of such method and to offset the impact of any outliers.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{continued)

14.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)

Re bl ibl

Asat June 2022 ass%?fime.:::ts me Changein FV (£'000)
Valuation methodology FV(£'000) Unobservableinput +) ) +) )
Levell
Available market price 18,609 nJja ) 5% -5% 930 {930)
Level 3
Calibrated price of recent 5,197 Transaction price 5% -5% 260 (260)
investment (<3 months)
Calibrated price of recent 56,102 Transaction price 10% -10% 5,610 (5,610)
investment (3-6 months)
Calibrated price of recent 65,452 Transaction price 20% -20% 13,090 (13,090)
investment {>6 months)
Partial write down to price of 10,191 Write down percentage 25% -25% 2548 (2,548)
recentinvestment
Discount to price of recent 8,830 Uncertainty discount 20% -5% 1,766 {44)
investment (post-period)
Milestone multiples 21,703 Weightings and discountto 10% -10% 270 {2,170)

comparables
Total 186,084 25,185 (23,860)

Variable input shifts are explained as follows:

- Investments valued using Level 1 methodologies or the calibrated price of recent transactions which completed
in the three months to the period-end are flexed up and down by 5% as the Board believe these do not involve
significant subjectivity. ’

- Investments valued using the calibrated price of recent transactions which completed more than three months
but less than six months before the period-end are flexed up and down by 10% as the subjectivity is thought to be
greater than the above, but still not very material.

+ Investments valued using the calibrated price of recent transactions which completed more than six months
before the period-end are flexed up and down by 20% as there is a greater chance that market movements would
impact the price of private transactions.

- Partial write downs used in the period were 25% and therefore, the inputs are flexed up and down by this amount
to account for a similar level of improvement or deterioration in the portfolio companies' performance.

» Premiums of 10% were applied where the recalibration exercise suggested an increase to enterprise value was
warranted due to strong performance. In an upside scenario, this input is flexed up by 5% and accounts for a
5% flex up in relation to the underlying price which the Board does not believe involves significant subjectivity. In
the downside scenario, the input is flexed down by 15% to remove the applied premium and accounts for a 5%
reduction in relation to the underlying price.

- Uncertainty discounts of 5% were applied where a funding round was completed shortly after the end of the
period. In an upside scenario, this input is flexed up by 10% to remove the applied uncertainty discount and
accounts for a 5% flex up in relation to the underlying price which the Board does not believe involves significant
subjectivity. In the downside scenario, the input is flexed down by 5% in relation to the underlying price (similar to
the flex used for investments valued using the calibrated price of recentinvestment which completed in the three
months prior to the period-end).




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

14.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

- Uncertainty discounts of 15% were applied where a funding round was completed after the end of the period. In
an upside scenario, this input is flexed up by 20% to remove the applied uncertainty discount and accounts for a
5% flex up in relation to the underlying price which the Board does not believe involves significant subjectivity. In
the downside scenario, the input is flexed down by 5% in relation to the underlying price (similar to the flex used
for investments valued using the calibrated price of recent investment which completed in the three months prior
to the period-end).

- Investments valued using milestone multiples relative to comparable companies or M&A transactions, with the

discount factor flexed up and down by 10%. A 10% flex is considered reasonable as a result of judgement in
relation to the comparable multiples.

Marketrisk

The Company is exposed to a variety of risks which may have an impact on the carrying value of the Company's
investments.

i) Notactively traded

The majority of the Company’s investments are not generally traded in an active market but are indirectly exposed
to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investments held. The Company’s
investments vary as to the industry sub-sector, geographic distribution of operations and size, all of which may
impact the susceptibility of their valuation to uncertainty.

Although the investments are in the same industry, the risk is managed through careful selection of investments
within the specified limits of the investment policy. The investments are monitored on an ongoing basis by the
Investment Manager.

ii) Concentration

The Company invests principally in early and growth-stage unquoted SpaceTech businesses. This means that
the Company is exposed to the concentration risk of only making investments in the SpaceTech sector, of which
concentration risk may further relate to sub-sector, geography, relative size of an investment or other factors.

The Board and the Investment Manager monitor the concentration of the investment portfolio on a quarterly and
ongoing basis respectively to ensure compliance with the investment policy.

iii) Liquidity
The Company maintains flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient liquidity in cash, short term deposits and other

cash equivalents, which may be invested on a temporary basis in line with the cash management policy as agreed
by the Board from time to time. '

As at 30 June 2023, £35.3m, or 15.9% of Company's financial assets, were money market fixed deposits and cash
balances held on deposit with banks with high credit ratings (2022: £57.7m, or 24.1%).

Annual Report and Financial Statements
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{continued)

14.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Market risk (continued)

b) Foreign currency risk

The Company has exposure to foreign currency risk due to the acquisition of some investments and payment of
some expenses in currencies other than Sterling. Consequently, the Company is exposed to risks that the exchange
rate of its functional currency relative to other foreign currencies may change in amanner thathas an adverse effect
on the value of that portion of the Company’s assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than Sterling.

The following table shows the FX rates as of 30 June 2023 compared to 30 June 2022,

30 June 30 June
2023 2022 % change
GBPJ USD 1.271 1.215 4 7%
GBP/EUR 1.165 1162 0.3%
GBP/ DKK 8.675 8.641 0.4%
GBP/AUD 1.910 1.766 8.2%

The following table sets out, in Sterling, the Company's total exposure to foreign currency risk and the net exposure
to foreign currencies of the monetary assets and liabilities.

£ usb s € DKK AUD $ Total
Asat 30 June 2023 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Non-current assets
Investment at fair value through profitorloss 25477 135,871 22,01 3,876 103 187428
Total non-current assets 25477 135,871 22,101 3,876 103 187,428
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 88 - - - - 88
Cash and cash equivalents 32,437 2,872 - - - 35,309
Total current assets 32,525 2,872 - - - 35,397
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (428) - - - - (428)
Total current liabilities (428) - - - - (428)
Total net assets 4 7 57,574 138,743 22,01 3,876 103 222,397

If the US Dollar weakened| strengthened by 5% (2022: 5%} against Sterling with all other variables held constant,
the fair value of net assets would increase/ decrease by £6,794k {2022: £7,603Kk]).

If the Euro weakened/ strengthened by 5% (2022: 5%) against Sterling with all other variables held constant, the
fair value of net assets would increase/ decrease by £1,105k (2022: £647k).

If the Danish Krone weakened| strengthened by 5% (2022: 5%) against Sterling with all other variables held
constant, the fair value of net assets would increase/ decrease by £194k (2022: £53k).

If the Australian Dollar weakened/ strengthened by 5% (2022: 5%]) against Sterling with all other variables held
constant, the fair value of net assets would increase/ decrease by £5k (2022: £nil).

1S4 Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC
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(continued)

14.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)

Market risk {(continued)

£ $ € DKK Total
As at 30 June 2022 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Non-current assets :
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 20,018 152,067 12,942 1,056 186,083
Total non-current assets 20,018 152,067 12,942 ' 1,056 186,083
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 121 - - - 121
Cash and cash equivalents 57,650 - - - 57,650
Total current assets 57,17 - - - 57,771
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables {4,538) - - - (4,538)
Total current liabilities _ (4,538) - - - (4,538}
Total net assets 73,251 152,067 12,942 1,066 239,316

c) Interestrate risk

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk relates to the Company's cash and cash equivalents. The Company
is subject to risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates. Any excess cash and cash
equivalents are invested at short-term market interest rates. As at the date of the Statement of Financial Position,
the majority of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents were held in interest bearing fixed deposit accounts.

The Company had no other Interest-bearing assets or liabilities as at the reporting date. As a consequence, the
Company was only exposed to variable market interest rate risk. As at 30 June 2023, the cash balance held by the
Company was £35.3m (2022: £57.7m). A 0.5% increase/ (decrease) in interest rates with all other variables held
constant would result in a change to interest received of +/- £176k per annum {2022: 0.5% increase/ (decrease)
resulting in a change of +/- £288k]).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet a demand for cash or fund an obligation when
due. The Investment Manager and the Board monitor forecast and actual cash flows to consider future investing
activities.

The Company adopts a prudent approach to liquidity management and through the preparation of budgets and
cash flow forecasts maintains sufficient cash reserves to meet its obligations.

Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will default on a contractual obligation or
commitment that it has entered into with the Company, resulting in financial loss to the Company. lt arises principally
from investments in money market funds held and also from derivative financial assets, cash and cash equivalents
and other receivables balances.

The Company's policy for credit risk is to minimise its exposure to counterparties with perceived higher risk of .
default by only dealing with counterparties that meet certain credit standards. :

Credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis by the Investment Manager in accordance with the procedue"sand
policies in place. '
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{continued)

14.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)

Creditrisk {continued)

The table below shows the material cash and short-term deposit balances and credit rating for the counterpartles
used by the Company at the year-end date.

Rating 2023 2022

Counterparty Location S&P £'000 £'000
Barclays | ' UK A+ 25,038 47,640
JPMorgan Asset Management UK A- 10,271 10,010

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk default at the period-end is shown below:

2023 2022

£'000 £'000

Investments held at fair value through profit or loss 184,788 186,084
Other financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 35,309 58,650

Trade and other receivables (less prepayments) 7 10 41

15.RELATED PARTY AND INVESTMENT MANAGER TRANSACTIONS

Directors

As at 30 June 2023, the Company had four non-executive Directors. Directors’ fees for the year ended 30 June
2023 amounted to £200k (2022: £170k), of which £NIL was outstanding at the year-end (2022: £NIL).

Investment Manager

Seraphim Space Manager LLP has been appointed as the Company's exclusive Investment Manager and AIFM and
is responsible for the day-to-day operation and management of the Company's investment portfolio, subject at all
times to the overall supervision of the Board.

For the provision of services under the Investment Management Agreement, the Investment Manager earns
a management fee and performance fee, as disclosed in note 4. Further details of the Investment Management
Agreement are included under ‘Investment Manager’ in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 102to 103.

156 Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC
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(continued)

16.ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

In the opinion of the Board, on the basis of the shareholdings advised to it, the Company has no ultimate
controlling party.

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Please refer to page 44 for details of subsequent events in the normal course of business. There are no other
significant subsequent events. !

On 13 July 2023, the Company announced a share repurchase programme to repurchase ordinary shares of £0.01
in the Company. At the date of signing of these accounts, the Company holds 2,186,344 of its ordinary shares in
treasury, all of which were acquired pursuant to the share repurchase programme, and has 237,198,584 ordinary
shares in issue (excluding treasury shares).

On 7 October 2023, conflict broke out between Israel and Palestine. We are working with the Israeli companies in
the portfolio to support them as necessary, but there has been limited impact to date.
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FURTHER INFORMATION

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE
MEASURES

We assess the Company's performance using a variety of measures, some of which are not specifically defined under
UK-adopted International Accounting Standards and are therefore termed 'APMs'. Our APMs, which are shown below,
are reconciled, where appropriate, to the financial statements through the narrative below. The Board believes that each
of the APMs, which are typically used within the listed investment company sector, (with the exception of portfolio fair
value vs. cost), provide additional useful information to shareholders to help assess the Company’s performance.

SHARE PRICE MOVEMENT
Share price movementin the year/period, expressed as a percentage of the opening share price.

30 June 2023 vs. 30 June 2022

Share price on 30 June 2022 a 53.0p
Share price on 30 June 2023 b 27.0p
Movement ' (b-a)la -49.1%

30 June 2022 vs. 14 July 2021

Share price on 14 July 2021 ' a 100.0p
Share price on 30 June 2022 b 53.0p
Movement _ {b-a)la -47.0%

NAV PER SHARE MOVEMENT

Net asset value per share movement in the year/period, expressed as a percentage of the opening NAV per share.
30 June 2023 vs. 30 June 2022

NAV per share on 30 June 2022 a 99.97p
NAYV per share on 30 June 2023 b 92.90p
Movement (b-a)la “11%

30 June 2022 vs. 14 July 2021

NAV per share on 14 July 2021 | " a 98.15p
NAV per share on 30 June 2022 ] b 99.97p
Movement ‘ (b-a)la 1.9%
-DISCOUNT/+PREMIUM

The amount by which the market price per share of a listed investment company is either lower (discount) or higher
(premium)than the NAV per share, expressed as a percentage of the NAV per share.

30 June 30 June

2023 2022

NAV per share (note 12 to the financial statements) a 92.90p 99.97p
Share price b 27.0p 53.0p
-Discount/+premium (b-a)la -70.9% -47.0%

16@ Seraphim Space Investment Trust PLC




FURTHER INFORMATION
ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

{continued)

ONGOING CHARGES

Operating costs incurred in the year/period, charged to Revenue or Capital in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, calculated as a percentage of the average published NAV in respect of the year/period. Operating costs
exclude, for this purpose, the costs of acquiring and disposing of investments, any finance costs, taxation and any
costs notexpectedto recur in the foreseeable future. The calculationis performed in accordance with the guidelines
issued by the AIC.

30 June 30 June

2023 2022

£'000 £'000

Investment management fee {note 4 to the financial statements) 2,912 2,744
Other operating expenses (note 5 to the financial statements) 1,851 1,626
Less non-recurring operating expenses (442) (251)
Ongoing charges a 4,321 4N9
Average quarterly NAV b 228,604 240,014
Ongoing charges ratio ajb 1.89% 1.72%

The ongoing charges calculated above are different from the ongoing costs provided in the Company’s Key
Information Document (‘KID'), which are calculatedin line withthe Packaged Retail and Insurance-basedInvestment
Products Regulation. The ongoing costs in the KID include investment transaction costs.

PORTFOLIO FAIR VALUE VS. COST

The amount by which the fair value of the assets in the portfolio at the end of the year/period has changed in relation
to the aggregate cost of the assets (adjusted for any disposals), expressed as a percentage of the aggregate cost.

2023 2022
Portfolio fair value (note 8 to the financial statements) a 187.4 186.1
Aggregate cost of the assets (adjusted for any disposals) b 190.2 178.4
Portfolio fair value vs. cost ajb 98.5% 104.3%
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FURTHER INFORMATION

GLOSSARY

Administrator or Company Secretary: Ocorian
Administration {UK) Limited.

AGM: Annual general meeting.
Al: artificial intelligence.

AIC: The Association of Investment Companies,
the trade body for listed closed-ended investment
companies.

AIC SORP: The Statement of Recommended Practice
for the Financial Statements of Investment Trust
Companies and Venture Capital Trusts, issued by the
AIC as amended from time to time.

Amazon AWS Space Accelerator: the accelerator
programme run by an affiliate of the Investment
Manager in 2021 on behalf of Amazon Web Services.

API: Application Programming Interface.
Auditor: BDO LLP.

Average quarterly NAV: Calculated as the mean NAV
at each of the four quarter end periods throughout
the year.

Board: the Board of Directors of the Company.
Bookings: contracted future revenues.

CAGR: Compound Annual Growth Rate, defined as the
rate of return that would be required for an investment
to grow from its beginning balance to its ending
balance, assuming the profits were reinvested at the
end of each period of the investment's life span.

CisLunar: Lying between the earth and the moon or
the moon's orbit,

Company or SSIT: Seraphim Space Investment
Trust PLC.

CY: Calendar year, a one-year period that begins on
1 January and ends on 31 December.

Directors: the Directors of the Company.

Discount: the share price of a listed investment
company is rarely the same as its NAV. When the share
price is lower than the NAV per share it is said to be
trading at a discount. The discount is the difference

=, _' ‘_S_e'rapl_ffim Spaceinvestment Trust PLC

between the share price and the NAV, expressed as a
percentage of the NAV.

ESG: environmental, social and governance.
EV: enterprise value.

Fair value-weighted average growth: average growth
rates for multiple portfolio companies, weighted by
each portfolio company's relative fair value.

FCA: Financial Conduct Authority.
FV: fair value.
FX: foreign exchange.

GEO: geosynchronous equatorial orbit {35,786km
from earth) with a 24-hour period.

GP: general partner.
GPS: global positioning system.

Gross Asset Value: the value of the gross assets
of the Company, determined in accordance with its
accounting policies.

HEO: high earthorbit, being any orbit beyond 35,786km
from earth.

IAS: International Accounting Standard.

IFRS: the International Financial Reporting Standards,
being the principles-based accounting standards,
interpretations and the framework by that name issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board, to
the extent they have been adopted by the UK.

loT: the interconnection via the internet of computing
devices embedded in everyday objects, enabling them
to send and receive data. )

Initial Portfolio: the portfolio of investments
acquired from the LP Fund by the Company on
completion of its IPO, details of which are set outin the
IPO prospectus, which is available on the Company’s
website (https:/Jinvestors.seraphim.vc/).

Investment Management Agreement: the Investment
Management Agreement entered into between the
Investment Manager and the Company, details of
which are included under ‘Investment Manager’ in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 102 and 103.




FURTHER INFORMATION
GLOSSARY

(continued)

Investment Manager or Seraphim Space: Seraphim
Space Manager LLP.

IPEV: the International Private Equity and Venture
Capital Association

IPO: initial public offering, being an offering by a
company of its share capital to the public with a view
to seeking an admission of its shares to a recognised
stock exchange.

LEO: low earth orbit, being an orbit that is relatively
close to the earth's surface, extending from 160km to
2,000km above earth.

London Stock Exchange: London Stock Exchange PLC.
LP Fund: Seraphim Space LP.
M&A: mergers and acquisitions.

MEO: medium earth orbit, extending from 2,000km to
below 35,786km. All orbits above LEO and below GEO
are said to be in medium earth orbit.

NASDAQ: National Association of Securities Dealers
Automated Quotations.

NAV or net asset value: the value of the assets of the
Company lessits liabilities as calculatedin accordance
with its accounting policies (or, in the context of an
ordinary share, the NAV of the Company divided by the
number of ordinary shares in issue (but excluding any
treasury shares)).

New Space: the emerging commercial Space industry.

Period: the Company's accounting period to which this
annual reportrelates, being the period commencingon
1 July 2022 and ending on 30 June 2023.

Premium: a premium occurs when the share price of a
listed investment company is higher than the NAV. The
premium is the difference between the share price and
the NAV, expressed as a percentage of the NAV.

Retained Assets: the investments acquired from
the LP Fund by the Company subsequent to its
IPO, details of which are set outin the IPO prospectus,
which is available on the Company's website
{https:/linvestors.seraphim.vc).

RF: radio frequency, - which involves using
electromagnetic radiation for transferring information
between two circuits that have no direct electrical
connection.

Seraphim Space Accelerator:accelerator programme
for early stage SpaceTech companies run by an affiliate
of the Investment Manager.

Smallsat: small spacecraft with amasslessthan180kg
and about the size of a large kitchen fridge.

SPAC: special purpose acquisition company.

Space Prime: multi-capability space prime contractor
offering a wide range of services to government
customers.

SpaceTech: in the context of a business, an
organisation which relies on space-based connectivity
andjor precision, navigation and timing signals or
whose technology or services are already addressing,
originally derived from or of potential benefit to the
space sector.

Total return: The total return on an investment
comprises both changes in the NAV per share or
share price and dividends paid to shareholders and is
calculated on the basis that all historic dividends have
been reinvested in the NAV or shares on the date the
shares become ex-dividend.

Treasury shares: the Company has the authority to
make market purchases of its ordinary shares for
retention as treasury shares for future reissue, resale,
transfer or cancellation. Treasury shares do not
receive distributions and the Company is not entitled
to exercise the voting rights attaching to them.

TTM: Trailing 12 months, being the past 12 consecutive
months of the company's performance.

VC: Venture Capital.
VHF: very high frequency, denoting radio waves of

a frequency of ¢.30-300 MHz and a wavelength of
¢.1-10 metres. :
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FURTHER INFORMATION

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The Annual Report may include statements that are, or may be deemed to be, ‘forward-looking statements'.
These forward-looking statements are sometimes, but not always, identified by the use of forward-looking
terminology, including the terms ‘believes’, ‘estimates’, ‘anticipates’, ‘expects’, ‘intends’, ‘may’, ‘will’ or ‘should’ or,
in each case, their negative or other variations or comparable terminology.

These forward-looking statements include all matters that are not historical facts. They appear in a number
of places throughout this Annual Report and include statements regarding the intentions, beliefs or current
expectations of the Directors or Investment Manager concerning, amongst other things, the investment objective
and investment policy, investment performance, results of operations, financial condition, liquidity, financing
strategies and prospects of the Company and the markets in which itinvests.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to events
and depend on circumstances that may or may not occur in the future. Forward-looking statements are not
guarantees of future performance.

The Company's actual investment performance, results of operations, financial condition, liquidity, financing
strategies and prospects may differ materially from the impression created by the forward-looking statements
contained in this Annual Report.

Subject to their legal and regulatory obligations, the Directors and the Investment Manager expressly disclaim
any obligations to update or revise any forward-looking statement contained in this Annual Report to reflect any
change in expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any
statement is based.
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